CHARLES C. KOKOROS
President
District 1

LELAND A. DINGEE
At Large

SEAN E. POWERS
At Large

CHARLES B. RYAN
At Large

OFFICE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL
- AGENDA -

JOHN C. MULLANEY
District 2

March 5, 2013 e Horace T. Cahill Auditorium, Town Hall e Starting Time:

THOMAS M. BOWES
Vice President
District 3

HENRY N. JOYCE
District 4

RONALD E. DENAPOLI
District 5

PAUL “DAN” CLIFFORD
District 6

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE
ROLL CALL
CORRESPONDENCE

ANNOUNCEMENTS

e 009 13 Council President: Super Saturday’s Recreational Program

e 010 13 Council President: Run for Charlotte

e 011 13 Council Joyce: Recreational Department — Upcoming Events

e 013 13 Council President: Retirement Celebration — Dr. Peter Kurzberg
e 014 13 Council President: Braintree Rotary Club — Safety Net Event

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
e February 26, 2013

CITIZEN CONCERNS/COUNCIL RESPONSE

OLD BUSINESS
None

COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS FROM THE MAYOR AND TOWN BOARDS

° 006 13 — Council President: FY2012 Outside Auditor Management Letter, Reports on Federal Award

Programs and Report on Examination of Basic Statements

Town of Braintree, One JFK Memorial Drive, Braintree, Massachusetts 02184-6498

Telephone: (781) 794-8152 Fax: (781) 794-8270 Email: towncouncil@braintreema.gov



NEW BUSINESS

Refer to Committee on Ways & Means

° 13 004 — School Department: Statement of Interest — East Middle School Project

Topics the Chair does not reasonably anticipate will be discussed

ADJOURNMENT
e Next Council Meetings: Tuesday, March 19, 2013 @ 7:30pm

Town of Braintree, One JFK Memorial Drive, Braintree, Massachusetts 02184-6498
Telephone: (781) 794-8152 Fax: (781) 794-8270 Email: towncouncil@braintreema.gov
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ANNOUNCEMENT

Julianne,

I will have you placed on the March 5th agenda. Jim Casey will contact you to confirm your
time.

Thanks,

Chuck

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 26, 2013, at 2:08 PM, "Quintiliani, Julianne™ <JQuintiliani@braintreema.gov> wrote:

Hi Chuck,

After our discussion the other day, we Super Saturday’s (aka.
Braintree Special Needs Recreational Program) would love to
come to the council meeting on March 5th and share our program
with you all and the community. We were thinking about 10-15
minutes, the Director Mary Ford Clark will review program first,
and then Fundraiser Chairs will discuss upcoming events: Sprint
for Super Saturday and The Annual Golf Tournament. If there is
anything else you would like us to present please let us know.
How should we proceed with getting our names on the agenda??
Thank you for reaching out to such a great program!

Julianne Quintiliani
Morrison Elementary
Special Education K-3


mailto:JQuintiliani@braintreema.gov
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BRAINTREE RECREATION PRE-

BOSTON Tb)
LOW ER
&GARDEN§'H ow

The Recreation Department has discounted tickets
for the 2013 Boston Flower Show at the
SEAPORT WORLD TRADE CENTER IN BOSTON.
Leave behind the gray days of winter and rejoice
in the show, themed:

“Seeds of Change”

Tips and inspiration for trying new plants!
Dates are March 13—17th
Tickets are $16—A $4 savings!

No transportation available. You may use the

tickets on any date.
Show hours are 10:00 a.m.—9:00 p.m. 3/13-3/14-3/15
3/16—9:00 a.m.—9:00 p.m.
3/17—9:00 a.m.—6:00 p.m.

Please contact the Recreation Department
781-794-8901

www.braintreerec.com

LI VIR VY

LS T S I
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Join Braintree Recreation Department

YOUR PACKAGE INCLUDES:

Deluxe motorcoach transportation throughout.
Refreshments served on board.

7 hrs to enjoy Casino games & 6,400+ slot machines.
Casino Bonus: $10 Food (valid for any restaurant or
the full buffet) & $10 Keno.

Bonus is subject to change by casino.

+ All taxes; except customary gratuities to driver/escort.

*® & o o

<

Complete Cost $29.00 per person
Date: Sunday, March 24, 2013

Departs: 8:00 AM  Braintree
Braintree Town Hall Rear Parking Lot
First Come—First Served!

For reservations, contact:
Braintree Recreation Dept (781) 794-8901

Trip operated by: Celebration Tours, Inc.
500 Victory Road, Marina Bay, Quincy MA 02171
(617) 696-1900 * (800) 792-5208
www.celebrationtours.net n Faoebook

|
o
—
—
|
o
| —
b g
| e _
-
<o
_—
|

RESERVATION FORM

RETURN TO: BRAINTREE RECREATION DEPT FOXWOODS CASINO
85 QUINCY AVENUE Complete Cost: $29.00 pp
BRAINTREE MA 02184 MARCH 24, 2013

Enclosed please find $ per person as payment in full for ___person(s). Full payment is due at time of
reservation. Cancellations received within 7 days of departure, no refunds. No refunds for no-shows on day of
departure. Please note any health restrictions. Please make checks payable to: TOWN OF BRAINTREE

Name: Phone:

Address: City: State: Zip:
Must be 21 years of age to enter the casino.
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Braintree Recreation Department presents ...

It's Showtime at the Log Cabin for some Irish mirth!
"Irish Pub Shenanigans" Malone and The Lads

The Log Calin in Holyoke, MA

March 14, 2013
THURSDAY DAY TRIP
Complete Cost $ 89.00 per person

YOUR DAY WILL INCLUDE:

¢ Deluxe motorcoach transportation.

+ Beverages & donuts served onboard.

¢ Menu: Hors d’oeuvre Welcome Tray, Irish
Stew Soup, Garlic Bread Sticks, Corned
Beef Dinner (Chicken Masala available),

FULL PAYMENT DUE WITH RESERVATION Bailey’s Irish Creme Cake, Coffee, Tea,
Cancellation Policy: Cancellations received after payment until Decaf Coffee & Complimentary Glass of
16 days prior to departure-$10 pp. No refunds for cancellations Wine or Guinness Beer!

received within 15 days of departure. Trip Cancellation Waiver:

Protects in case of cancellation, for any reason, up to 48 hours prior + Entertainment featurlng Gerry Malone and

to day of departure. (Recreation Dept/Travel office must be noti- The Lads “Irish Pub Shenanigans” sing

fied of can.cellation.) Amount must be in.cluded with erosit at time along and enj oy these masters of Irish

of reservation. Not available on reservations made within 30 days . |

of departure. Waiver fees are non-refundable, non-transferable and mirth!

valid for specified applicant/tour only. + All taxes & gratuities for included features

Waiver Fee—$10 per person

except gratuity to driver/escort.
¢ Celebration Tours escort throughout.

Trip operated by: CELEBRATION TOURS

500 Victory Road, Quincy MA 02171 1 .
617) 696?17900 +'(800) 7%3,2—5208 For reservations, contact.

wwwcelebrationtours.net B3~ | Braintree Recreation Dept (781) 794-8901

RESERVATION FORM

RETURN TO: BRAINTREE RECREATION DEPT LOG CABIN IRISH DAY TRIP

85 QUINCY AVENUE DATE: MARCH 14, 2013

BRAINTREE MA 02184 Complete Cost: $89.00 per person
Enclosed please find $ per person as payment in full for person(s). Full payment is due at time of

reservation. Cancellations received after payment until 16 days prior to departure-$25pp fee. Cancellations
received within 15 days of departure—no refunds. Please note any health restrictions. Please make check
payable to: TOWN OF BRAINTREE

Name: Home Phone: Cell Phone:
Street: City State Zip
Traveling with: Email:

In case of emergency, contact: Home Phone: Cell:
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ANNOUNCEME

SAVE THE DATE!

For the Retirement Celebration for Dr. Peter A. Kurzberg
May 22, 2013 6:00 p.m. — 10:00 p.m.
Granite Links Golf Club at Quarry Hills — Quincy, MA

There will be more information to come about tickets.

In the meantime, please mark your calendars.


jmcasey
Typewritten Text
  #013 13

ANNOUNCEMENT
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QOTARy

& SafetyNet

by LO/JACK

The Braintree Rotary Club
Presents an informational meeting:

Wednesday, March 13, 2013
4:00 - 5:00 p.m.
Braintree Town Hall Auditorium

Representatives from the Braintree Police
Department, the Norfolk County Sheriff’s
Department, the Mayor’s Office and the SafetyNet
division of LoJack will be on hand
to demonstrate the SafetyNet bracelet, a peace of
mind, and possibly life saving device for the
caregivers of children with special needs and adults
with memory impairment. The Rotary Club has
established a fund to help alleviate the expense of
these devices for those in need in our community.

For more information call Joanne Tully: 781-664-9064


https://www.safetynetbylojack.com/

THOMAS M. BOWES
Vice President
District 3

CHARLES C. KOKOROS
President
District 1

HENRY N. JOYCE

LELAND A. DINGEE District 4

At Large

RONALD E. DENAPOLI
District 5

SEAN E. POWERS
At Large

CHARLES B. RYAN PAUL “DAN” CLIFFORD
At Large District 6

JouN €. MULLANEY OFFICE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL

District 2

February 26, 2013
MINUTES

A meeting of the Town Council was held in the Horace T. Cahill Auditorium, Braintree Town Hall, on
Tuesday, February 26, 2013 beginning at 7:30p.m.

Council President Kokoros was in the chair.
The Clerk of the Council conducted the roll call.

Present: Charles Kokoros, President
Thomas Bowes, Vice President
Leland Dingee
Sean Powers
Charles Ryan
John Mullaney
Henry Joyce
Paul Dan Clifford

Not Present: Ronald DeNapoli

Others: Joseph Sullivan, Mayor
Peter Morin, Chief of Staff
Carolyn, Murray, Town Solicitor
Edward Spellman, Finance Director
Russell Jenkins, Police Chief
Christine Stickney, Director Planning & Community Development
Sharmila Biswas, Director of Elder Affairs
Barbara Mello, Grant Writer
Peter Kurzberg, Superintendent of Schools
Erick Erskine, Building Division
Joseph Powers, Town Clerk
Carl Johnson, Attorney for Hancock Street Realty Trust
Thomas Pattavina, Property Owner



CORRESPONDENCE

None

ANNOUNCEMENTS

e 004 13 Council President: Sustainable Braintree — 5" Annual Green Gala
° Councilor Ryan: Run for Charlotte

° Councilor Joyce: Recreational Department — Upcoming Events

° Councilor Powers: Retirement Celebration — Dr. Peter Kurzberg
o Council President: Status Update on Councilor DeNapoli

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
e February5, 2013

Motion: by Councilor Bowes to approve minutes of February 5, 2013
Second: by Councilor Ryan
Discussion: Councilor Clifford submitted corrections on Order 12 035
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

CITIZEN CONCERNS/COUNCIL RESPONSE
None

COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS FROM THE MAYOR
e 005 13 Mayor: State of the Town Address

Mayor Sullivan presented his State of the Town Address. He spoke of the many improvements that
have been made over the last five years; improving schools, adding teachers, updating buildings and
adding full-day kindergarten; improvements in public safety with new leadership, new personnel and
new equipment; and, improvements with public works; resurfacing hundreds of roads and enhancing
recreational facilities. Mayor Sullivan commented that the financial health of the Town is better than
many communities with a improved bond rating, increased reserves (512.9 million versus $2.4 million
in 2008); improved services in the town; and an enhanced PILOT payment from BELD ($2.5 million
versus $750,000 in 2008). Through enhanced revenues the town was able to absorb reductions in
state aid from $7.7 million in FY2008 to $4.9 million in FY13. Mayor Sullivan noted that the review of
the skating rink and Peterson Pool has been completed and construction will begin sometime this
year. Lastly, Mayor Sullivan stated a resolution of the Tri-Town water treatment plant needs to be
reached. For the last five years he has worked in good faith with neighboring communities of
Randolph and Holbrook to develop a mutually acceptable plan to shares the costs of the design and
construction of a replacement treatment plan. The time has come for Holbrook and Randolph to
make the determination whether they wish to work with Braintree or part ways as friends. If an
agreement is not reached an alternative option must be explored.



OLD BUSINESS

Committee on Ways & Means

(PUBLIC HEARING)

13 002 Mayor: Request for Appropriation — Community Preservation Fund: Monatiquot
Riverwalk

Motion: by Councilor Bowes to open public hearing on Order 13 002
Second: by Councilor Ryan
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

Councilor Clifford, Chairman of the Ways & Means Committee, reported that a detailed overview
of the riverwalk project was presented by Christine Stickney and the committee has
recommended favorable action on the funding request.

Councilor President Kokoros asked if any member of the Council or public had any other
comments they would like to present. No one came forward.

Motion: by Councilor Bowes to close public hearing on Order 13 002
Second: by Councilor Ryan
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

Councilor Bowes read the motion as printed in the January 16, 2013 memo from Mayor Sullivan.
Motion: by Councilor Bowes to approve Order 13 002

Second: by Councilor Ryan
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

Committee on Committee on Ordinance & Rules

12 049 Hancock Street Realty Trust — Petition to Rezone 107 Hancock Street from
Residence B to General Business

Motion: by Councilor Bowes to open public hearing on Order 12 049
Second: by Councilor Ryan
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

Councilor Powers, Chairman of the Ordinance & Rules Committee, reported that the committee
has recommended favorable action on the zoning request for 107 Hancock Street.



Carl Johnson, Attorney for Hancock Street Realty Trust, explained that the property subject to this
rezone petition is located at 107 Hancock Street and consists of a portion of the lot shown on
Assessor’s Map 1009, Lot 68 that contains 44,083 square feet of land, of which 30,166 square feet
is zoned Residence B and the remaining 13,833 square feet zoned General Business. Attorney
Johnson commented that adjacent properties are similarly situated as split lots and the historic
use of the adjacent properties has been predominately business use. He further commented that
the original structure, a market, was demolished in 1989 and the property has remained vacant
since that time. In 1979 the Zoning Board of Appeals granted permission to use the Resident B
land area for business use. In 1981 a building permit was issued to construct an addition to an
existing structure at 107 Hancock Street. However, the addition was never constructed. Granting
the change in zoning classification would allow a redevelopment parcel that could accommodate a
new neighborhood business development. However, at this time a timeline for redevelopment is
unknown. Attorney Johnson noted that an understanding to provide protection during the
planning process has been reached with residents abutting the property.

Councilor President Kokoros asked if any member of the Council or public had any other
comments they would like to present. No one came forward.

Motion: by Councilor Powers to close public hearing on Order 12 049
Second: by Councilor Ryan
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

Councilor Bowes read the following motion:

At the request of Dr. Vincent Pattavina and Mrs. O. Frances Pattavina, Trustees of Hancock
Street Realty Trust, owner of 107 Hancock Street, Braintree, MA, that the Town Council vote to
amend the Town’s Zoning Map, as most recently amended, by re-zoning from Residence B
Zoning District to General Business Zoning District a portion of the lot commonly known as 107
Hancock Street in Braintree and identified on the Town of Braintree Assessors Map 1009, Plot
68. The entire parcel contains approximately 44,049 square feet of land, of which 30,166
square feet of land is currently within the Residence B Zoning District and the balance of
13,883 of land is within a General Business Zoning District. The portion of the parcel to be re-
zoned to the General Business Zoning District is the 30,166 SF portion of the lot currently
within the Residence B Zoning District, as shown on a plan entitled “Zoning Change Plan, 107
Hancock Street, Braintree, MA 02184” prepared for 107 Hancock, LLC, 232 West Street,
Braintree, MA, dated August 17, 2012, prepared by Alpha Surveying and Engineering Inc. as
submitted with the petitioner’s application for re-zoning filed with the Town Council on
October 15, 2012, as on file with the Office of the Town Clerk, and as described as follows:



Legal Description of 107 Church Street, Braintree:

A certain parcel of land situated in Braintree, Norfolk County, Massachusetts, now being know
and numbered as 107 Hancock Street, being shown on a certain map entitled “Zoning Change
Plan”, duly recorded with Norfolk Deeds as Plan No. 732 of 1987, in Book 370, bounded and
described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the southerly lot line being S76° 12°12”°W ninety-eight (98) feet more or
less from the drill hole previously mentioned on the west side of Hancock Street thence; S76°
12°12”W (88) feet more or less, being and overall distance of one hundred eighty-five and fifty-
seven hundredths (185.57) feet, thence; S59° 49°00”W twenty-four and eighty-six hundredths
(24.86) feet to a mag spike set, thence; N24° 48°33”W one hundred ten and twenty-seven
hundredths (110.27) feet to an iron rod with a cap set, thence; N00° 26°00”W sixty-seven and
ninety-three hundredths (67.93) feet to an iron rod with a cap set, thence; N63° 04°13”E forty-
six and eleven hundredths (46.11) feet to an iron rod with a cap set, thence; N14° 15°55"W
ninety-six and eight-six hundredths (96.86) feet to an iron rod with a cap set, thence; N74°
37°30”E seventy-two and twenty-one hundredths (72.21) feet to a stone post with a drill hole
found, thence; S01° 18°05”E one hundred fifteen and ninety hundredths (115.90) feet to an iron
rod with a cap set, thence; N87° 18’26 E sixty-three (63) feet more or less to a corner, thence;
S00° 26°00”E one hundred fifty-six (156) feet more or less to the point of beginning. Said
portion of the LOT contains 30.166x S.F. meaning and intending to describe that portion of
Assessors Map 1009 Lot 68 which is not currently zoned as General Business.

Motion: by Councilor Bowes to approve Order 12 049
Second: by Councilor Ryan
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS FROM TOWN BOARDS

008 13 Council President: Resolution in Support of the Preservation of Tax-Exempt Financing

James Regan, Chairman of the Braintree Electric Light Commission, requested that the Town
Council support, and offer a resolution, in support of the preservation of tax-exempt financing.

Councilor Bowes read the following resolution:

WHEREAS, municipal bonds are the means by which state and local governments finance the critical
infrastructure of our nation, including roads, bridges, hospitals, schools and utility systems; and

WHEREAS, under current law the owners of municipal bonds are not required to pay federal income
tax on the interest income they receive from the bonds; and

WHEREAS, this tax exemption is part of a more than century-long system of reciprocal immunity
under which owners of federal bonds are, in turn, not required to pay state and local income tax on the
interest they receive from federal bonds; and

WHEREAS, this federal tax exemption provides a significant difference between public sector and
private sector debt financing; and



WHEREAS, municipalities benefit from this tax exemption through substantial savings on the interest
cost of borrowed money; and

WHEREAS, the benefit of lower capital costs attributable to tax exempt financing are passed on to
property taxpayers through reduced rates, greater local investments, or both; and

WHEREAS, from time to time Congress and the President have proposed legislation to tax — or alter
the federal tax exemption of — interest on municipal bonds; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Braintree Town Council opposes any efforts by
Congress and this, or any future, President to eliminate or limit the federal tax exemption on interest
earned from municipal bonds.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution shall be sent to our Congressional
Representatives and key members of the Administration and shall be submitted to the American Public
Power Association, Municipal Electric Utilities of Massachusetts and Northeast Public Power
Association in support of future debate and action on preserving tax-exempt financing.

Motion: by Councilor Bowes to adopt resolution 008 13
Second: by Councilor Powers
Vote: For (8), Against (0), Absent (1-DeNapoli)

NEW BUSINESS

e None

ADJOURNMENT

It was unanimously voted to adjourn the meeting at 8:41p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
James M. Casey
Clerk of the Council



Documents provided for Meeting

February 5, 2013 Minutes
13 002 Mayor: Request for Appropriation — Community Preservation Fund: Monatiquot Riverwalk
12 049 Hancock Street Realty Trust — Petition to Rezone 107 Hancock Street from
Residence B to General Business
005 13 Mayor: State of the Town Address
008 13 Council President: Resolution in Support of the Preservation of Tax-Exempt Financing
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Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway

Suite 101
Wakefield, MA 01880
T. 781-914-1700
To the Honorable Mayor and the Town Council F. 781-914-1701
Town of Braintree, Massachusetts www.powersandsullivan.com

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2012. Our opinions on the
financial statements and this report, insofar as they relate to the Braintree Electric Light Department, are based
solely on the report of other auditors. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts (Town) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the
Town'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the Town’s financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town'’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town'’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. However,
as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a mater misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
following deficiencies in the Town’s internal control to be significant deficiencies:

The Treasurer’s office has been operating for several years without a full staff. Because of the staffing issues
cash receipts have not been posted in a timely manner and monthly reconciliations of cash and accounts
receivable have also not been done on a timely basis.

During our audit we also became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and
suggestions concerning those matters.

The Town’s written responses to the significant deficiencies and other matters identified in our audit have not
been subjected to the audit procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.



This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Mayor and the Town
Council, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

friery ¥ /ﬂ%,,,/ LLe

December 12, 2012
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OTHER MATTERS PREVIOUSLY
REPORTED



SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

TREASURY OPERATIONS

Previous Comment

Since fiscal year 2009 and continuing through fiscal year 2012, the Treasurer's office has been operating with
less than a full staff. The Treasurer’s position has turned over 3 times and certain tasks have not been completed
on a consistent basis including the timely postings of cash receipts to the general ledger and monthly
reconciliations of cash and accounts receivables to the general ledger balances and to the Accountant’'s
balances. The department has retained the help of a part-time outside consultant to assist in getting the cash
postings and bank reconciliations brought up-to-date but this situation continues to exist.

Continuing Recommendation

In order to strengthen internal controls over financial reporting and to safeguard the Town's assets we
recommend that management should take whatever actions may be necessary to ensure that the day-to-day
activities of the Treasury Department are being completed on a timely basis and that detailed reconciliations with
the general ledger balances and with other departments are occurring on a routine basis as prescribed by
management.

Management’s Response/Current Status

The Town has hired an experienced Treasurer/Collector who took office the beginning of July 2010. The position
has been filled again with another experienced individual who started in the fall of 2012. Continued improvements
are being made to the cash receipts and reporting system. We have been working with the software company on
a new treasurer receipts software package that will improve the efficiency of the cash receipts process.

Significant improvements have been made in the tax collector’'s accounts receivables procedures including the
direct input of payments over the counter in to the accounts receivable software and more timely reconciliation of
the detailed receivables to the general ledger. The goal for FY2013 is to have the detail of cash and accounts
receivable reconciled to the ledger on a monthly basis.

OTHER MATTERS
INTERNAL CONTROL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

Continuing Comment

We noted that most departments do not maintain a formal internal control policy and procedures manual
documenting day-to-day processing and controls. Recently the Town has experienced turnover in several
departments while at the same time significant operational changes are being implemented including a new
Town-wide general ledger software conversion and within the public works department and in the water and
sewer fund. The Town is at risk if critical tasks cannot be completed due to extended or unforeseen absences
and for undocumented operational changes. A formal internal control policy and procedures manual would assist
each department head with training, documenting, and assuring the continuity of operational policies and
procedures that have been approved by management.



Continuing Recommendation

We recommend that each department head develop an internal control policy and procedures manual that
includes proper reviews and approvals by management. The document should be written with sufficient detail to
allow a new employee the ability to complete the task by reviewing its respective directions. This document
should be updated for any system or policy changes. A master manual of all procedures should be maintained
and stored in a secure location. In addition, all department heads should be familiar with all policies and
procedures within their office and be able to complete all necessary tasks in order to sufficiently train employees.

Management’'s Response

We agree with the comment as this has been demonstrated by the turnover in key staff positions in certain
departments. Management will address this over the next fiscal year.

IDENTIFICATION AND REPORTING OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Continuing Comment

The Town is required to prepare the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) each year as part of the
Single Audit requirements. The SEFA reports the total federal awards expended for the fiscal year being audited,
by program name and Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (CFDA). The SEFA must also indicate if
the funds were received directly from a federal agency, or if applicable, the pass-through entity’s name. The
Town expends approximately $4.3 million in federal funds each year from a variety of programs. The Town does
not have a strong system in place to readily provide the necessary information to complete the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards.

This schedule is currently populated based on information gathered from several websites and from review of the
expenditures reported in the general ledger. As a result, there is a risk that the Town could unintentionally

misclassify a state award, or omit a federal award from being reported on the SEFA.

Continuing Recommendation

We recommend that the Town develops policies and procedures that will ensure that all federal awards are
identified as awarded, and that all of the pertinent information is provided to the Town Accountant prior to
accounts being setup on the general ledger to account for the programs. A specific sequence of fund numbers
should be designated on the Town’s general ledger to separately account for federal and state awards. This
would provide greater efficiency in the preparation of the report and reduce the risk of error in the reporting of
federal awards expended.

Management’'s Response

We agree and will schedule a meeting with our School Department (our largest recipient of Federal funds) and
develop policies and procedures to identify and classify Federal funds received and expended. We will see if it is
possible to record the CFDA number in the grant title field. Once we have developed these policies and
procedures with the School Department we will be implementing them in all departments receiving Federal funds.



CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS



ACCOUNTING FOR TRUST FUNDS

Comment

The Town is not consistently classifying trust fund activity in the general ledger. There were several instances
where receipts were posted to investment income but should have been classified as transfers in or as
contributions. As a result, there were audit adjustments made as part of the audit to properly classify these
transactions. We also noted several instances where bank deposits were not posted to the general ledger side at
all.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Town make timely entries into their general ledger to account for the trust fund deposits
and reconcile these accounts on a monthly basis.

Management’'s Response

We agree with this recommendation and have implemented procedures beginning with the installation of the new
accounting system as of July 1, 2012 to address these matters as part of our normal day-to-day activities.

BUDGET RECONCILIATION AND ROLE OF THE TOWN ACCOUNTANT
Comment

Every year, as required by Massachusetts General Law, the Town adopts a balanced budget upon approval by
Town Council. Changes or transfers made subsequent to the approval of this annual budget occur frequently
throughout the year. The Town Accountant enters the original approved budget into their general ledger software
for the beginning of the fiscal year along with any council orders made throughout the year. However, the Town
does not maintain any type of crosswalk to prove the amount recording in the general ledger to the amounts voted
by Town Council. The Town Accountant should have a more significant role in monitoring the budget and working
with the departments to compare budgeted to actual results. This comparison should be done monthly so that the
budget can be properly monitored.

Recommendation

We recommend the Town Accountant have a more significant role in managing the budget process and that
management should improve procedures for monitoring the budget with all concerned parties throughout the year.

Management’'s Response

The Town Auditor has developed a document that the Town Accountant can modify slightly and the modified form
can be used to tie out the general ledger totals and detail to the Town Council actions on a monthly basis.



Informational Comment

FUTURE GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) STATEMENTS FOR PENSIONS AND
OPEB

Comment

The GASB has issued new pronouncements that will significantly affect the accounting and reporting
requirements for Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). These new standards will start to phase
in during fiscal year 2013 and will substantially impact your financial statements and will also affect the
requirements for accumulating the necessary data to meet the reporting requirements.

The new standards that have been issued and their effective dates are as follows:

e The GASB issued Statement #63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2013.

e The GASB issued Statement #65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required
to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

e The GASB issued Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

e The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2015.

The GASB is expected to issue additional standards following #67 & #68 for Pensions, which will similarly affect
accounting and financial reporting for OPEB Plans. The GASB is encouraging earlier application of these
standards.

To briefly summarize these new standards —

» GASB #63 and GASB #65 will require reporting each of the financial position elements in a separate
section in the statements of financial position. These elements are Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities,
Deferred Inflows, and Net Position; where assets + deferred inflows — liabilities — deferred inflows = net
position. These new requirements will affect certain aspects of the financial statements currently and
they will pave the way for the new reporting requirements of the new Pension and OPEB standards.

» GASB #67 and #68 will substantially change the reporting for pension liabilities and expenses. Changes
in pension liability will be immediately recognized as pension expense or reported as deferred
outflows/inflows of resources depending on the nature of the changes. Substantial changes to methods
and assumptions used to determine actuarial information for GAAP reporting purposes will be required.
Current actuarial methods may continue to be used to determine funding amounts. Employers will report
in their financial statements a net pension liability (asset) determined annually as of the fiscal year end.
Net pension liability (asset) equals the total pension liability for the plan net of the plan net position.
Pension liability is the actuarial present value of projected benefits attributed to past service, and plan net
position is the accumulated plan assets net of any financial statement liabilities of the plan.

The Town should expect to record significant pension and OPEB liabilities in the future.



Recommendation

We recommend that management begin to study and evaluate these changes for financial statement reporting
and disclosure purposes, and to formulate plans to meet with your actuaries and financial advisers as more
information becomes available. You may want to consider how and when this information should be
communicated to your constituents and other financial statement users.

Management’'s Response

Management will begin to study and evaluate the impact of GASB’s hew pronouncement to the financial
statements.
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Edward J. Spellman, Jr. Mayor

Director of Finance

TOWN OF BRAINTREE
DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE
One JFK Memorial Drive, Braintree, MA 02184
Tel: 781-794-8035 Fax: 781-794-8181

Letter of Transmittal

December 12, 2012
To the Honorable Town Council and Citizens of the Town of Braintree:

State law requires the Town of Braintree to publish at the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
that are audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, | hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 for your review.

The report is designed to be used by the elected and appointed officials of the Town and others who are
concerned with its management and progress such as bond analysts, banking institutions and credit raters. Just
as important, the design and format of this report is aimed at providing the residents and taxpayers of Braintree a
more easily readable and, therefore, a more easily understandable financial report.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town of Braintree.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. In order to provide a reasonable basis for making
these financial representations, management continues to review and improve its established comprehensive
internal controls. The framework for these controls is designed to protect, to the extent possible, the
government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse. The cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits.
As a result, the Town of Braintree's comprehensive framewaork of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012,
are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.

The Town of Braintree’s financial statements have been audited by Powers & Sullivan, LLC, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the Town of Braintree for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Town of
Braintree’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town of Braintree was part of a broader, federally

mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of
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the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of
federal awards. These reports are available in the Town of Braintree’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

This CAFR is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and Statistical. This Introductory Section
contains this transmittal letter along with the Town'’s organizational chart and principal officials. The Financial
Section contains the report of our independent auditor, a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
section, and the financial statements and related notes. Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require
that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of an MD&A. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A where the
financial analysis is now presented. The Town's MD&A can be found immediately following the independent
auditor’s report from Powers & Sullivan, LLC. The Town of Braintree is responsible for the accuracy of the
financial statements as well as their completeness and fairness. We believe the statements are accurate in all
material aspects and that they fairly set forth the financial position of the Town. The Statistical Section contains,
in most cases, a ten-year history of trends of both financial and demographic data.

Profile of the Town

The Town of Braintree is a suburban community with a strong residential character located twelve miles south of
Boston, with a land area of 14.52 square miles. Incorporated in 1640, Braintree has a rich history. Old Braintree
was the birthplace of two presidents, John Adams and John Quincy Adams, as well as John Hancock and
General Sylvanus Thayer, the founder of West Point. The Town is ideally situated at the crossroads of Route 1-93
(128) and Route 3 for easy access to the Greater Boston area and Cape Cod as well as having excellent public
transportation to Boston and Logan International Airport.

There is a strong business base which includes one of the largest regional shopping centers in the northeast; the
South Shore Plaza. Attractive office and industrial parks are located in the Town as well, because of its ideal
location.

The Town offers a full range of services including police and fire protection, education, maintenance of streets
and infrastructure, solid waste collection and disposal, health and human services, cultural and recreational,
administrative and financial services.

The Town operates under a Mayor and Town Council form of government. A nine-member Town Council, 3
members are elected at large and 6 district members, serves as a representative legislature.

The School Committee consisting of 6 elected members and the Mayor, appoint the School Superintendent who
administers the public school system of the Town.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The Town of Braintree continues to reflect a strong local economic condition through the recent fiscal crisis. The
per capita income continues to rise and outpace the state averages. The Town also has a low comparable
unemployment rate.

The Town remains a very desirable community and this is reflected in the strong residential sales market, which
have regained their pre-fiscal crisis levels. The Town offers a unique mix of proximity to Boston and major
highways and transportation, while maintaining a desirable residential community. The Town offers a broad
range of high quality services and an attractive quality of life.

The growth of the Town’s main source of revenues, property taxes, is capped by Proposition 2% and can only be
overridden by a majority vote at a Town election. While revenue increases have been limited in recent years, tax
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base growth was enhanced by commercial construction. This helped offset the steady increases in fixed costs,
including health insurance and pension costs, which have increased substantially. On the Town’s operating side,
the FY12 budgets and service level were maintained through a modest 2% increase in the operating budget. This
allowed the Town to continue to provide high quality services while minimizing the impact on the property tax
burden.

The Town continues to manage its financial affairs in a prudent manner, primarily through considerable long-term
planning and strong financial policies. It has maintained a high bond rating even with the overall unsettled
economy. It has been able to do so by incorporating long range planning tools such as a five-year Capital
Improvement Program; maintaining reserve balances despite tight budgets; investing in technology to ensure
efficient operations; negotiating sustainable collective bargaining agreements, and maintaining an aggressive pay
as you go financing strategy for capital improvements. The Town'’s long-term policies will preserve its strong
financial position for the foreseeable future.

In FY12, the Town continued to demonstrate its commitment to the Financial Policy of maintaining and building an
appropriate reserve account. Despite a tight budget process, the Town did not use any funding from the reserves
in its continued commitment to increase these.

The Town has remained dedicated to an aggressive retirement of debt policy. Whenever possible, debt is issued
for shorter time periods than allowed, typically ten years. The Town monitors and schedules retirement and
issuance of debt to ensure that debt service does not exceed 10% of the operating budget to ensure availability of
resources for ongoing operations.

The Town contributes to the Braintree Contributory Retirement System, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan (Plan) administered by the Braintree Contributory Retirement Board. Every two years, an
independent actuary engaged by the Board calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the Town must
make to the pension plan to ensure its ability to fully meet its obligations to retired employees. As required by
law, the Town fully funds each year’s annual required contribution to the pension plan as determined by the
actuary. As of January 1, 2010, the latest actuarial valuation date, the System had succeeded in funding 67.6%
of the present value of the projected benefits earned by employees. The remaining unfunded amount is being
systematically funded over the remaining 20 years as part of the annual required contribution as calculated by the
actuary.

The Town also provides postemployment health care benefits for certain retirees and their dependents. There are
approximately 900 retired employees receiving these benefits, which are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.
GAAP now requires the Town to conduct an actuarial valuation to determine the unfunded liability and to
recognize the annual cost of reducing this liability in addition to the current year benefits. The Town’s most recent
actuarial valuation is dated January 1, 2012. If the Town is unable to fund the minimum annual contribution as
determined by the actuarial valuation, the unpaid amount will be required to be recorded as a liability on the
financial statements of the Town.

Financial and Management Systems

Internal Controls

The Mayor and Director of Municipal Finance of the Town are responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure the assets of the Town are protected from loss, theft or misuse and
to ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The Director of Municipal Finance is responsible for
evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control structure and implementing improvements.
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Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town of Braintree’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement.

Budgetary Controls

The Mayor is responsible for preparing and presenting the budget to the Town Council. The Council, having the
authority to amend down and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority
vote.

The level of budgetary control is established by Town Council and defines the level at which expenditures may
not exceed appropriations. This level is typically at the individual department program level. The Town
Accountant is responsible for ensuring all payroll and invoices are within the budgetary control level before
authorizing payment. Additional appropriations may be approved by Town Council throughout the fiscal year.
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Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Suite 101
Wakefield, MA 015850
T. 781-914-1700
Independent Auditors’ Report F781.914.1701

. www.powersandsullivan.com
To the Honorable Mayor and the Town Council
Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (except for the Braintree Contributory
Retirement System and the Braintree Electric Light Department which are as of and for the year ended December
31, 2011), which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts' management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Braintree Electric Light Department as of December 31, 2011. The Braintree Electric
Light Department is a major fund and reflects approximately 77% of the total assets, 64% of the net assets, and
approximately 83% of the total revenues of the business-type activities. Those financial statements were audited
by another auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the business-type activities of the Braintree Electric Light Department, is based solely on the
report of another auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of
another auditor provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of another auditor, the financial statements referred to previously
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2012 (except for the Braintree Contributory Retirement System and the Braintree
Electric Light Department which are as of December 31, 2011), and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12, 2012 on
our consideration of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Town of Braintree’s basic financial statements. The combining statements, as listed in the table of contents,
are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financials
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The introductory section and statistical tables, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for the purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

fowsy ¥ Saklr, LEE

December 12, 2012
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Braintree, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider
the information presented in this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in whole dollars.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Braintree’s basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Town as a whole. The fund financial
statements focus on the individual components of the Town government, reporting the Town’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements. Both presentations (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the Town’s accountability. An
additional part of the basic financial statements are the notes to the financial statements. The report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, sanitation, community preservation,
human services, culture and recreation, and interest. The business-type activities include the water and sewer,
golf course, and electric light activities.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the Town of Braintree itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public employee retirement system for which the Town of Braintree is
financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately within the fiduciary
fund statements.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
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Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town of Braintree adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The Town’s general fund is shown separately and the remaining governmental funds are aggregated and shown
as nonmajor governmental funds.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains two types of propriety funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer, golf course and
electric light activities.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among various
functions. The Town uses internal service funds to account for health insurance activities.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Financial Highlights.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
Town of Braintree’s governmental assets exceeded liabilities for governmental activities by $51.6 million and the
business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $89.6 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. Key
components of the Town’s activities are presented below.

Governmental Activities

2012 2011
Assets:
CUIMENT @SSELS. ...t it it ceeeee e et ee e e aeeeaneaes $ 57,242,485 $ 57,352,006
Capital assets, non depreciable................ccoovviiiiinis 14,794,468 13,755,668
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation............ 56,742,522 47,915,441
Total @SSELS ... iviii it i 128,779,475 119,023,115
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt).............c.cooeee v 10,635,015 10,022,691
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).......................... 43,778,115 37,091,036
Current debt.........oooiii i 2,560,568 2,285,878
Noncurrent debt.........coooiiiiiii 20,165,003 16,880,000
Total liabilitieS.......cooi i 77,138,701 66,279,605
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debit............... 52,564,200 47,910,553
ReSHCtEd. ... 19,081,454 18,984,718
UNrestricted.......coov i e (20,004,880) (14,151,761)
Total Net @SSetS....cvoveiiiii et $ 51,640,774 $ 52,743,510

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $52.6 million reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the net assets $19.1 million represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets resulted in a $20 million deficit
mainly relating to the cumulative effect of recording $42 million of other postemployment benefit liabilities through
June 30, 2012.
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2012 2011
Program revenues:
Charges for SErviCeS.......ovviii i i e 7,507,858 7,629,799
Operating grants and contributions............................ 33,518,827 33,221,854
Capital grants and contributions................c.coovv i, 4,773,929 3,793,516
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes...................... 69,679,306 68,085,843
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes..............ccoovevene . 4,039,432 4,284,625
Hotel/motel taX.......c.vouviii e e, 784,781 718,452
Nonrestricted grantS...........ccoevie i it e e, 4,989,211 4,949,885
Unrestricted investment income.............ccccoevveeieennns, 215,677 267,612
Other reVENUES.......ouiiie e e 1,118,801 1,162,109
Total reVENUES....c.oi i e 126,627,822 124,113,695
Expenses:
General goOVErMMENT........cvviieiiieeiie e e eeeeeeeeas 6,120,306 6,219,480
Public safety... ..o 22,644,632 22,731,221
BEdUCAtION. .. ..ot e e e 87,632,097 85,120,589
PUDBIC WOTKS ... e e e e 6,258,439 7,075,816
SaANIALION. .. e e e e e e 1,734,699 1,421,972
Community preservation.............oooovviiiiiieiie i e 168,276 76,049
HUMAN SEIVICES... ..ot e e 1,108,036 1,064,014
Culture and recreation.............ocvovveeiie i e, 3,685,605 3,733,359
11 (=T 668,246 620,316
Total EXPENSES ...ttt e 130,020,336 128,062,816
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers............ccooooieinnn. (3,392,514) (3,949,121)
TrAN S OIS ittt e e e e 2,289,778 2,284,796
Change in Net aSSetS.......coiviiiiiiriiii e $ (1,102,736) $ (1,664,325)

The governmental net assets decreased by $1.1 million during the current fiscal year as compared to a decrease
of $1.7 million in the prior year. The decrease in net assets is mainly attributable to the recording of an additional
$6.7 million in other postemployment benefit expenses. Total revenues increased approximately $2.5 million from
a $1 million land donation and from an increase in real estate and personal property taxes of $1.5 million.
Expenses increased approximately 1.5% mainly for educational expenses.
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Business-type Activities. Business-type activities decreased the Town'’s net assets by $2.2 million compared to
an increase of $1.8 million in the prior year. The change relates mainly to the Electric Light Department where
total revenues were $5.3 million less than the previous year. Total expenses were also less than the previous
year by approximately $1.6 million. The lower sales amounts in the current year were attributed to weather
related demand being lower.

The water and sewer fund was established in 1984 pursuant to an act establishing the water and sewer
commission. Water and sewer business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $31.9 million at the close of
fiscal year 2012. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt was $21.1 million (66%) while unrestricted net
assets were $10.8 million (34%). There was an increase of $8,000 in net assets compared to an increase of
$131,000 in the prior year.

Golf Course business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $698,000 at the close of fiscal year 2012.
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt was $1 million while unrestricted net assets were in a deficit in the
amount of $302,000. There was a decrease of $147,000 in net assets compared to a decrease of $53,000 in the
prior year. This decrease was mainly from the recognition of an additional $70,000 in other postemployment
benefit expenses.

Electric business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $57 million at December 31, 2011. Invested in
capital assets, net of related debt were $49.5 million (87%) and unrestricted net assets were $7.5 million (13%).
There was a decrease of $2.1 million in net assets compared to an increase of $1.7 in the prior year.

Business-type Activities

2012 2011
Assets:
CUIMENE ASSBES ... ettt e e e e e e $ 45,639,646 $ 49,864,452
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital)....................... 858,466 842,884
Capital assets, non depreciable.....................c....o... 3,171,802 4,034,479
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation......... 196,162,194 194,447,509
Total ASSELS .. vttt 245,832,108 249,189,324
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)..................coooeel. 8,596,632 7,337,240
Non-current liabilities (excluding debt)...................... 15,405,823 14,418,717
Currentdebt.......cciiiii 7,943,963 7,392,048
Noncurrentdebt..........coi i 124,273,959 128,209,297
Total llabilities.......ovi i 156,220,377 157,357,302
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............. 71,591,338 69,022,850
UNrestricted.......oevie e e e 18,020,393 22,809,172
Total Net ASSELS....cvivivie it $ 89,611,731 $ 91,832,022
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2012 2011
Program revenues:
Charges for SEerviCes.........ooovvviiiiii i e, 84,207,284 89,035,491
Other reVENUES. ...t i e 891,460 1,398,980
Operating grants and contributions.......................... - 215,783
Capital grants and contributions............................. 281,643 -
General Revenues:
Unrestricted investment income..............ccoovevvene 55,743 244,779
Total revVenUEeS........oieiii i 85,436,130 90,895,033
Expenses:
Water and SEWEK .......c.vuiie i e 12,960,228 12,992,288
GOIf COUISE... e e 1,510,491 1,400,980
Electric Light...... oo e 70,895,924 72,454,533
Total EXPENSES...cvi ittt e e 85,366,643 86,847,801
Excess before transfers..........cocovviiiii i, 69,487 4,047,232
TrANS OIS ittt e (2,289,778) (2,284,796)
Change in Net asSetS......c.covvvieiiiiiiiieiie e $ (2,220,291) $ 1,762,436

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements. In
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $39.7
million, which represents an increase of $517,000 from the prior year. The general fund increased by $2.1 million
and the nonmajor funds decreased by $1.6 million.

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $15.8 million, while total fund balance was $17 million. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14.1% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 15.2% of that same amount.

General fund revenues increased by $3.5 million or approximately 3.2% over the previous year. These increases
came mainly from real estate taxes and intergovernmental revenues for the schools. Expenditures increased by
just over $4 million or approximately 3.7% from virtually all categories. The deficit in expenditures over revenues
collected was offset by budgeted transfers from the enterprise funds for administration and for a payment in-lieu
of taxes made by the Electric Light Department. The net change in fund balance for the year was an increase of
$2.1 million, compared to an increase in the prior of $2.3 million.
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Proprietary funds. The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Town’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Town of Braintree adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided as required supplementary information for the general fund to demonstrate
compliance with this budget.

Actual revenues came in higher than budgeted by approximately $927,000 or just less than 1%. The largest area
of surplus was departmental and other of $796,000 due to more building permits being issued than projected.

Actual expenditures came in $1.1 million less than budgeted. All departments realized budget savings except for
state and county assessments, which under state law, is allowed to deficit spend.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
In conjunction with the operating budget, the Town annually prepares capital budgets for the upcoming fiscal year.

During fiscal year 2012 the Town expended $11.9 million on governmental activities capital assets, in addition to
accepting several parcels of land donated to the Town valued at approximately $1,039,000. The expenditures
consisted mainly of roadway improvements. The business type activities expended $11.1 million during 2012.
This consisted mainly of $7.6 million on the new power plant at the electric light plant and $3.5 million water mains
in the water and sewer fund.

Outstanding long-term debt of the governmental activities, as of June 30, 2012, totaled $22.2 million, of which
$12.7 million is related to public building construction, $5.9 million relates to road construction, $1.6 million relates
to land acquisition, and $2.0 million relates to other projects.

The enterprise fund has $21.9 million in water and sewer enterprise debt and $101.9 million in Electric Light debt
that is fully supported by the rates and do not rely on a general fund subsidy.

During fiscal year 2012 the Town issued long-term general obligation bonds in the amounts of $5.3 million for
governmental funds, and $3.4 million for the water and sewer enterprise fund.

Please refer to Notes 4, 6, 7, and 8 of the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the major
capital and debt activity, respectively.
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Braintree’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Municipal Finance, Town
Hall, One JFK Memorial Drive, Braintree, Massachusetts 02184.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equIValENtS. ............ccieiiirior i $ 41,402,953 $ 30,286,959 $ 71,689,912
INVESEMENES ... vttt e et e e et e e 7,091,800 - 7,091,800
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes..............c.cccceeeeeieeeee 2,094,593 - 2,094,593
Tax liens 647,985 50,543 698,528
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 544,447 - 544,447
USBI fBBS. ..ttt et e e e e e - 9,159,973 9,159,973
Departmental and other. 428,214 485,502 913,716
Intergovernmental 4,154,212 - 4,154,212
Tax foreclosures.. e 78,281 - 78,281
Inventory - 3,829,502 3,829,502
Working capital deposit................iiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 800,000 - 800,000
Prepaid expenses - 525,673 525,673
Purchased power advanced deposits. - 1,301,494 1,301,494
Total CUIMENt @SSELS......uuuiit it et eee e et eee e e 57,242,485 45,639,646 102,882,131
NONCURRENT:
Investment in Hydro QUebec................coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis - 47,950 47,950
Investment in Energy New England . - 675,480 675,480
Other assets. . - 135,036 135,036
Capital assets, non depreciable................ccccoieeiiiiiiiiiii 14,794,468 3,171,802 17,966,270
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation........................... 56,742,522 196,162,194 252,904,716
Total NONCUITENE ASSELS......vviieiie it eeeeeeeee e e, 71,536,990 200,192,462 271,729,452
TOTAL ASSETS .ot e 128,779,475 245,832,108 374,611,583
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable.............oouiiiiiiiiiniii i 923,597 6,752,957 7,676,554
Accrued payroll.............ooooiiiiii 4,393,080 44,134 4,437,214
Health claims payable 1,175,000 - 1,175,000
Tax refunds payable.. 1,285,000 - 1,285,000
Accrued interest 99,890 104,857 204,747
Participant advances and reserves. . - 916,413 916,413
Other IabilitieS..........evieiit it e, 6,633 - 6,633
Unearned revenue 716,437 337,545 1,053,982
Capital lease obligations.. 63,388 239,171 302,559
Compensated absences.. 1,742,946 440,726 2,183,672
Workers' compensation... . 292,432 - 292,432
Bonds payable............ccooiiiiiiiiiii 2,497,180 7,704,792 10,201,972
Total current liabilities.............ccooeiiii e 13,195,583 16,540,595 29,736,178
NONCURRENT:
Capital lease obligations.............c..oiuiiiiiiiiiiiii 149,204 310,458 459,662
Customer deposits payable. - 639,500 639,500
Compensated absences 1,566,826 70,306 1,637,132
Workers' compensation 209,583 - 209,583
Unearned revenue....... . - 9,441,668 9,441,668
Other postemployment benefits...............ccccoiiiii 42,001,706 5,254,349 47,256,055
Bonds payable............ocoiiiiiiiiiii 20,015,799 123,963,501 143,979,300
Total noncurrent liabilities..............ccoovoieeiiiiiiiiii e 63,943,118 139,679,782 203,622,900
TOTAL LIABILITIES......oiiiiiiiiiiii e 77,138,701 156,220,377 233,359,078
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...............cccccoeeiiiiinin 52,564,200 71,591,338 124,155,538
Restricted for:
Permanent funds:
Expendable.... 8,159,027 - 8,159,027
Nonexpendable. 2,564,886 - 2,564,886
Grants and gifts........... 3,612,831 - 3,612,831
Community preservation . 4,744,710 - 4,744,710
UNTESHHCHEA. ... ..ot (20,004,880) 18,020,393 (1,984,487)
TOTAL NET ASSETS ...ttt $ 51,640,774 $ 89,611,731  $ 141,252,505

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Net (Expense)

Eunctions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government............c..o.cevveveneennes 6,120,306 $ 616,829 $ 163,327 1,038,800 $ (4,301,350)
Public safety........ccooiiiiii 22,644,632 2,378,405 395,096 - (19,871,131)
EdUucation..........ccovviiiiiiii e 87,632,097 2,017,758 32,289,115 1,346,266 (51,978,958)
Public WOrKS.......oiuiiiiiei e 6,258,439 553,002 181,143 2,240,500 (3,283,794)
SanItation........cccvvvveiiiii e 1,734,699 1,548,721 - - (185,978)
Community preservation......................... 168,276 - - 148,363 (19,913)
Human Services..........ccoccoviiniviininnnennn. 1,108,036 31,332 419,038 - (657,666)
Culture and recreation... 3,685,605 361,811 71,108 - (3,252,686)
INTEIEST...ei i 668,246 - - - (668,246)
Total Governmental Activities................ 130,020,336 7,507,858 33,518,827 4,773,929 (84,219,722)
Business-Type Activities:
Water and SeWEer..........ccuvvuviiviiieieieennnn 12,960,228 12,932,512 - 281,643 253,927
GOlf. 1,510,491 1,404,095 - - (106,396)
ElECHIC. . vniee i 70,895,924 70,762,137 - - (133,787)
Total Business-Type Activities............... 85,366,643 85,098,744 - 281,643 13,744
Total Primary Government.................... 215,386,979 $ 92,606,602 $ 33,518,827 5,055,572 $ (84,205,978)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Changes in net assets:
Net (expense) revenue from previous page............. $ (84,219,722) $ 13,744 $ (84,205,978)
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,

net of tax refunds payable............................. 69,679,306 - 69,679,306
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................. 4,039,432 - 4,039,432
Hotel/motel taX......c.ooev i i 784,781 - 784,781
Community preservation taX...........ccocvevvenineins 559,244 - 559,244
Penalties and interest on taxes...........cccoeeenenn... 371,394 - 371,394
Payments in lieu of taxes...........cccoevviiiiiinvinn, 118,112 - 118,112
Grants and contributions not restricted to

SPECIfiC Programs..........cocvvviiriii v aens 4,989,211 - 4,989,211
Unrestricted investment income........................ 215,677 55,743 271,420
MisCellaneous. .........covviiiiiiii e 70,051 - 70,051

Transfers, Net .....ocvv it 2,289,778 (2,289,778) -
Total general revenues and transfers..................... 83,116,986 (2,234,035) 80,882,951
Change in net assets...........cccovevieviiine e, (1,102,736) (2,220,291) (3,323,027)

Net Assets:
Beginning of year..........ccocooiiiiiii i 52,743,510 91,832,022 144,575,532
End ofyear........ooiiiii i $ 51,640,774 $ 89,611,731 $ 141,252,505
See notes to basic financial statements. (Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2012

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents..............cccooviiiiii i $ 21,627,516 $ 16,015,935 37,643,451
INVESIMENES . .. ..ttt e e e e et e e e 414,399 6,677,401 7,091,800
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes...........ccccoevevvvinnnnnnn. 2,094,593 - 2,094,593
TaAX HENS. et e e 646,064 1,921 647,985
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.............coovvviviiie i, 544,447 - 544,447
Departmental and other.............cocoovie i e 161,548 10,527 172,075
INtergovernmMeENtal..........oouviiveiee et e 154,376 3,999,836 4,154,212
TaX FOrECIOSUIES. ...ttt et et e e e e e e ee s 78,281 - 78,281
Due from other funds............coooiii i 1,422,839 - 1,422,839
TOT AL ASSET S ..ttt it e e e e e e $ 27,144,063 $ 26,705,620 53,849,683
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable..........coviii i $ 916,058 $ - 916,058
Accrued Payroll.... ..o 4,375,586 17,494 4,393,080
Tax refunds payable..........cc.coo v 1,285,000 - 1,285,000
Deferred reVeNUES. ......c..iv i e e e e 3,572,415 2,589,445 6,161,860
Due to Other fUNAS......cvi i e - 1,422,839 1,422,839
Other abilities......cov s 6,633 - 6,633
TOTAL LIABILITIES. .. .ottt e e e e, 10,155,692 4,029,778 14,185,470
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable............ooviiiii i - 2,564,886 2,564,886
RESHICEA. .. ..t e e - 20,110,956 20,110,956
ASSIGNEA. .. oottt e 1,140,720 - 1,140,720
UNASSIGNEA. ... ittt e e e e 15,847,651 - 15,847,651
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ...t e e 16,988,371 22,675,842 39,664,213
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..........ccciiiiiinns $ 27,144,063 $ 26,705,620 53,849,683

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Total governmental fund balanCes...........o.oi it $ 39,664,213

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.............cocoviiiiiii i, 71,536,990

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred inthe funds.............c.cooiiii e 5,445,423

Internal service funds are used by management to account for retirees'
health insurance and workers' compensation activities.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
the governmental activities in the statement of net assets................ccoccoveeienne. 3,633,102

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due......................ocees (99,890)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds

BONdS PAYabIe. ..... ..o (22,512,979)
Other postemployment BeNEfitS.........couiiriuniiii e (42,001,706)
Capital [ease obligations........ ... (212,592)
WOrKer' COMPENSALION. .. ...uu ittt et et et et e (502,015)
CompeNnSated ADSENCES. .. .. .ottt et e e e e (3,309,772)

Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities...... ..o (68,539,064)

Net assets of governmental aCtVItIES. .. ... ...ooiie it e e e e $ 51,640,774

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES:

Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds

TAX NS ..t

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes

Hotel/motel tax

Penalties and interest on taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes
Intergovernmental
Departmental and other
Community preservation

CONIDULIONS. .. ...t e e

Investment income

MISCEIIANEOUS. .. ...ttt e e e

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government
Public safety

EAUCALION. .. .o e

Public works

SANIALION. .. 1 .e ettt

Community development
Human services
recreation.............coveeiininnnnn
Pension benefits-Town
Pension benefits-Teachers
Property and liability insurance
Employee benefits
State and county charges

Culture and

Debt service:

PriNCIPAL. ..

Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Issuance of long-term debt
Premium from issuance of bonds
Capital lease financing

TrANSTEIS IN.. e e
TraNSTErS OUL... .. ie ittt e et e

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN

FUND BALANCES................

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS REVISED...............

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
69,729,818 $ - 8 69,729,818
77,774 - 77,774
4,081,969 - 4,081,969
784,781 - 784,781
371,394 - 371,394
118,112 - 118,112
30,870,356 10,657,877 41,528,233
4,890,956 3,194,805 8,085,761
- 559,244 559,244
- 453,433 453,433
167,156 (14,152) 153,004
- 17,564 17,564
111,092,316 14,868,771 125,961,087
3,497,526 1,800,542 5,298,068
15,549,043 1,633,314 17,182,357
50,827,010 13,176,974 64,003,984
3,796,829 3,774,060 7,570,889
1,726,367 - 1,726,367
- 643,366 643,366
664,913 152,801 817,714
2,432,532 451,183 2,883,715
5,046,381 - 5,046,381
12,736,422 - 12,736,422
428,125 - 428,125
8,840,249 - 8,840,249
3,571,252 - 3,571,252
2,200,000 - 2,200,000
686,619 - 686,619
112,003,268 21,632,240 133,635,508
(910,952) (6,763,469) (7,674,421)
- 5,286,000 5,286,000
307,702 61,502 369,204
246,395 - 246,395
2,432,033 263,839 2,695,872
- (406,094) (406,094)
2,986,130 5,205,247 8,191,377
2,075,178 (1,558,222) 516,956
14,913,193 24,234,064 39,147,257
16,988,371 $ 22,675,842 $ 39,664,213
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds................oii i $ 516,956

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

CAPItAl OULIAY . .. e e 11,938,962
[ Le] g Fo 1 (=0 = T £ 1,038,800
DEPrECIAtION EXPENSE ... ...ttt it e et e et et ettt e et et e (3,111,881)
Net effect of reporting capital @SSetS............oiviiiiiiiiiii e 9,865,881

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in deferred reVENUE. ... .. ...t e (372,065)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
firstissued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.

Principal payments on Capital @aSES. .. .......ovuii it 119,681
Proceeds from bonds @nd NOES..........oouuiiiiit it e (5,286,000)
Premium from issuance of bonds. (369,204)
Capital lease financing............ . (246,395)
Debt service prinCipal PAYMENTS. .. ... ... ittt et et e e e e eaaee 2,200,000
Net effect of reporting long-term debt..............oooiiii i (3,581,918)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.
Net change in compensated abSences aCCrual...............c.vuiiiiiii i e (198,796)
Net change in accrued interest on long-term debt..............coooiiiiiiiiiiiii s (3,852)
Net change in other postemployment benefits accrual. (6,729,879)
Net change in workers' compensation accrual........ . 34,554
Amortization of premium from issuance of DONAS.............oiiiiiiiiii 22,225
Net effect of recording long-term liabilities. .. ..........cccoeiiiii e, (6,875,748)
Internal service funds are used by management to account for health
insurance and workers' compensation activities.
The net activity of internal service funds is reported with Governmental Activities.............. (655,842)
Change in net assets of governmental aCtiVItieS. ...........o.uiuniiie i $ (1,102,736)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Electric Light Activities -
Water and Golf December 31, Internal Service
Sewer Course 2011 Total Fund
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents................. . $ 8,858,611 $ 135414 $ 21,292,934 $ 30,286,959 $ 3,759,502
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Userfees......ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,042,507 - 6,117,466 9,159,973 -
Water and sewer liens................coceeeiiiiiine. 50,543 - - 50,543 -
Departmental and other - - 485,502 485,502 256,139
Inventory. TP - 25,976 3,803,526 3,829,502 -
Working capital deposit..............c.euveiiiiiiiiiiiinnns - - - - 800,000
Prepaid expenses - - 525,673 525,673 -
Purchased power advanced deposits..................... - - 1,301,494 1,301,494 -
Total current assets.............coeeeveiiiiiinnnenen. 11,951,661 161,390 33,526,595 45,639,646 4,815,641
NONCURRENT:
Investment in Hydro Quebec....................ccooeeene - - 47,950 47,950 -
Investment in Energy New England. - - 675,480 675,480 -
Other assets R - - 135,036 135,036 -
Capital assets, non depreciable.............c.....oeeennns 939,508 375,876 1,856,418 3,171,802 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation....... 42,824,902 624,151 152,713,141 196,162,194 -
Total noncurrent assets................cceeeeennnnne 43,764,410 1,000,027 155,428,025 200,192,462 -
TOTALASSETS.. .o 55,716,071 1,161,417 188,954,620 245,832,108 4,815,641
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable... 257,223 15,513 5,808,456 6,081,192 7,539
Accrued liabilities... - - 671,765 671,765 -
Accrued payroll 24,916 19,218 - 44,134 -
Health claims payable - - - - 1,175,000
Accrued interest 104,857 - - 104,857 -
Participant advances and reserves..... - - 916,413 916,413 -
Unearned revenue - 145,545 192,000 337,545 -
Capital lease obligations.. - - 239,171 239,171 -
Compensated absences.. 94,075 62,632 284,019 440,726 -
Bonds payable 2,386,322 - 5,318,470 7,704,792 -
Total current liabilities................cocociiniennns 2,867,393 242,908 13,430,294 16,540,595 1,182,539
NONCURRENT:
Capital lease obligations..................ccoeviiiiiennns - - 310,458 310,458 -
Customer deposits payable. - 2,150 637,350 639,500 -
Compensated absences.................ccccoeiiiienn. 40,512 29,794 - 70,306 -
Unearned revenue - - 9,441,668 9,441,668 -
Other postemployment benefits......... 597,715 188,319 4,468,315 5,254,349 -
Bonds payable.............ccoooeiiiiiiiiiii 20,306,801 - 103,656,700 123,963,501 -
Total noncurrent liabilities. ... 20,945,028 220,263 118,514,491 139,679,782 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot 23,812,421 463,171 131,944,785 156,220,377 1,182,539
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.............. 21,071,287 1,000,027 49,520,024 71,591,338 -
Unrestricted.........oooiiiiiiinii 10,832,363 (301,781) 7,489,811 18,020,393 3,633,102
TOTAL NET ASSETS....ciiiiiiiiiiiitaee et $ 31,903,650 $ 698,246 $ 57,009,835 $ 89,611,731 $ 3,633,102

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES:

Employee contributions .............coooviiviiiiiiiiiii e
Employer contributions .............ccocoeiiiiiiiiiiniiiie e
Charges for services ........

Sales to ultimate CUStOmMers..............coooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis
Sales forresale..........co.oiiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Other operating reVENUES. .........couvteeriteeeiiteeeiiieee e
ULlItY TIENS ... eee e e e e e

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ..........cocooiiiiiiiiiiinnnn,

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration ...................c.oouennn.
MWRA ASSESSMENL.......uviiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Fuel for generation...............ovvvveiiiiii e
Purchased POWEN..........covveieiie e e e e
Repairs and maintenance.............coevevereieieriieieeii e
DEPrECIAtION. ... it iie et et e e
Employee benefits ..........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiii

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ..........ccoooiiiiiiiinns
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiennn
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment income
Interest expense....

TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......coocoiiiiiiiiiinieine

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS.............coceennne

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS........oooiiiiiiiieiicec e

TRANSFERS:
Transfers OUL..........couvviie i e

CHANGE INNET ASSETS.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiicn
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS REVISED..........

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.........cooviiiiiiiii

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Electric Light Activities -

Water and Golf December 31, Internal Service
Sewer Course 2011 Total Fund

- % - $ - $ - 8 6,045,400

- - - - 8,308,922

12,929,826 1,404,095 - 14,333,921 -

- - 57,155,898 57,155,898 -

- - 12,714,779 12,714,779 -

- - 891,460 891,460 -

2,686 - - 2,686 -

12,932,512 1,404,095 70,762,137 85,098,744 14,354,322

3,100,642 1,235,303 16,782,677 21,118,622 -

7,226,112 - - 7,226,112 -

- - 3,682,742 3,682,742 -

- - 30,052,040 30,052,040 -

394,271 212,754 7,526,648 8,133,673 -

1,457,567 62,434 8,542,045 10,062,046 -

- - - - 15,010,164

12,178,592 1,510,491 66,586,152 80,275,235 15,010,164

753,920 (106,396) 4,175,985 4,823,509 (655,842)

2,583 - 53,160 55,743 -

(781,636) - (4,309,772) (5,091,408) -

(779,053) - (4,256,612) (5,035,665) -

(25,133) (106,396) (80,627) (212,156) (655,842)

281,643 - - 281,643 -

(248,746) (41,032) (2,000,000) (2,289,778) -

7,764 (147,428) (2,080,627) (2,220,291) (655,842)

31,895,886 845,674 59,090,462 91,832,022 4,288,944

31,903,650 $ 698,246  $ 57,009,835 $ 89,611,731 $ 3,633,102
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and USErS............cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e cee e
Receipts from interfund services provided.
Payments to vendors......
Payments to employees..
Payments for interfund services used.

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES..........oouiiiiiiiiiiiiiecii e

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers out...

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes...
Premium from the issuance of bonds and notes.
Capital contributions
Acquisition and construction of capital assets..
Principal payments on bonds and notes
Principal payments on capital lease obligations..
Interest expense...
Participant advances and reserves.

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in Hydro Quebec
Investment in Energy New England.
INVEStMENt iNCOME........o.ooiiiiiiii

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES.........oooiiiiiiiiiiinici e,

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS..........coovviiiiniiiiiiie

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........c..ccvvennnnn,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR..........oooiviiiiiiniiiinns

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating inCome (I0SS)..........couuriiriiiiiiieeeiee e
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation..
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Water and sewer liens.
User fees
Departmental and other..
Inventory..........coocoeees
Working capital deposit
Other assets
Prepaid expenses..
Purchased power advance deposits
Warrants payable
Accrued liabilities...
Accrued payroll
Health claims payable..
Customer deposits payable...
Unearned revenues
Accrued compensated absences.
Other postemployment benefits.............ccoooiiiiii

Total adjustmeNts..........uuiiiiiiiiiii i

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES........ccoouiiiiiiiiiii e

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Electric Light Activities -

Water and Golf December 31, Internal Service
Sewer Course 2011 Total Fund

12,773,078 $ 1,405,535 $ 74,138,840 $ 88,317,453 $ 6,045,400

- - - - 8,308,922

(9,172,653) (813,891) (46,685,851) (56,672,395) -

(1,333,200) (567,464) (9,787,786) (11,688,450) -

- - - - (14,706,960)

2,267,225 24,180 17,665,203 19,956,608 (352,638)

(248,746) (41,032) (2,000,000) (2,289,778) -

3,445,230 - - 3,445,230 -

180,714 - - 180,714 -

281,643 - - 281,643 -

(4,089,298) (48,276) (6,950,063) (11,087,637) -

(1,911,000) - (4,550,000) (6,461,000) -

- - (178,627) (178,627) -

(830,455) - (5,096,577) (5,927,032) -

- - (916,503) (916,503) -

(2,923,166) (48,276) (17,691,770) (20,663,212) -

- - 10,336 10,336 -

- - (27,882) (27,882) -

2,583 - 53,160 55,743 -

2,583 - 35,614 38,197 -

(902,104) (65,128) (1,990,953) (2,958,185) (352,638)

9,760,715 200,542 23,283,887 33,245,144 4,112,140

8,858,611 $ 135414 $ 21,292,934 $ 30,286,959 $ 3,759,502

753920 $ (106,396) $ 4,175,985 $ 4,823,509 $ (655,842)

1,457,567 62,434 8,542,045 10,062,046 =

5,970 - - 5,970 -

(165,404) - (2,832) (168,236) -

- - 1,646,675 1,646,675 67,752

- 8,565 (134,149) (125,584) -

- - - - 104,000

- - 1,964 1,964 -

- - (226,423) (226,423) -

- - (189) (189) -

89,438 (22,097) 931,882 999,223 (161,645)

) - (4,706) (4,706) .

5,297 4,572 - 9,869 -

- - - - 293,097

- - 98,074 98,074 -

- (7,125) 1,634,786 1,627,661 -

16,328 14,092 99,999 130,419 -

104,109 70,135 902,092 1,076,336 -

1,513,305 130,576 13,489,218 15,133,099 303,204

2,267,225 $ 24,180 $ 17,665,203 $ 19,956,608 $ (352,638)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Pension and Other Private
Employee Benefit Purpose Agency
Trust Funds (1) Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............cccoeeeiieiniineiieieennnn. $ 3,043,654 $ - $ 221,504
Investments:
Equity mutual funds..........coooviiiii - 156,241 -
Fixed income mutual funds..........c.cooiviiiiiiiiiiiienne 52,600,105 - -
Domestic equity mutual funds............ccooeevivviiiiinnns 31,809,128 - -
International equity mutual funds..................cooeen. 16,590,807 - -
Pension reserve investment trust.................c.oooee . 32,128,530 - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Departmental and other.............ccoooviiiiii i 81,293 - -
Prepaid eXpenses. .......co.ve i 7,969 - -
TOTAL ASSETS. .. 136,261,486 156,241 221,504
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable..........ovve i 50,935 - -
Liabilities due depositors..........ovvvvvvieeviiiniie i - - 221,504
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... oottt e 50,935 - 221,504
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for:
Pension benefits.........ccoooiiiiii 135,296,434 - -
Other postemployment benefits.............coevviiienns 914,117 - -
Other PUIPOSES......iuiiiie et et e - 156,241 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS...iiiiiiiiiiieiiei et B 136,210,551 $ 156,241 $ -

(1) The Pension Trust Fund is as of December 31, 2011.

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Pension and Other
Employee Benefit
Trust Funds (1)

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
EMPIOYET ... B 8,143,552 -
Plan MEMDEIS. ... s 3,480,827 -
Private donations........ccooiiiiiri i e e - 71,110
Total CoONtiDULIONS ...t e e e 11,624,379 71,110
Net investment income:
Net change in fair value of investments................ccoceiivivicee e (2,076,151) (12,181)
LS =) 949,475 -
[ 1V 10 (<Y g o £SO 2,472,656 -
Total investment income (10SS).........oiiei i e, 1,345,980 (12,181)
LeSS: INVESIMENE EXPENSE ... uuut et ieeeenietee e e ee e eeeens (662,624) -
Net investment iNCOME (I0SS) ... .vvvvieiiie et e e 683,356 (12,181)
INtergoverNMENtal.........ooevuie it et e e e e 319,598 -
Transfers from other Systems...........cooviiiii i e e 359,554 -
TOTAL ADDITIONS . .. ettt e e e e 12,986,887 58,929
DEDUCTIONS:
AAMINISIAION. .. ... e e e e e 242,237 26,500
Transfers to other SySteMS........c.covviiiiiie e 961,290 -
Retirement benefits and refunds. ..o 13,272,421 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS . ...ttt et e e e e 14,475,948 26,500
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS...coi i e (1,489,061) 32,429
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.....coiiiiii i, 137,699,612 123,812
NET ASSETS ATEND OF YEAR ..ot e $ 136,210,551 $ 156,241

(1) The Pension Trust Fund is as of December 31, 2011.

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts (the Town) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant Town accounting policies are
described herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Mayor. A nine-member Town Council, 3
members elected at large and 6 district members, serves as a representative legislature.

For financial reporting purposes, the Town has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially
accountable as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Town are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As
required by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the Town (the primary government) and its
component units. One entity has been included as a component unit in the reporting entity, because of the
significance of its operational and/or financial relationship.

Blended Component Units — Blended component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but
are so related that they are, in substance, the same as the Town or entities providing services entirely or almost
entirely for the benefit of the Town. The following component unit is blended within the primary government:

In the Fiduciary Funds:

() The Braintree Contributory Retirement System (the System) was established to provide retirement
benefits to Town employees, Braintree Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The
System is governed by a five-member board comprised of two elected members, (nominees must be
active or retired members), two appointed members by the Executive Authority, and the fifth member shall
be an independent member appointed by the other four members.

Availability of Financial Information for Component Units, the Electric Light Department and Joint
Ventures

The System did not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available
unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at 74 Pond Street, Braintree, Massachusetts, 02184.

In accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 164, the Braintree Electric Light Department (the
BELD) was established to generate and distribute electricity for municipal and residential use within the Town.
The BELD is governed by an elected three-member board and is operated by a manager appointed by the
BELD's elected board. The manager has charge of BELD's operations and is subject to the direction and control
of the Braintree Municipal Light Board. It is not a separate legal entity and therefore the condensed financial
statements of the BELD are reported as an enterprise fund. A complete audited financial statement for the BELD,
for the year ended December 31, 2011, can be obtained directly from their administrative office located at 150
Potter Road, Braintree, Massachusetts, 02184.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Joint Venture — The Town is a member of the Blue Hills Regional Technical School that provides educational
services to nine area communities. This joint venture assesses each community its share of operating and debt
service costs based on student population and other factors. In fiscal year 2012, Braintree’s share of the
operating and debt expenses was $1,759,902. There is no equity interest reported in these financial statements.
Complete audited financial statements can be obtained directly from the District's administrative office located at
800 Randolph Street, Canton, Massachusetts, 02021.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.

Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Major Fund Criteria

Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

o |[f the total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all
funds of that category or type (total governmental or total enterprise funds), and

e |If the total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental

and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly
significant to the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Internal service funds and fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the following:

e Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

e Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular
function or segment.

e Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the effect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as
the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions
affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
fiscal year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental fund is reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund. Included within the general fund is a stabilization fund. The
balance in the fund has decreased from $1,751,000 in 2011 to $1,698,000 in 2012. The stabilization fund
balance can be used for general and/or capital purposes upon Town Council and the Mayor’s approval.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are

aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts 37 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary funds are reported:

The water and sewer enterprise fund was jointly established in 1984 pursuant to an act establishing the water and
sewer commission. It is used to account for water and sewer activities.

The golf course enterprise fund is used to account for the operations of the municipal golf course.
The electric light enterprise fund is used to account for electric light activities.
Additionally, the following proprietary fund type is reported:

The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other
departments or governmental units. This fund is used to account for risk financing activities related to health
insurance.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension and other employee benefit trust funds are used to account for the activities of the Braintree
Contributory Retirement System, which accumulates resources to provide pension benefits to eligible retirees and
their beneficiaries, and the other postemployment benefit trust fund which accumulates resources to provide
funding for future OPEB (other postemployment benefits) liabilities.

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements that exclusively benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments. Some of these trust funds have donor restrictions and trustee
policies that do not allow the endowment portion and any unrealized appreciation to be spent. These restrictions
and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the realized investment earnings. The
Town’s educational scholarships are accounted for in this fund.
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The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity. The Town'’s agency fund
mainly consists of off-duty work details, performance bonds, and fees collected on behalf of other governments.
Agency funds apply the accrual basis of accounting but do not have a measurement focus.

D. Cash and Investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. The fair values were determined by the closing price for those securities
traded on national stock exchanges and at the average bid-and-asked quotation for those securities traded in the
over-the-counter market.

E. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting. The
recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds financial statements are
reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor’s for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1* and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are
not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables
in the fiscal year of the levy.

Tax liens are imposed three years after the original tax is considered delinquent and are processed subsequent to
July 1% every year.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by
$25 per $1,000 of value. Boat excise taxes are assessed annually for each boat registered and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of boats
registered and the fair value of those boats. The tax calculation is the fair value of the boat multiplied by $10 per
$1,000 of value.
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The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Trash

Trash fees have been levied on an annual basis for each residential property that utilizes the collection service.
Each per living unit is billed annually by the Public Works Department for all residents not choosing one of the

several opt-out methods. The collection service includes weekly curbside collection.

Since the receivables can be secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% collectible and
therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

Water and Sewer and Electric Light Department

User fees are levied monthly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if they
are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and
included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Water and sewer charges and related liens are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year of the levy.

Since the receivables are secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% collectible and
therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of parking fines and other receivables of the BELD and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued. The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on
historical trends and specific account analysis.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recognized when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
F. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories of the governmental funds and the water and sewer enterprise fund are recorded as expenditures at
the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the basic financial statements, and therefore

are not reported.

Inventories of the golf course and BELD enterprise funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost for
materials and supplies inventories are determined by the first-in, first-out method.
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G. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure
(e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements, and the proprietary fund financial
statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is
not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
Except for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements,
construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives of capital
assets being depreciated are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Land improvements..........cccvvvvveveieeinnenn, 10-30
Plantinservice.............coocoiiiii i, 30-40
BUIldINGS...ccv e 40
Machinery and equipment......................... 5-15
Infrastructure.........ccoovvii it e, 20 -50

The statutory provision for depreciation of a utility plant is computed on the straight-line method at 3 percent of the
cost of plant in service at the beginning of the year, exclusive of land and land rights. Massachusetts law
stipulates that the Electric Department may change from the statutory depreciation rate only with the approval of
the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities. The Department has consistently used an overall depreciation
rate of approximately 3.5%, which approximates GAAP.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.

H. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are
eliminated from the governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding
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between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as
“internal balances”.

Fund Financial Statements
Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”

or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

l. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as operating transfers in and operating transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

J. Deferred and Unearned Revenue

Deferred revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not
meet the available criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the
government-wide (full accrual) financial statements.

Unearned revenue at the government-wide and fund financial statement level represents resources that have
been received, but not yet earned.

K. Net Assets and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Assets)

Net assets reported as “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of
capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net assets have been “restricted for” the following:
“Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor

restricted trusts. The restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the realized
investment earnings.
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“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts.
“Grants and gifts” represents amounts held for school and other Town grants, and for gift funds.

“Community preservation” represents amounts held for uses restricted by law for community preservation
purposes.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Mayor and Town
Council are the highest level of decision making authority that can commit funds for a specific purpose. Once
voted, the limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended purpose or a
vote is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Town’s by-laws authorize the Town Accountant to assign
fund balance. Assignments generally only exist temporarily. Additional action does not have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The Town'’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

L. Long-term debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
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other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

M. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nhonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

N. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured as a result of employee
resignations or retirements. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon maturity of the
liability.

O. Restatement of Beginning Fund Balances

The beginning fund balances of the general fund and the internal service fund have changed relating to the
reclassification of the municipal building insurance fund from the internal service funds to the general fund.

P. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

Q. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.
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NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type’s portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as “Cash and cash equivalents.” The deposits and investments of the trust
funds are held separately from those of other funds.

Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer’s Investment
Pool (the Pool). The Treasurer may also invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans,
which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves
as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares.

The Retirement System participates, as a Participating member, in the Pension Reserves Investment Trust
(PRIT), which meets the criteria of an external investment pool. PRIT is administered by the Pension Reserves
Investment Management Board, which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
who serves as trustee. The fair value of the position in the PRIT is the same as the value of the PRIT shares.

The PRIT fund, as a pool, invests in various products including, but not limited to, money market mutual funds,
equities, pooled foreign and domestic fixed income and equity funds, United States government sponsored
enterprises and Treasury notes, real estate, and commodities. The underlying components of PRIT’s fixed
income portfolio had an effective weighted duration rate ranging from 0.08 to 11.60 years.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town'’s deposits may not be returned
to it. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial risk. At fiscal year-end, the carrying amount of
deposits totaled $25,562,256, and the bank balances totaled $28,800,744. Of the bank balance, $1,999,616 was
covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $13,411,568 was covered by the Depositors Insurance Fund, and
$13,389,560 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

The Braintree Retirement System limits its custodial credit risk by utilizing an institutional custodial bank, currently
State Street Bank, to custody all separately held securities which are registered under a nominee name that is
specific to the System. Assets held in commingled fund accounts are also held in a similar fashion, with individual
fund securities held in the fund’s name at their custodian bank. A small percentage of the System’s assets
(typically less than 5%) may be held from time to time in commingled cash equivalent vehicles where the assets
are subject to counterparty risk. At December 31, 2011, the carrying amount of deposits for the System totaled
$1,968,318 and the bank balance totaled $2,171,117. The bank balance was fully covered by Federal Depository
Insurance.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. The
Town does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

The Retirement System investments are not subjected to custodial credit risk as all of the securities are insured or
registered, and held by its agents in the name of the Town of Braintree.
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Investments

As of June 30, 2012, the Town had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Type Fair Value

Other Investments:

Equity Mutual Funds............cccoooieinniinennne. $ 260,927
Money Market Mutual Funds.................... 9,436,569
MMDT Short-Term Bond Funds................ 6,987,114
MMDT Cash Portfolio............cccvvvivvinnnnn. 37,826,708

Total Investments.........ccccccvvvvvvvvveeeeenenn, $ 54,511,318

The Town participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with average
maturities of approximately 31 to 54 days and a weighted average maturity of 3 years, respectively. The Town’s
investments in MMDT are unrated.

As of December 31, 2011, the System had the following investments:

Investment Maturities

Over

Investment Type Fair Value 6-10 Years 10 Years
Debt Securities:

Fixed Income Mutual Funds..................... $ 52,600,105 $ 18,431,856 $ 34,168,249
Other Investments:

Domestic Equity Mutual Fund...................... 31,809,128

International Equity Mutual Fund.................. 16,590,807

Money Market Mutual Fund...................... 161,219

Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT).. 32,128,530

Total Investments............cccoveeeeeneeenee. $ 133,289,789

Interest Rate Risk

The Town does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

All of the Braintree Retirement System'’s fixed income assets are held in professionally managed, institutional

commingled funds. The System limits its effective exposure to interest rate risk by benchmarking its commingled
fixed income investment accounts to an intermediate duration benchmark (Barclays) with duration of 4-5 years.
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Credit Risk
The Town has not adopted a formal policy related to Credit Risk.
The remaining System investments are rated as follows by Moody’s Investor’s Service:

Quality Ratings

Fair
Rated Debt Investments Value AA2 Al
Fixed Income Mutual Funds................. $ 52,600,105 $ 18,431,856 $ 34,168,249

The Retirement System controls and limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in well diversified, commingled
fixed income funds that are both passively and actively managed by the Barclays Aggregate Index, which
represents the overall U.S. investment-grade bond market. In the case of the actively managed fixed income
fund, investments in below-investment grade securities are permitted, up to a maximum position of 10% of that
individual commingled fund's assets, which would represent approximately 2% of the Braintree Retirement
System's total assets.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town places no limit on the amount the Town may invest in any one issuer. No investments with any one
issuer exceeded 5% of the total investments of the Town.

NOTE 3 — RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2012, receivables for the individual major and nonmajor governmental funds and internal service
funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 2,226,903 $ (132,310) $ 2,094,593
TaxX I@NS. ..o 647,985 - 647,985
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................... 1,158,397 (613,950) 544,447
Departmental and other...............coooiiiiiieis 226,515 (54,440) 172,075
Intergovernmental...............oooiii i 4,154,212 - 4,154,212
TOtAlL e $ 8,414,012 $ (800,700) $ 7,613,312
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At June 30, 2012, receivables for the proprietary funds consist of the following:

Receivables:
Water and Sewer
TaX NS .t $
USErfEBS. ..ot e
Electric Light
USEIfBBS. ..ot e
Departmental and other...............cccocoiiiiiiiis
Internal Service
Departmental and other...............cocccoiiiiiiens

T Al $

Allowance
Gross for Net

Amount Uncollectibles Amount
50,543 $ - 3 50,543
3,042,507 - 3,042,507
6,304,872 (187,406) 6,117,466
485,502 - 485,502
256,139 - 256,139
10,139,563 $ (187,406) $ 9,952,157

At December 31, 2011 the Pension Trust Fund had departmental and other receivables totaling $81,293.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Receivables and other asset types:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $
TaX NS e s
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...................
Departmental and other.....................ooco el
Intergovernmental.............oooveviiiiiee i
Tax foreClosureS.......o.viiiiiii e

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
1,372,793 $ - % 1,372,793
646,064 1,921 647,985
435,166 - 435,166
885,735 10,527 896,262
154,376 2,576,997 2,731,373
78,281 - 78,281
3,572,415 $ 2,589,445 $ 6,161,860

Departmental and other deferred revenues include approximately $716,000 of fiscal year 2013 trash fees that
were collected in advance. These amounts are reported as unearned revenue on the Governmental Activities

Statement of Net Assets.

The golf course and electric light enterprise funds defer revenue for amounts that have been received in advance
of being earned. These amounts are reported as unearned revenue on the Proprietary Statement of Net Assets

and total $145,545 and $9,633,668, respectively.
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NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements..........cooeeeeeieevieiie i
BUIAINGS... e
Machinery and equipment..............c.coveeviniininnee,
INFrastructure...........ooovveiiie i

Total capital assets being depreciated...........

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements.............coveeveiiienniiniiiiineeen,
BUIAINGS. ...t
Machinery and equipment..............c.coveeviniininnen,
INfrastruCture........cooovv v e,

Total accumulated depreciation....................
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................

Total governmental activities capital assets, net.........

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
13,755,668 $ 1,038,800 $ $ 14,794,468
7,497,620 3,462,934 10,960,554
42,478,001 2,929,194 45,407,195
13,523,954 1,503,342 15,027,296
53,857,136 4,043,492 57,900,628
117,356,711 11,938,962 129,295,673
(7,051,208) (200,883) (7,252,091)
(27,635,921) (1,125,703) (28,761,624)
(12,156,046) (585,028) (12,741,074)
(22,598,095) (1,200,267) (23,798,362)
(69,441,270) (3,111,881) (72,553,151)
47,915,441 8,827,081 56,742,522
61,671,109 $ 9,865,881 $ $ 71,536,990
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Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements
Plant in service
Buildings..................
Machinery and equipment....
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements
Plant in service
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation....................
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
2,498,618 $ - $ - % 2,498,618
2,719,095 3,564,482 (5,610,393) 673,184
5,217,713 3,564,482 (5,610,393) 3,171,802
1,121,475 - - 1,121,475
227,425,328 8,271,382 (1,275,426) 234,421,284
1,492,692 - - 1,492,692
2,975,362 48,276 - 3,023,638
64,248,541 4,849,220 - 69,097,761
297,263,398 13,168,878 (1,275,426) 309,156,850
(667,123) (24,229) - (691,352)
(74,232,612) (8,542,045) 1,066,513 (81,708,144)
(1,012,840) (26,413) - (1,039,253)
(2,691,080) (82,263) - (2,773,343)
(25,395,468) (1,387,096) - (26,782,564)
(103,999,123) (10,062,046) 1,066,513 (112,994,656)
193,264,275 3,106,832 (208,913) 196,162,194
198,481,988 $ 6,671,314 $ (5,819,306) $ 199,333,996

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General QOVEIMMENT. ... ..vuieiee e e e e e
Public safety.......cooiiii
=0 {8 or=1 1[0 o
PUDBIIC WOTKS... .o e s
HUMAN SEIVICES... ...ttt et et e e e e e e
Culture and reCreation..........ooveiiiieriee e e,

Community development

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:

Waater and SEWET......ieitie et et $ 1,457,567
0] |5 62,434
Electric light... ..o 8,542,045

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts
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$ 220,038
417,172
864,649

1,293,967
12,451
276,781
26,823

$__3111,881

................ $ 10,062,046
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NOTE 5 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

As of June 30, 2012, the Town has an interfund receivable/payable of $1,422,839 which exists between the
general fund and highway improvements fund. The purpose of this balance is to cover short-term cash needs that
will be funded by future grant proceeds.

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Transfers Out: Fund Funds Total
Nonmajor Governmental Funds................... $ 142,255 $ 263,839 $ 406,094 (1)
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund................ 248,746 - 248,746 (2)
Golf Course Enterprise Fund....................... 41,032 - 41,032 (2)
Electric Light Enterprise Fund...................... 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 (3)
TOtal. oo $ 2,432,033 $ 263,839 $ 2,695,872

(1) Represents budgeted transfers to the general fund from various nonmajor special revenue funds.

(2) Represents budgeted transfers from water and sewer and golf enterprise funds to the general fund for
administration.

(3) Represents the Payment in Lieu of Tax payment from the Braintree Electric Light Department.

NOTE 6 — LEASES

Capital Leases

The Town has entered into lease agreements to finance the acquisition of two fire trucks, three police vehicles
and certain heavy equipment for the highway and parks departments. The lease agreements qualify as capital
leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum
lease payments as of the inception date. The following identifies the assets acquired through capital lease
agreements:

Governmental
Activities
Asset:
Machinery and equipment...........c.ooiiiii i $ 1,733,302
Less: accumulated depreciation.............cocvevvvevneiennn. (1,078,990)
10 = $ 654,312

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts 51 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The following schedule presents the future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2012:

Fiscal Year Governmental
Ending June 30, Activities

203 $ 72,644
2004 65,469
20D 31,600
2006, it 31,529
207 et 31,455
Total minimum lease payments.............ccovvveeveennnns 232,697
Less: amounts representing interest........................ (20,105)
Present value of minimum lease payments............... $ 212,592

The BELD entered into a capitalized lease for cable division equipment expiring through 2015. The assets and
liabilities under the capital lease are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The assets
are depreciated over the life of the equipment.

The following schedule presents the future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2011:

Business-Type

Years Ending December 31, Activities

2002 $ 239,171
203 196,021
2004 e 137,712
2005 40,624
Total minimum lease payments..........c.oocvevieeineeann. 613,528
Less: amounts representing interest........................ (63,900)
Present value of minimum lease payments............... $ 549,628

Operating Leases

The Town leases school buses under a noncancelable operating lease that is scheduled to expire June 30, 2013.
The cost of the lease for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, totaled approximately $322,000, and is reported as
education expenditures in the general fund.

The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Governmental
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Activities
2008 $ 321,743

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts 52 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The Golf Course leases golf carts under a noncancelable operating lease that was entered into in April 2010.
The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Business-Type
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Activities

203 $ 45,474

The BELD leases cable converter boxes and office equipment under separate operating lease agreements. The
cost of the leases for the year ended December 31, 2011, totaled approximately $50,000.

The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Business-Type
Years Ending December 31, Activities

2002, $ 49,682

NOTE 7 — SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

e Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

e Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing through
issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,
respectively.

The Governmental and Enterprise Funds did not issue or redeem short-term debt during the year and did not
have any amounts outstanding at year-end.

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the

debt limit". In addition, however, debt may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt,
when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit".
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Detalils related to the Town'’s general obligation indebtedness at June 30, 2012, and the debt service

requirements are as follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Governmental Funds

Original Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Maturities Loan Rate at June 30, at June 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2011 Issued Redeemed 2012

Municipal Purpose Loan of 1999.................... 2017 $ 4,500,000 420-520 $ 500,000 $ - % 250,000 $ 250,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2002.................... 2013 5,099,000 2.50-3.75 160,000 - 80,000 80,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2006.................... 2026 2,250,000 4.14 - 434 1,575,000 - 135,000 1,440,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Loan of 2006...... 2017 1,055,000 4.20-5.20 1,020,000 - 5,000 1,015,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007.................... 2027 2,100,000 4.30 - 4.90 840,000 - 315,000 525,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2009.................... 2028 3,600,000 3.00 - 5.00 2,640,000 - 475,000 2,165,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2010.................... 2030 6,782,000 1.50 - 4.50 6,245,000 - 530,000 5,715,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011.................... 2031 6,100,000 2.00 - 4.50 6,100,000 - 410,000 5,690,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2012.................... 2032 5,286,000 2.00 - 4.00 - 5,286,000 - 5,286,000
SUD-TOtal...coeviiieii e 19,080,000 5,286,000 2,200,000 22,166,000
Unamortized Premiums on Bonds................... 369,204 22,225 346,979
TOtaAl ..t $ 19,080,000 $ 5,655,204 $ 2,222,225 $ 22,512,979

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Governmental bonds payable in future fiscal years are as

follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2013.....c.nil $ 2,451,000 $ 762,546 $ 3,213,546
2014.............. 2,110,000 682,118 2,792,118
2015.....c...l 2,080,000 612,550 2,692,550
2016.............. 1,880,000 544,917 2,424,917
2017....ccenenn, 1,825,000 478,849 2,303,849
2018.............. 1,360,000 418,280 1,778,280
2019............. 1,200,000 370,949 1,570,949
2020.............. 1,195,000 330,570 1,525,570
2021............. 1,100,000 286,707 1,386,707
2022.....cccen. 1,080,000 243,289 1,323,289
2023.....cenel 985,000 205,816 1,190,816
2024.............. 975,000 170,659 1,145,659
2025.....c.ccnnl 975,000 135,418 1,110,418
2026.............. 930,000 98,840 1,028,840
2027....cceenin, 600,000 68,541 668,541
2028.............. 440,000 51,782 491,782
2029.............. 375,000 34,625 409,625
2030.....c.uneen, 375,000 19,963 394,963
2031.....c.u.u.nn, 165,000 5,175 170,175
2032....ccennnn, 65,000 975 65,975
Total.............. $ 22,166,000 $ 5,522,569 $ 27,688,569
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Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund

Original Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Maturities Loan Rate at June 30, at June 30,
Project Through Amount (%) 2011 Issued Redeemed 2012

Municipal Purpose Loan of 2001.................... 2012 $ 5,720,000 330-525 $ 285,000 $ 285,000 -
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2002.................... 2018 2,130,000 2.50-4.25 980,000 140,000 840,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2006.................... 2026 4,480,000 4.14 3,325,000 215,000 3,110,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Loan of 2006...... 2017 2,355,000 4.20-5.20 1,300,000 250,000 1,050,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007.................... 2027 1,430,000 4.14 - 4.90 1,105,000 80,000 1,025,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2009.................... 2029 8,842,000 3.00 - 5.00 7,490,000 670,000 6,820,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Loan of 2011...... 2022 3,575,000 2.00 - 4.00 3,575,000 120,000 3,455,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011.................... 2031 2,286,000 2.00 - 4.50 2,286,000 - 151,000 2,135,000
MWRA Loan of 2011.......cccovvvviiiiiiinniinennn, 2017 344,230 0.00 344,230 - 344,230
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2012.................... 2032 3,101,000 2.00 - 4.00 3,101,000 3,101,000
Sub-Total.......ccviiiiiiii 20,346,000 3,445,230 1,911,000 21,880,230
Unamortized Premiums on Bonds................... 669,366 180,714 37,187 812,893
TOtAL ..t $ 21,015,366 $ 3,625,944 $ 1,948,187 $ 22,693,123

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable

in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2013.............. $ 2,324,846 $ 784,361 $ 3,109,207
2014.............. 2,133,846 706,228 2,840,074
2015.............. 2,073,846 639,974 2,713,820
2016.............. 2,063,846 577,624 2,641,470
2017.............. 2,053,846 511,501 2,565,347
2018.............. 1,475,000 452,563 1,927,563
2019.............. 1,200,000 398,038 1,598,038
2020.............. 1,195,000 349,923 1,544,923
2021.............. 1,190,000 302,986 1,492,986
2022.............. 1,140,000 254,939 1,394,939
2023.............. 780,000 213,812 993,812
2024.............. 780,000 179,862 959,862
2025.............. 785,000 145,624 930,624
2026.............. 785,000 111,098 896,098
2027, 580,000 76,497 656,497
2028.............. 485,000 50,985 535,985
2029.............. 485,000 30,824 515,824
2030.............. 140,000 10,150 150,150
2031.............. 145,000 4,725 149,725
2032.............. 65,000 975 65,975
Total.............. $ 21,880,230 $ 5,802,689 $ 27,682,919
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Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Electric Light Enterprise Fund

Original Outstanding at Outstanding at
Maturities Loan December 31, December 31,
Project Through Amount 2010 Issued Redeemed 2011

Municipal Purpose Loan of 2001.................... 1,500,000 250-3.75 $ 300,000 $ - % 150,000 $ 150,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2002.................... 3,500,000 3.30-5.25 350,000 - 350,000 -
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2009.................... 109,700,000 3.00 - 5.00 105,765,000 - 4,050,000 101,715,000
SUD-TOtal. ..ot 106,415,000 - 4,550,000 101,865,000
Unamortized Premiums on Bonds................... 7,897,299 - 787,129 7,110,170
TOtal et $ 114,312,299 $ - $ 5,337,129 $ 108,975,170

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for electric light enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in

future years are as follows:

Year Ended Principal Interest Total
2012............ 4,410,000 $ 4,974,494 $ 9,384,494
2013............ 4,415,000 4,789,856 9,204,856
2014.............. 4,630,000 4,583,794 9,213,794
2015............ 4,855,000 4,352,294 9,207,294
2016.............. 5,085,000 4,123,194 9,208,194
2017....cccunnn, 5,335,000 3,875,944 9,210,944
2018.............. 5,600,000 3,610,244 9,210,244
2019............ 5,875,000 3,330,244 9,205,244
2020.............. 6,175,000 3,036,494 9,211,494
2021............l 6,480,000 2,727,744 9,207,744
2022.....c...n., 6,810,000 2,403,744 9,213,744
2023.....c.nel 7,150,000 2,063,244 9,213,244
2024.............. 7,510,000 1,705,744 9,215,744
2025............, 7,855,000 1,354,844 9,209,844
2026.............. 8,245,000 962,094 9,207,094
2027....cccunnn, 7,930,000 549,844 8,479,844
2028............., 3,505,000 153,344 3,658,344
Total.............. 101,865,000 $ 48,597,160 $ 150,462,160

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

56

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Authorized and unissued debt

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount
Water and sewer projects.............cooeenenens $ 528,157
MWRA. .. e 200,612
Renovations to Town Hall......................... 850,000
School Projects.......ooovvveiii e 904,326
Wastewater system rehab........................ 1,271,388
Water distribution system improvements..... 2,426,000
Roadway resurfacing.............cc.cooveveennnnnn. 561,000
ROAAS. ..., 1,700,000
Public safety repairs and equipment........... 925,000
Public works repairs and equipment........... 271,000
Public works building improvements........... 275,000
Public works drainage............cccccooveiiienen. 200,000
Library building improvements................... 190,000
Library equipment............cccoiiiiiiiineeenn, 150,000
Total. . $ 10,452,483
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Bonds and Bonds and
Beginning Notes Notes Other Other Ending Due Within
Balance Issued Redeemed Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:

Long-term bonds payable......................... 19,080,000 $ 5,286,000 $ (2,200,000) $ - 8 - $ 22,166,000 2,451,000
Add: Unamortized premium on bonds..... - 369,204 (22,225) - - 346,979 46,180
Total bonds payable..............c.oveeiiiinnn 19,080,000 5,655,204 (2,222,225) - - 22,512,979 2,497,180
Other postemployment benefits.. 35,271,827 - 12,772,883 (6,043,004) 42,001,706 -
Workers' compensation................ccccceeeees 536,569 - 215,528 (250,082) 502,015 292,432
Compensated absences.................veeeunnee, 3,110,976 - 1,777,050 (1,578,254) 3,309,772 1,742,946
Capital lease obligations................cceevne 85,878 - 212,592 (85,878) 212,592 63,388

Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities...............cccoceeveenene 58,085,250 $ 5,655,204 $ (2,222,225) $ 14,978,053 $ (7,957,218) $ 68,539,064 4,595,946

Business-Type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable......................... 126,761,000 $ 3,445230 $ (6,461,000) $ - $ - $ 123,745,230 6,734,846
Add: Unamortized premium on bonds..... 8,566,665 180,714 (824,316) - - 7,923,063 969,946
Total bonds payable...............cccceeeeniiiinn, 135,327,665 3,625,944 (7,285,316) - - 131,668,293 7,704,792
Other postemployment benefits................. 4,178,013 - 1,975,099 (898,763) 5,254,349

Compensated absences.................veeeunnee, 380,613 - 451,552 (321,133) 511,032 440,726
Capital lease obligations.................c........ 273,680 - 382,683 (106,734) 549,629 239,171
Customer deposits payable....................... 2,374,342 - (818,429) - 1,555,913 -
Unearned revenue.............ccceeeeevieiinienens 8,151,552 - 1,972,331 (344,670) 9,779,213 337,545

Total business-type activity
long-term liabilities...............cccoceeveenene $ 150,685865 $ 3,625944 $ (7,285,316) $ 3,963,236 $ (1,671,300) $ 149,318,429 $ 8,722,234

The governmental activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund. Business-type
activities long-term liabilities are liquidated by each respective fund.

NOTE 9 — GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The Town adopted GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
as part of the fiscal year 2011 reporting. The intention of the GASB is to provide a more structured classification
of fund balance and to improve the usefulness of fund balance reporting to the users of the Town'’s financial
statements. The reporting standard establishes a hierarchy for fund balance classifications and the constraints
imposed on the uses of those resources.

GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable. Nonspendable
fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted to cash or they
are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items, inventories,
and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The Town has reported principal portions of endowment funds as
nonspendable.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

o Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.
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¢ Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority. The Town’s highest level of decision making is made by Town Council.

e Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.

e Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.

Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 85B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body.

In accordance with Statement No. 54, the stabilization fund has been reported in the general fund. At year end
the balance of the General Stabilization Fund is $1,693,141 and is reported as unassigned fund balance within
the General Fund.

The Town has classified its fund balances with the following hierarchy:

Nonmajor Total
Governmental  Governmental
General Funds Funds
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal......................... $ - $ 2,564,886 $ 2,564,886
Restricted for:
Town special revenue funds..................... - 1,974,320 1,974,320
School lunch..........cooiiiii - 144,438 144,438
School revolving funds................cooee el - 1,494,073 1,494,073
Community preservation fund................... - 4,586,317 4,586,317
Town capital projects..........ococvviveveninnn. - 3,752,781 3,752,781
Expendable trust funds.......................... - 8,159,027 8,159,027
Trustfunds.........ooiiii - - -
Assigned to:
General government..............ccooeeeeeenne. 134,416 - 134,416
Public safety........cccoove i 611,331 - 611,331
Education...........cooiiii i, 109,870 - 109,870
Public WOrks.......coooiiiii 275,746 - 275,746
Human Services.........cooovviiiiiiiin e 7,997 - 7,997
Culture and recreation.............cccoeveeveennn . 1,360 - 1,360
UNassigned........c.oooviiiiiiie e 15,847,651 - 15,847,651
Total Fund Balances..............ccooooeeieiiiennnn, $ 16,988,371 $ 22,675,842 $ 39,664,213
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NOTE 10 — RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three fiscal years.

The Town is self-insured for its health and workers’ compensation insurance activities. Health insurance activities
are accounted for in the internal service fund where revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred. Workers’ compensation claims are administered by a third party
administrator and are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis from annual appropriations.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). The result of
the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on many factors. Accordingly,
claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claims settlement trends, and other
economic and social factors.

@ Health Insurance

The estimate of IBNR claims is based on management’s best estimate of claims history. The Town
purchases individual stop loss insurance for claims in excess of the coverage provided by the Town in the
amount of $100,000 per claim. At June 30, 2012, the amount of the liability for health insurance claims
totaled $1,175,000 which is the best estimate based on available information. Changes in the reported
liability since July 1, 2010 are as follows:

Current Year Balance at
Balance at Claims and Fiscal
Beginning of Changes in Claims Year-End
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Currently Due
Fiscal Year 2011.......... $ 1,042,472 $ 11,555,938 $ (11,716,507) $ 881,903
Fiscal Year 2012.......... 881,903 13,802,245 (13,509,148) 1,175,000

(b) Workers’ Compensation

The estimated future workers’ compensation liability is based on history and injury type. The Town
purchases individual workers’ compensation insurance for claims in excess of the coverage provided by
the Town in the amounts ranging between $300,000 and $500,000 per claim. At June 30, 2012, the
amount of the liability for workers’ compensation claims totaled $401,583. Changes in the reported
liability since July 1, 2010 are as follows:

Current Year

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-End
Fiscal Year 2011.......... $ 565,210 $ 222,581 $ (251,222) $ 536,569
Fiscal Year 2012.......... 536,569 257,834 (292,388) 502,015

The BELD participates in the Massachusetts Municipal Self-Insurance Trust (the Trust) with 17 other municipal
light departments for the purpose of sharing excess liability and directors’ and officers’ liability risks. Through the
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Trust, BELD is commercially insured for $25,000,000 per occurrence, with a $500,000 deductible that would be
paid by the Trust. Each of the participating light department’s contributes to the Trust based on its share of the
group’s total kilowatt-hour sales. Payments for claims under the deductible limit are funded by trust assets or, if
required, additional contributions from the participants. The BELD considers its share of potential losses to be
immaterial to its financial statements as of December 31, 2011.

NOTE 11 — PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the System, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Braintree Contributory Retirement Board. Substantially all employees are members of
the System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members of the Massachusetts
Teachers Retirement System, to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative
expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount
of these on-behalf payments totaled approximately $12,736,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and,
accordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Braintree Contributory Retirement Board and are borne
by the System. The System issues a publicly available unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines
established by the Commonwealth’s PERAC. That report may be obtained by contacting the System located at
74 Pond Street, Braintree, Massachusetts, 02184.

At December 31, 2011, the System’s membership consists of the following:

ACtiVE MEMDEIS.....o s 728
Inactive members... ... 66
Disabled members..........oooiiiii 64
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits......... 440

Lo = | P PPN 1,298

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of
annual covered compensation. The Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide
actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current payroll.
Administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings. The current and two preceding fiscal years
apportionment of the annual pension cost between the two employers required the Town to contribute 99% of the
total. Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town.

Annual Pension Cost - The Town contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and
2010 were $7,201,414, $6,835,093, and $6,646,676, which equaled its required contribution for each fiscal year.
At June 30, 2012, the Town did not have a net pension obligation. The required contribution was determined as
part of the January 1, 2010, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included a 7.875% investment rate of return and projected salary increases of 4.25% per year. The
actuarial value of the System's assets was determined using the fair value of the assets. The System's unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls on a closed basis. The
remaining amortization period at January 1, 2010, was 19 years. The general fund and the enterprise funds each
pay their respective portions of the total pension expense annually.
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Schedule of Funding Progress (dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (©) ((B-A)IC)

1/1/10 $ 137,153 $ 202,777 $ 65,624 67.6% $ 35,051 187.2%

1/1/08 141,346 189,266 47,920 74.7% 33,894 141.4%

1/1/06 119,722 167,313 47,591 71.6% 30,861 154.2%

1/1/04 103,345 151,324 47,979 68.3% 29,450 162.9%

1/1/02 91,927 132,850 40,923 69.2% 28,775 142.2%

1/1/00 89,822 117,318 27,496 76.6% 24,276 113.3%

Funding progress is reported based on the biennial actuarial valuation performed by the System, and is being
accumulated on a biennial basis. The Town is responsible for approximately 98% of the unfunded liability.

NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The Town administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the Retiree Health
Plan”), which the BELD patrticipates in. The plan provides lifetime healthcare and life insurance for eligible
retirees and their spouses through the Town’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired
members, including teachers. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions of the Plan. Medical and prescription drug benefits are provided to all eligible retirees through a variety
of plans offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care, and Tufts Health Plan.
Benefit provisions are negotiated between the Town and the unions representing Town employees and are
renegotiated each bargaining period.

At January 1, 2012, the Plan’s membership consisted of the following:

Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents....... 885
Current active members..........cocoveviiiiiiiiiiieinen. 1,230
Total e 2,115

Funding Policy — Contributions requirements are also negotiated between the Town and union representatives.
The required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. Retired plan members and
beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are required to contribute between 33% and 50% of the cost of benefits
provided depending on the plan they choose. The Town and the BELD are required to contribute the balance of
the current premiums and may contribute additional amounts to pre-fund benefits. The Town contributed
approximately $6.2 million including a pre-funding contribution of approximately $523,000 during fiscal year 2012,
and the BELD contributed approximately $518,000 including a pre-funding contribution of $130,000 during
calendar year 2011 towards these benefits. Administrative costs of the Plan are assumed to be included in the
fully insured premium rates.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts passed special legislation that has allowed the Town to establish the
Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund and to enable the Town to raise taxes necessary to begin pre-funding its
OPEB liabilities. Through June 30, 2012, the Town has contributed approximately $912,000 towards these future
liabilities.
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Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation — The Town'’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over
a period not to exceed thirty years. The components of the Town’s and the BELD’s annual OPEB cost for the
periods, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the net OPEB obligation are summarized in
the following table:

Annual required contribution........................... $ 15,278,511
Interest on net OPEB obligation........................ 1,586,909
Adjustments to annual required contribution........ (2,295,422)

Annual OPEB cost/expense.............cc.ccceieunnenn 14,569,998
Contributions made...........cooiiiiii i (6,763,783)
Increase/(Decrease) in net OPEB obligation........ 7,806,215
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year............. 39,449,840
Net OPEB obligation - end of year..................... $ 47,256,055

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation
was as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2012 $ 14,569,998 46% $ 47,256,055
6/30/2011 17,154,572 33% 39,449,840
6/30/2010 15,942,714 34% 28,115,507

Funded Status and Funding Progress — The funded status of the Plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation
date is as follows:

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)/C)
1/1/2012  $ 652,936 $ 189,802,014 $ 189,149,078 0.3% $ 68,300,737 276.94%
1/1/2010 - 192,200,348 192,200,348 0% 61,475,231 312.65%
1/1/2007 - 158,006,080 158,006,080 0% 73,735,316 214.29%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the basic financial statements,

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts 63 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effect of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following additional information is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation:

Actuarial Methods:

Valuation date............coovviii i, January 1, 2012

Actuarial cost method..............ccooiiiiiiiin Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method...............cocciii i Amortization payments increasing at 3.25%,
based on a level percentage of projected payroll

Remaining amortization period................c.ccoou.ail 26 years at January 1, 2012, closed

Asset valuation method...............ccocoiii Market value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return................coeve i, 4.00%

Inflation rate............cooviiiiiii 2.50% per year

Projected salary increases............ooveviiiie e, 3.00% per year

Medical/drug costtrend rate.............ccovvveevennennnn, 7.00% graded to 5.00% in year 2015

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS

Under the terms of an Administrative Consent Order (ACO) from the Commonwealth’s Department of
Environmental Protection, the Town is obligated to make various repairs and improvements to its sewer and
drainage system. Accordingly, the Town has expended over $11.8 million on improvements to the system over
the last 10 years to comply with the ACO.

The Town has entered into contracts totaling approximately $2.3 million for various school, public safety and
public works projects. The Town has authorized building renovations of approximately $1.3 million. The Town
also plans to authorize and contract for an additional $6.7 million for water and roadway projects.

The BELD has entered into a Power Sales Agreement (PSA), as a participant in Nuclear Project No. 5, with
Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company (MMWEC) for a share of the power supply capability of
Seabrook Unit 1. BELD effectively participates in a 0.6% (7 MW) share of Seabrook Unit 1. Under the terms of
the PSA, the BELD is obligated to pay for its share of MMWEC's actual operating and capital costs, including
decommissioning, interest and financing costs related to this generating unit. Seabrook Unit 1 began commercial
operations in 1990, and its operating license expires in 2030. The BELD’s obligations to pay are not contingent
on the future operation of the unit. The BELD'’s total principal obligation, excluding operating and maintenance,
interest and decommissioning expenses associated with its share of MMWEC's Seabrook Unit 1 outstanding
debt, is approximately $12,617,000 at December 31, 2011.

The BELD has also entered into various long-term agreements to purchase power from other utilities. At
December 31, 2011, the estimated annual capacity costs relating to these agreements total approximately
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$35,200,000. The amount estimated for 2012 is $5,900,000 with annual decrease estimated as contract
entittements decreases and expires through 2019.

NOTE 14 — CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2012, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

The BELD is subject, like other electric utilities, to evolving standards administered by federal, state and local
authorities relating to the quality of the environment. These standards affect the sighting of electric property,
ambient air and water quality, plant safety and other environmental factors. These standards have had an impact
on the BELD’s operations in the past and they will continue to have an impact on future operations, capital costs
and construction schedules.

Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2012,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
statements at June 30, 2012.

NOTE 15 — LAND TAKING

During fiscal year 2003, the Metropolitan District Commission took, by eminent domain, a conservation easement
on a portion of Town owned land, for which it compensated the Town $2,000,000. The Town subsequently voted
that the funds received would be managed by the Trust Fund Commissioners. The yearly income from such
funds is to be spent under the direction of the Braintree School Committee for the support of the public schools.
The fund is included with other permanent funds in the Nonmajor Governmental Funds.

NOTE 17 — IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
During fiscal year 2012, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:

e GASB Statement #62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The implementation of this pronouncement did
not impact the basic financial statements.

e GASB Statement #64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions,

an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53. The implementation of this pronouncement did not impact the
basic financial statements.
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The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in future fiscal years:

e The GASB issued Statement #60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2013.

e The GASB issued Statement #61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, which is required to be
implemented in fiscal year 2013.

e The GASB issued Statement #63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2013.

e The GASB issued Statement #65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required
to be implemented in fiscal year 2013.

e The GASB issued Statement #66, Technical Corrections — 2012, an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 10 and No. 62, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2013.

e The GASB issued Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

e The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2015.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.
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General Fund Budgetary Comparison
Schedule

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all of the Town’s financial
resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts Variance
Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds. . $ 69,849,485 $ 69,849,485 $ 69,727,818 $ -3 (121,667)
Tax liens... - - 77,774 - 77,774
Motor vehicle and other excise taxe: 4,234,000 4,234,000 4,081,969 - (152,031)
Hotel/motel tax 741,000 741,000 784,781 - 43,781
Penalties and interest on taxes. 315,000 315,000 371,394 - 56,394
Payments in lieu of taxes 2,140,571 2,140,571 2,118,112 - (22,459)
Intergovernmental 17,979,557 17,979,557 18,133,934 - 154,377
Departmental and other, 4,095,344 4,095,344 4,890,956 - 795,612
Investment income 75,000 75,000 169,940 - 94,940
TOTAL REVENUES...........ociiiiinieie 99,429,957 99,429,957 100,356,678 - 926,721
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government:
Town Council
Administration 234,028 194,028 161,528 - 32,500
Internal Aud 74,000 60,679 32,150 - 28,529
Articles . 5714 5,714 50 5,664 -
] Y 313,742 260,421 193,728 5,664 61,029
Mayor's Office
AdmInistration.............oeiiiiinii 405,137 375,137 354,668 6,594 13,875
Fair Housing................ 2,275 2,275 468 - 1,807
Commission on Disabilities. . 1,017 1,017 157 - 860
] Y 408,429 378,429 355,293 6,594 16,542
Finance Department
AdmInistration.............oviiiien i 319,678 129,269 125,529 2,750 990
Accounting.. 229,335 229,335 214,299 6,035 9,001
Assessing 287,834 287,834 278,087 - 9,747
Information Technology. - 327,745 327,745 292,029 31,510 4,206
General INSUraNCeS..........ccoeeviiiiiiiiiaireeeaaenns 390,000 445,000 428,125 5,000 11,875
Treasurer/Collector. 836,684 836,684 786,248 37,077 13,359
Bond Principal . 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000 - -
Bond INterest..........vvvviieiieeeeiie e 686,619 686,619 686,619 - -
Leases 246,089 246,089 245,892 - 197
Capital Project. . 31,346 31,346 - 31,346 -
ATICIES ..ot 3,976 3,976 - 3,976 -
] Y 5,559,306 5,423,897 5,256,828 117,694 49,375
Law Department
Administration... 195,492 195,492 181,581 - 13,911
Licensing Board 28,684 28,684 28,314 - 370
224,176 224,176 209,895 - 14,281
Human Resources
AdMINIStration..............cocceeieiiiinn i 529,957 479,957 409,668 410 69,879
Employee Benefits..............cocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnn, 13,998,676 13,963,676 13,616,859 - 346,817
Veterans Benefits. 291,570 291,570 233,905 - 57,665
Celebrations . 6,700 6,700 5,578 - 1,122
] Y 14,826,903 14,741,903 14,266,010 410 475,483
Town Clerk
AdmInistration.............ovuiiiien i 98,415 98,415 94,180 - 4,235
Elections.... 53,825 53,825 51,887 - 1,938
Registration 102,618 102,618 93,613 - 9,005
254,858 254,858 239,680 - 15,178
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts Variance
Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
Planning and Community Development
Administration 134,254 134,254 133,000 54 1,200
Planning.. 72,370 72,370 71,064 - 1,306
Conservatio . 97,995 97,995 80,056 - 17,939
Economic Development............cccuuuveiineeennnnns 75,746 75,746 51,564 4,000 20,182
Historical Commission. 2,000 2,000 1,937 - 63
382,365 382,365 337,621 4,054 40,690
Total General Government.............cccevevvennnnn. 21,969,779 21,666,049 20,859,055 134,416 672,578
Public Safety:
Police
AdmInistration.............ovuiiiien i 718,696 718,696 704,797 8,378 5,521
Building Maintenance................cccceeeiiieeins 136,104 116,104 108,700 2,000 5,404
Equipment Maintenance 213,380 283,380 253,734 10,512 19,134
Patrol Bureau . 4,115,839 4,205,839 4,194,392 - 11,447
ComMUNICAtIONS.......uvuiiiiiiiiicie i 872,520 722,520 691,451 18,244 12,825
Detective Bureau 808,951 808,951 800,176 - 8,775
Traffic Bureau... . 165,741 165,741 164,546 - 1,195
Special Services/Community Policing............... 531,320 561,320 550,418 4,800 6,102
Harbormaster.... 4,100 4,100 3,890 - 210
Animal Control 62,652 62,652 57,702 1,907 3,043
Capital Projects. 15,000 15,000 10,596 4,404 -
Articles. 193,688 193,688 53,306 140,382 -
Total.. 7,837,991 7,857,991 7,593,708 190,627 73,656
Fire
Administration... 255,710 261,710 243,453 17,798 459
Building Maintenance. 139,057 125,357 110,991 14,242 124
Equipment Maintenance 144,605 158,105 156,913 1,160 32
Fire Suppression 6,227,494 6,282,494 6,225,729 56,714 51
Fire Alarm Repair. . 116,141 110,141 109,730 407 4
Fire Hazmat.............oovvieiiien i 101,822 99,822 97,002 2,820 -
Fire Prevention 98,739 101,939 101,184 750 5
Training . 100,323 107,323 103,648 3,673 2
Capital Project............coiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee s 150,000 150,000 9,500 140,500 -
Articles. 215,500 215,500 40,500 175,000 -
Total.... 7,549,391 7,612,391 7,198,650 413,064 677
Municipal Licenses and Inspection
Administration... 191,908 191,908 186,869 300 4,739
Equipment Maintenance 4,755 4,755 3,740 400 615
Inspections/Code Enforcement 344,043 346,043 342,939 - 3,104
Weights and Measures 62,747 62,747 62,235 - 512
Health . 205,699 205,849 200,007 - 5,842
Zoning Board of Appeals...............ooocuiiiininns 495 495 309 - 186
Articles. 6,940 6,940 - 6,940 -
Total.... 816,587 818,737 796,099 7,640 14,998
Total Public Safety.............cccoovieiiiiiiiiiiinin, 16,203,969 16,289,119 15,588,457 611,331 89,331
Education:
Education 49,100,160 49,270,160 49,146,797 109,870 13,493
Regional School District. 1,759,902 1,759,902 1,759,902 - -
Total Education.............ccccocovivieniiiinieniin 50,860,062 51,030,062 50,906,699 109,870 13,493
(Continued)
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts Variance
Original Final Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
Public Works:
Public Works
AdMINistration..........c..ovuiiiiin i 273,797 273,797 261,443 - 12,354
Facilities and Equipment Maintenance.............. 708,084 718,084 695,554 27 22,503
Equipment Maintenance 277,026 352,026 318,189 - 33,837
Engineering... 178,461 178,461 171,100 - 7,361
Construction Administratiol 192,113 192,113 187,617 - 4,496
Highway.. 1,268,316 1,325,816 1,259,393 4,598 61,825
Drains.. 20,000 20,000 16,259 - 3,741
Sidewalks . 34,800 34,800 30,940 - 3,860
Street Lighting.........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiis 325,000 325,000 325,000 - -
167,543 167,543 147,672 - 19,871
Snow and Ice. . 300,000 237,926 237,926 - -
Environmental Affairs and Waste Collection...... 1,762,000 1,762,000 1,726,313 6,315 29,372
Cemetery 74,541 74,541 68,899 - 5,642
Maintenance Town Hal . 95,000 89,500 88,545 - 955
Recreation and Community Events.................. 138,496 158,496 149,554 3,081 5,861
Watson Building Maintenance. 26,750 29,750 26,136 58 3,556
Grounds Maintenance .. 537,877 537,877 516,514 - 21,363
SUMMET Programs............oeeueeeeeiineeeiineeeiinees 145,000 145,000 145,000 - -
Brawey Recreation 80,000 80,000 80,000 - -
Daugherty Gym. 10,000 10,000 5,302 - 4,698
Capital Project.. . 80,294 80,294 - 80,294 -
ATtICIES. ..o 244,389 244,389 63,015 181,373 1
Total Public WOrKS.............ccoovriiiiiiiiiiinns 6,939,487 7,037,413 6,520,371 275,746 241,296
Human Services:
Council on Aging
Administration 187,032 187,032 184,957 - 2,075
Equipment Maintenance 37,019 38,519 38,492 - 27
Building Maintenance.... . 19,226 17,726 17,720 - 6
Y (1 PP 7,997 7,997 - 7,997 -
Total Human Services...........ovvveeeieeieeriennnnnnns 251,274 251,274 241,169 7,997 2,108
Culture and Recreation:
Library
Administration 188,366 188,366 156,247 - 32,119
Building Maintenance. 109,000 109,000 108,937 - 63
Equipment Maintenance..............c.ccccoveevenns 1,000 1,000 529 - 471
Technology................. 52,000 52,000 51,793 - 207
Current Topics and Titles 816,073 816,073 762,503 - 53,570
Lifelong Learning 119,574 119,574 118,678 - 896
Community Commons 3,500 3,500 3,308 - 192
Capital Project.. 150,000 150,000 148,640 1,360 -
Total Culture and Recreation.......................... 1,439,513 1,439,513 1,350,635 1,360 87,518
State and County ASSESSMENtS..........cceevvieiiiiiiiieenins 3,551,580 3,551,580 3,571,252 - (19,672)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES............cooiiiiiiiiii 101,215,664 101,265,010 99,037,638 1,140,720 1,086,652
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeie, (1,785,707) (1,835,053) 1,319,040 (1,140,720) 2,013,373
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Premium from issuance of bonds. - - 307,702 - 307,702
Transfers in 518,149 518,149 589,900 - 71,751
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES).......ccuvviiiieiiiiiiiiiees 518,149 518,149 897,602 - 379,453
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE... (1,267,558) (1,316,904) 2,216,642 (1,140,720) 2,392,826
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year. 14,363,748 14,363,748 14,363,748 - -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year. 13,096,190 $ 13,046,844 $ 16,580,390 $ (1,140,720) $ 2,392,826
See notes to required supplementary information. (Concluded)
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Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Schedules

The Schedule of Funding progress compares, over time, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits with the
actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, over time, the Annual Required Contributions to the Actual
Contributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)IC)
1/1/2012 652,936 $ 189,802,014 $ 189,149,078 0.3% $ 68,300,737 276.94%
1/1/2010 - 192,200,348 192,200,348 0% 61,475,231 312.65%
1/1/2007 - 158,006,080 158,006,080 0% 73,735,316 214.29%
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual Actual Percentage of
Year Required Contributions the ARC
Ended Contribution (ARC) Made Contributed
6/30/2012 $ 15,278,511 $ 6,763,783 44%
6/30/2011 17,392,724 5,820,239 33%
6/30/2010 16,760,687 5,357,220 32%
6/30/2009 14,426,107 5,497,619 38%
6/30/2008 13,479,497 5,040,160 37%

See notes to required supplementary information.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial Methods:

Valuation date..........coooii i January 1, 2012

Actuarial cost method................coooiiiie Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method................coooi i, Amortization payments increasing at 3.25%,
based on a level percentage of projected payroll

Remaining amortization period........................... 26 years at January 1, 2012, closed

Asset valuation method.............ccccovovevii s, Market value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return................ooinl 4.00%

Inflation rate.........cooveriie i 2.50% per year

Projected salary increases...........c.cooveveiiiiieeennn, 3.00% per year

Medical/drug costtrend rate.............cocccvvvennnnnnn, 7.00% graded to 5.00% in year 2015
Plan Membership:

Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents..... 885

Current active members..........cooevviii i eenn, 1,230

TOtAl e 2,115

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts 74 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE A — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Council. The Mayor
presents an annual budget to the Town Council, which includes estimates of revenues and other financing
sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Town Council, which has authority
to amend down and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majority Town Council approval at a regular Council meeting.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior fiscal
year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year. These carry forwards are
included as part of the subsequent fiscal year’s original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (program and capital) authorized for an
appropriation account. However, the payment of debt service is statutorily required, regardless of whether such
amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments may
exceed the level of spending authorized by two-thirds majority vote of the Town Council and written approval from
the Massachusetts Department of Revenue.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original
fiscal year 2012 approved budget authorized approximately $101.2 million in appropriations and other amounts to
be raised, including $1,251,000 in amounts carried over from previous fiscal years. During fiscal year 2012, the
Town Council also approved supplemental appropriations totaling approximately $49,000.

The Town Accountant has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control is
exercised through the accounting system.

B. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, is presented below:
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis...................... $ 2,216,642

Perspective differences:
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the

general fund for GAAP.......coii i (53,099)
Activity of the municipal building insurance fund
recorded in the general fund for GAAP.............coceee e, (87,965)
Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in recording tax refunds payable..................... 2,000
Net change in recording accrued payroll...................co.e.. (2,400)
Recognition of revenue for on-behalf payments.................. 12,736,422
Recognition of expenditures for on-behalf payments............ (12,736,422)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis............cc.ccooeeeenil, $ 2,075,178

C. Appropriation Deficits

Expenditures exceeded appropriation in state and county assessments. This is based on a state assessment
which is not required to be raised in the tax levy.

NOTE B — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“The Retiree Health Plan”). The plan
provides lifetime healthcare and life insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town'’s group
health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members.

The Town currently finances its other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result,
the funded ratio (actuarial value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability) is 0.3%. In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the Town has recorded its OPEB cost equal to the
actuarial determined annual required contribution (ARC) which includes the normal cost of providing benefits for
the year and a component for the amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the plan.

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information for required and actual
contributions relating to the plan.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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Other Supplementary Information
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Combining Statements

The combining financial statements provide a more detailed view of the “Basic Financial Statements” presented in
the preceding subsection.

Combining statements are presented when there are more than one fund of a given fund type.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than permanent
funds or capital project funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Town Special Revenue Funds — accounts for the non-school related funds designated for specific programs, this
fund consists primarily of state and federal grants and gifts as well as the non-school related activity of revolving
funds established in accordance with MGL Chapter 44, Section 53E Y.

School Lunch Fund — account used for all cafeteria activities and is funded by user charges, federal and state
grants and commodities received.

School Special Revenue Funds — accounts for the school department’s funds designated for specific programs,
this fund consists primarily of state and federal grants and gifts as well as the non-school related activity of
revolving funds established in accordance with MGL Chapter 44, Section 53E Y.

Community Preservation Fund — accounts for the accumulation of resources for the acquisition, creation,
preservation and support of open space, historic resources, recreational uses and community housing.

Highway Improvements Fund — accounts for construction, reconstruction and improvements of roadways, streets

and sidewalks.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of major capital assets (other than those financed by enterprise funds). Such resources are derived
principally from proceeds of general obligation bonds and grants.

Town Capital Project Funds — accounts for the construction and renovation of Town projects.

Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not
principal, may be used for purposes that support governmental programs.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds — accounts for the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmental programs.

Expendable Trust Funds — accounts for the accumulated realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor
restricted funds within the nonexpendable trust funds.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents..............cccccceeeneieenns

Investments.............

Receivables, net of uncollectibles:

Tax liens.............

Departmental and other................ccocoieiienens

Intergovernmental

TOTAL ASSETS.......

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accrued payroll....
Deferred revenues
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES..

FUND BALANCES:

Nonspendable......

ReStricted. .......uevniii e

TOTAL FUND BALANCES..........cooiiieiiiies

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

Special Revenue Funds

Town School
Special Special Community
Revenue School Revenue Preservation Highway
Funds Lunch Funds Fund Improvements Subtotal
1,957,875 $ 154,546 $ 1,499,482 $ 4,586,317 $ - $ 8,198,220
18,422 - - - - 18,422
- - - 1,921 - 1,921
- - - 10,527 - 10,527
- - - 145,945 3,853,891 3,999,836
1,976,297 $ 154546 $ 1499482 $ 4744710 $ 3,853,891 $ 12,228,926
1977 % 10,108 $ 5409 $ - % - $ 17,494
- - - 158,393 2,431,052 2,589,445
- - - - 1,422,839 1,422,839
1,977 10,108 5,409 158,393 3,853,891 4,029,778
1,974,320 144,438 1,494,073 4,586,317 - 8,199,148
1,974,320 144,438 1,494,073 4,586,317 - 8,199,148
1,976,297 $ 154546 $ 1499482 $ 4744710 $ 3,853,891 $ 12,228,926
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Permanent Funds

Total
Town Nonmajor
Capital Nonexpendable Expendable Governmental
Projects Trust Trust Subtotal Funds

$ 3,752,781 $ 2,564,886 $ 1,500,048 $ 4,064,934 $ 16,015,935
- - 6,658,979 6,658,979 6,677,401

- - - - 1,921
- - - - 10,527
- - - - 3,999,836

$ 3,752,781 $ 2,564,886 $ 8,159,027 $ 10,723913 $ 26,705,620

$ - $ - $ - % - 3 17,494
- - - - 2,589,445
. i . - 1,422,839

. i . : 4,029,778

- 2,564,886 - 2,564,886 2,564,886
3,752,781 - 8,159,027 8,159,027 20,110,956

3,752,781 2,564,886 8,159,027 10,723,913 22,675,842

$ 3,752,781 $ 2,564,886 $ 8,159,027 $ 10,723913 $ 26,705,620
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Town School
Special Special Community
Revenue School Revenue Preservation Highway
Funds Lunch Funds Fund Improvements Subtotal
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental.............coevvviiiiiiiiin e, $ 613,821 $ 503,820 $ 5,521,323 $ 145945 $ 2,526,702 $ 9,311,611
Departmental and other 550,906 1,098,002 1,545,897 - - 3,194,805
Community Preservation.............o.eeeveeueeieeiniiineeennen - - - 559,244 - 559,244
Contributions 112,289 - 195,653 - - 307,942
Investment income 46 477 376 12,446 - 13,345
Miscellan@ous.............ccouiiiiiiii i 17,564 - - - - 17,564
TOTAL REVENUES..........ooiiiiic s 1,294,626 1,602,299 7,263,249 717,635 2,526,702 13,404,511
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government...........ocovviiieieiiiiiiiiee e 232,530 - - - - 232,530
Public safety........ccooouuiiiiiii i, 152,419 - - - - 152,419
EdUCAtioN.......uuiiiiii e - 1,616,766 7,396,017 - - 9,012,783
Public works............. 132,101 - - - 2,526,702 2,658,803
Community development.. - - - 643,366 - 643,366
Human services........... 152,801 - - - - 152,801
Culture and recreation 437,888 - - - - 437,888
TOTAL EXPENDITURES..........coooiiiiiiiins 1,107,739 1,616,766 7,396,017 643,366 2,526,702 13,290,590
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..........coooovviiiiinninn, 186,887 (14,467) (132,768) 74,269 - 113,921
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of long-term debt.... - - - - - -
Premium from issuance of bonds. 61,502 - - - - 61,502
Transfers in 130,500 - 133,339 - - 263,839
TranSfers OUL.......couuiitiiiii e e (228,371) - - - - (228,371)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).. (36,369) - 133,339 - - 96,970
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES............ccovvviienan. 150,518 (14,467) 571 74,269 - 210,891
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR................. 1,823,802 158,905 1,493,502 4,512,048 - 7,988,257
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.........cccoiiiiieianne. $ 1974320 $ 144,438 $ 1,494,073 $ 4,586,317 $ - $ 8,199,148
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Permanent Funds

Town Total
Capital Nonexpendable Expendable Governmental
Projects Trust Trust Subtotal Funds
$ 1,346,266 $ - $ - 8 - $ 10,657,877
- - - - 3,194,805
- - - - 559,244
- - 145,491 145,491 453,433
- 58,953 (86,450) (27,497) (14,152)
- - - - 17,564
1,346,266 58,953 59,041 117,994 14,868,771
1,511,169 - 56,843 56,843 1,800,542
1,480,895 - - - 1,633,314
4,164,191 - - - 13,176,974
1,115,257 - - - 3,774,060
- - - - 643,366
- - - - 152,801
13,295 - - - 451,183
8,284,807 - 56,843 56,843 21,632,240
(6,938,541) 58,953 2,198 61,151 (6,763,469)
5,286,000 - - - 5,286,000
- - - - 61,502
- - - - 263,839
- - (177,723) (177,723) (406,094)
5,286,000 - (177,723) (177,723) 5,205,247
(1,652,541) 58,953 (175,525) (116,572) (1,558,222)
5,405,322 2,505,933 8,334,552 10,840,485 24,234,064
$ 3,752,781 $ 2,564,886 $ 8,159,027 $ 10,723,913 $ 22,675,842
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Pension and Other Employee Benefit
Trust Funds

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The other postemployment benefit trust fund is used to accumulate resources to provide funding for future other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities.
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PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Pension Other
Trust Fund Postemployment
(as of December Benefit
31, 2011) Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents................ccocovveiiie e, $ 2,129,537 $ 914,117
Investments:
Fixed income mutual funds............ccooiiiii 52,600,105 -
Domestic equity mutual funds..............ccoeeeiie v, 31,809,128 -
International equity mutual funds......................ei. 16,590,807 -
Pension reserve investment trust................ccooeevvvenne. 32,128,530 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Departmental and other.............cocovviiiciiiie s 81,293 -
Prepaid eXPeNSES. .. ..o i 7,969 -
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt et e e e e e 135,347,369 914,117
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable..........cove i e 50,935 -
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension and OPEB benefits.................. $ 135,296,434 $ 914,117
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PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

EMPIOYEr. ..o
EMPIOYEE....co i

Total contributions................oooviiiiiinn.

Net investment income:
Net change in fair value of investments

INEEIESt. . e
DivIdeNndS. ...

Total investment income.........................
Less: investment eXpense.........cccoveveeneennen.
Net investment inCOmMe..........c.coeveviveviinens
Intergovernmental.............ccoeoii i
Transfers from other systems......................

TOTAL ADDITIONS..........ooii e,

DEDUCTIONS:

Administration..........ccco i,
Transfers to other systems..............cc.oveennn.
Retirement benefits and refunds...................
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS......cooiiviieeieenn
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS....c.civiveeene e

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.............cees

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

Pension Other
Trust Fund Postemployment
(as of December Benefit
31, 2011) Trust Fund

............................. $ 7,376,253 $ 767,299
.............................. 3,480,827 -
.............................. 10,857,080 767,299
............................. (2,076,151) -
.............................. 947,770 1,705
.............................. 2,472,656 -
............................. 1,344,275 1,705
.............................. (662,624) -
............................. 681,651 1,705
.............................. 319,598 -
.............................. 359,554 -
.............................. 12,217,883 769,004
.............................. 242,237 -
.............................. 961,290 -
............................. 13,272,421 -
.............................. 14,475,948 -
.............................. (2,258,065) 769,004
.............................. 137,554,499 145,113
.............................. $ 135,296,434 $ 914,117
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Agency Fund

Fund Description

Agency Funds are used to account for the collection and payment of charges for off-duty work details,
performance bonds, and fees collected on behalf of other governments, and other funds.
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AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Agency Agency
Accounts Accounts
June 30, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..................c..coeeeee .. $ 196,824 $ 2,325,813 $ (2,301,133) $ 221,504
LIABILITIES
Liabilities due depositors...............cccccvvevviinnnnn... $ 196,824 $ 2,325,813 $ (2,301,133) $ 221,504
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Statistical Section

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012



Statistical Section

This part of the Town of Braintree’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the Town’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Town'’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Town’s most significant local revenue source,
the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the Town'’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the Town'’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
Town’s financial report relates to the services the Town provides and the activities it performs.

SOURCES: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the audited financial
reports for the relevant year or our Official Statements.
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Net Assets By Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Governmental activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 33,061,812 $ 35,368,873 $ 40,789,164 $ 43,345,827 $ 43,316,956 $ 44,741,728 $ 43,952,129 $ 44,776,089 $ 47,910,553 $ 52,564,200

Restricted 11,512,196 13,239,956 14,907,893 15,473,044 17,085,091 14,564,774 15,387,436 17,909,375 18,984,718 19,081,454

Unrestricted.... 5,087,079 4,992,568 5,069,719 2,866,257 7,669,389 3,262,565 (1,978,165) (8,277,629) (14,151,761) (20,004,880)
Total governmental activities net assets..................... $ 49,661,087 $ 53,601,397 $ 60,766,776 $ 61,685,128 $ 68,071,436 $ 62,569,067 $ 57,361,400 $ 54,407,835 $ 52,743510 $ 51,640,774
Business-type activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........ $ 58,974,463 $ 57,764,648 $ 59,488,429 $ 64,607,373 $ 63,680,466 $ 63,472,319 $ 73,771,758 $ 72,287,202 $ 69,022,850 $ 71,591,338

Restricted 2,376,658 2,743,606 4,033,000 - - - - - - -

Unrestricted.... 18,007,703 20,234,857 19,021,674 18,513,324 19,790,984 24,074,877 14,243,145 17,782,384 22,809,172 18,020,393
Total business-type activities net assets..................... $ 79,358,824 % 80,743,111 $ 82,543,103 $ 83,120,697 $ 83,471,450 $ 87,547,196 $ 88,014,903 $ 90,069,586  $ 91,832,022 $ 89,611,731
Primary government

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt........ $ 92,036,275 $ 93,133,521 $ 100,277,593 $ 107,953,200 $ 106,997,422 $ 108,214,047 $ 117,723,887 $ 117,063,291 $ 116,933,403 $ 124,155,538

Restricted. 13,888,854 15,983,562 18,940,893 15,473,044 17,085,091 14,564,774 15,387,436 17,909,375 18,984,718 19,081,454

Unrestricted.... 23,094,782 25,227,425 24,091,393 21,379,581 27,460,373 27,337,442 12,264,980 9,504,755 8,657,411 (1,984,487)
Total primary government net assets......................... $ 129,019,911 $ 134,344,508 $ 143,309,879 $ 144,805,825 $ 151,542,886 $ 150,116,263 $  145376,303 $ 144,477,421 $ 144575532 $ 141,252,505
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Changes in Net Assets

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government. . $ 5,463,853 $ 5,162,891 $ 4,748,448  $ 4,362,423 $ 4,610,401 $ 4,554,086 $ 5734392 $ 5,547,521 $ 6,219,480 $ 6,120,306
Public safety. - 19,327,749 18,395,293 17,699,899 19,978,932 20,274,993 22,301,233 22,235,903 23,103,086 22,731,221 22,644,632
Education 57,353,310 57,535,022 61,636,873 66,563,400 69,958,696 76,732,757 79,763,519 82,719,562 85,120,589 87,632,097
Public work: 4,274,420 4,067,043 3,958,571 5,142,253 4,766,713 5,787,762 6,576,806 6,004,346 7,075,816 6,258,439
Sanitation. 1,327,825 1,572,296 1,521,317 1,529,887 1,556,431 1,597,784 1,654,683 1,531,123 1,421,972 1,734,699
Community preservation . - 13,602 148,258 27,002 249,447 104,793 35,109 41,392 76,049 168,276
Human service: 1,212,456 1,296,532 1,121,171 1,093,133 1,056,047 1,273,880 978,727 980,215 1,064,014 1,108,036
Culture and recreation.................coeeevieieseeieninn 2,969,436 2,797,240 2,760,733 3,234,716 3,299,641 3,532,149 3,508,767 3,504,511 3,733,359 3,685,605
INEETEST. .ot 386,181 489,382 359,592 422,825 357,055 444,173 367,644 543,891 620,316 668,246
Total governmental activities expense: 92,315,230 91,329,301 93,954,862 102,354,571 106,129,424 116,328,617 120,855,550 123,975,647 128,062,816 130,020,336
Business-type activities:
Water and SEWET ..........c..cooiiviiiiiie i 9,647,140 10,088,353 10,127,709 10,907,670 11,751,499 11,993,133 12,234,294 12,357,150 12,992,288 12,960,228
Golf. 978,636 985,156 978,575 1,045,810 1,123,675 1,258,562 1,282,255 1,105,535 1,400,980 1,510,491
EICHC. ..o 40,125,951 43,951,002 47,687,729 51,616,634 61,409,672 62,262,396 65,563,538 71,421,238 72,454,533 70,895,924
Total business-type activity expenses...................ccco.e.. 50,751,727 55,024,511 58,794,013 63,570,114 74,284,846 75,514,091 79,080,087 84,883,923 86,847,801 85,366,643
Total primary expense: $ 143,066,957 $__ 146,353,812 $__ 152,748,875 $__ 165924,685 $__ 180414270 $__ 191.842,708 $ 199,935,637 $__ 208,859,570 $__ 214,910,617 $__ 215,386,979
Program Revenues
Governmental activities:
Charges for services.
General government. $ 717,957 $ 852,689 $ 759,576  $ 721,928 $ 749,484 $ 654,663 $ 613,460 $ 596,828 $ 517,136 $ 616,829
Public safety....... e 2,036,686 2,631,471 2,858,475 2,821,158 3,210,084 2,930,799 3,784,281 2,144,216 2,280,546 2,378,405
Education 3,804,096 4,525,351 4,843,321 5,510,661 5,763,417 2,663,710 2,597,937 2,443,837 2,368,875 2,017,758
Public work: 230,812 1,770,464 331,467 248,130 236,047 559,293 609,110 334,823 471,878 553,002
SANMAION. ... 373,147 322,403 1,412,272 1,778,699 2,176,617 1,600,028 1,593,698 1,613,247 1,568,749 1,548,721
Human service: 137,746 127,909 132,320 161,380 204,551 151,360 142,817 24,205 25,792 31,332
Culture and recreation............. 353,210 407,569 494,674 456,502 477,168 345,587 393,249 379,560 396,823 361,811
Operating grants and contributions. 15,157,695 17,094,611 20,224,583 19,559,212 23,943,924 24,465,441 28,083,776 30,924,968 33,221,854 33,518,827
Capital grants and contributions. 1,489,199 1,892,836 2,096,024 1,813,873 1,073,666 1,898,266 927,140 1,127,450 3,793,516 4,773,929
Total government activities program revenues. 24,300,548 29,625,303 33,152,712 33,071,543 37,834,958 35,269,147 38,745,468 39,589,134 44,645,169 45,800,614
Business-type activities:
Charges for services.
Water and SeWeT.............coovviiiiiiii i 8,838,469 10,372,001 10,508,277 11,380,011 12,081,357 13,675,011 12,580,294 12,561,820 13,208,817 12,932,512
Golf. 1,006,462 982,958 976,813 945,430 1,101,047 1,211,206 1,174,675 1,172,533 1,329,340 1,404,095
Electric.......cvovviiiiiiiiiiiiinins 40,724,114 46,248,689 49,167,046 51,521,575 60,497,429 63,700,105 65,900,014 73,443,746 75,896,314 70,762,137
Operating grants and contributions. 549,120 76,433 91,186 33,402 37,736 32,443 - - 215,783 -
Capital grants and contributions.. 434,712 - - 225,000 - - - - - 281,643
Total business-type activities program revenues 51,552,877 57,680,081 60,743,322 64,105,418 73,717,569 78,618,765 79,654,983 87,178,099 90,650,254 85,380,387

Total primary government program revenues.................... $ 75,853,425 $ 87,305,384 $ 93,896,034 $ 97,176,961 $__ 111552527 $_ 113,887,912 $ 118400451 $_ 126,767,233 $__ 135295423 $_ 131,181,001
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental aCtVIties.............oocoorccovvcrre i $ (68,014,682) $  (61,703,998) $  (60,802,150) $  (69,283,028) $  (68,294,466) $  (81,059,470) $  (82,110,082) $  (84,386,513) $  (83,417,647) $  (84,219,722)
Business-type activitie: 801,150 2,655,570 1,949,309 535,304 567,277, 3,104,674 574,896 2,294,176 3,802,453 13,744
Total primary government net expense........................... $___(67,213532) $__ (59,048.428) $__ (58,852,841) $__ (68.747.724) $__ (68.861.743) $_ (77,954.796) $__ (81535,186) $__ (82,092.337) $__ (79.615.194) $__(84,205,978)
General Revenues and other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:
Real estate, personal property taxes and tax liens,
net of tax refunds payable. $ 49,286,483 $ 50,526,807 $ 53,281,088 $ 54,950,810 $ 57,664,837 $ 59,616,548 $ 62,714,975 $ 65,822,590 $ 68,085,843 $ 69,679,306
Tax liens. 158,722 71,156 131,573 246,461 172,271 195,258 102,402 - - -
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. 3,727,878 4,754,565 4,486,604 4,608,617 4,230,104 4,641,332 4,021,318 4,067,074 4,284,625 4,039,432
ta 806,756 650,942 759,466 868,033 854,486 735,915 768,355 745,319 718,452 784,781
Community preservation tax. 377,358 411,603 432,367 459,792 474,210 455,258 551,133 530,249 558,590 559,244
Penalties and interest on taxes. 345,889 339,959 230,204 458,484 310,116 332,155 297,882 345,208 417,749 371,394
Payments in lieu of taxes.... 1,027,775 858,044 892,969 906,189 918,556 1,049,810 1,049,817 2,193,890 116,425 118,112
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific program: 6,667,294 6,357,189 6,618,722 6,674,487 7,426,676 7,163,431 6,619,494 5,072,674 4,949,885 4,989,211
Unrestricted investment income. 484,387 373,990 499,383 817,046 1,390,441 716,560 530,782 486,914 267,612 215,677
Gainonsale of land............... - - 10,972 - 656,876 - - - - -
Income from granting an easement on land. 2,000,000 - - - - - - - - -
Affordable housing development fees. - - - - - - - 1,800,000 - -
Miscellaneous............c.ocoviriirirnnns 122,774 28,770 474,864 104,033 401,646 551,830 91,623 77,800 69,345 70,051
Transfers........occoooeieiinis i 1,221,236 1,271,283 149,317 107,428 110,555 99,004 154,634 291,230 2,284,796 2,289,778
Total governmental activities. ...............c.ooveeieieinenins 66,226,552 65,644,308 67,967,529 70,201,380 74,610,774 75,557,101 76,902,415 81,432,948 81,753,322 83,116,986
Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment income................c..cc.ovi. - - - 149,718 308,420 1,070,076 47,445 51,737 244,779 55,743
Claims and judgments. - - - - 675,365 - - - - -
Transfers................ (1,221,236) (1,271,283 (149,317) (107,428) (110,555) 99,004) 154,634) 291,230) 2,284,796, 2,289,778
Total business-type activitie: (1,221,236) (1,271,283 (149,317) 42,290 873,230 971,072 (107,189) (239,493) (2,040,017) (2,234,035)
Total primary government...............cccccoeeeveienie e $ 65,005,316 $ 64,373,025  $ 67,818,212 $ 70,243,670 $ 75,484,004 76,795,226 $ 81,193455 $ 79,713,305 $ 80,882,951
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental aCtVItIeS...............oc.orverrverre s $ (1,788,130) $ 3940310 $ 7,165,379 $ 918,352 $ 6,316,308 $  (5502,369) $ (5,207,667) $  (2953565) $ (1,664,325) $  (1,102,736)
Business-type activitie: (420,086, 1,384,287 1,799,992 577,594 305,953 4,075,746 467,707 2,054,683 1,762,436 2,220,291
Total primary government...............cccccoeeeveienie e $ 2,208,216) $ 5,324,597 $ 8965371 $ 1495946 $ 6,622,261  $ (1,426,623) $ (4,739,960) $ (898,882) $ 98,111 $ 3,323,027
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Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Fund
Reserved.........ccocevveviiienn. $ 492,763 $ 655,529 $ 1,454,741 $ 508,261 $ 865,705 $ 760,035 $ 281,374 $ 895,787 $ - $ -
Unreserved 5,343,096 5,197,385 4,161,475 3,414,564 3,790,923 3,088,264 7,287,516 9,178,146 - -
Assigned... - - - - - - - - 1,250,576 1,140,720
Unassigned - - - - - - - - 13,160,254 15,847,651
Total general fund.............cooeinvennns $ 5,835,859 % 5,852,914 $ 5,616,216 $ 3,922,825 $ 4,656,628 $ 3,848,299 $ 7,568,890 $ 10,073,933 $ 14,410,830 $ 16,988,371
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved.........ccoocevveieiiiein. 8 6,220,026 $ 2,598,841 $ 2,594,497 $ 2,586,848 $ 2,513,808 $ 2,505,157 $ 2,606,133 $ 2,506,133 $ - $ -
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds.............. (74,843) 5,182,238 6,738,874 6,592,674 8,672,575 6,583,933 8,102,411 9,599,385 - -
Capital projects funds.............. 2,696,595 1,049,221 34,599 (1,374,542) 1,094,496 (494,856) 1,322,865 2,825,324 - -
Permanent funds.................... 4,793,116 5,175,256 5,574,522 5,829,563 6,742,763 6,979,609 6,157,529 7,857,627 - -
Nonspendable....... . - - - - - - - - 2,507,881 2,564,886
Restricted..........ccccoviiiiiiiiiaenn - - - - - - - - 21,726,183 20,110,956
Total all other governmental funds...... $ 13,634,894 $ 14,005556 $ 14,942,492 $ 13,634,543 $ 19,023,642 $ 15,573,843 $ 18,188,938 $ 22,788,469 $ 24,234,064 $ 22,675,842

The Town implemented GASB 54 in fiscal year 2011. Fund balances prior to fiscal year 2011 have been reported in the pre-GASB 54 format.
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Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Revenues:
Real estate, personal property taxes and tax liens,
net of tax refunds $ 49,383,103 $ 50,718,391 $ 52,961,468 $ 55,158,554 $ 57,768,689 $ 59,497,459 $ 62,755,355 $ 65,496,774 $ 67,862,201 $ 69,729,818
Tax Liens................. 93,762 55,883 52,311 231,598 172,271 63,809 76,974 57,843 81,120 77,774
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 4,168,251 4,523,270 4,685,843 4,281,453 4,201,636 4,611,877 4,165,414 3,985,784 4,306,011 4,081,969
Hotel/Motel tax.. 806,756 650,942 759,466 868,033 854,486 735,915 768,355 745,319 718,452 784,781
Penalties and interest on taxes 345,889 339,959 230,204 458,484 310,116 332,155 297,882 345,208 417,749 371,394
Payments in lieu of taxes.. 1,027,775 858,044 892,969 906,189 918,556 1,049,810 1,049,817 2,193,890 116,425 118,112
Intergovernmental... 22,830,943 23,692,431 25,198,861 25,775,357 28,812,244 30,601,263 34,012,768 35,740,583 38,999,975 41,528,233
Departmental and other. 5,019,021 7,307,259 7,689,484 7,563,960 9,027,969 10,250,943 10,450,639 7,761,742 7,788,136 8,085,761
Community preservation... 377,358 404,489 432,367 459,792 474,210 455,258 551,133 530,249 558,590 559,244
Affordable housing development fees.. - - - - - - - 1,800,000 - -
Contributions......... 101,183 280,144 231,500 367,149 768,016 366,096 1,071,110 640,918 364,569 453,433
Investment income.. 611,150 913,927 1,165,574 1,263,802 2,460,899 369,561 (201,774) 995,846 1,325,987 153,004
Miscellaneous 500 - 207,040 323,687 301,176 514,828 91,623 69,100 49,524 17,564
Total REVENUE.......oviitiei it e e e 84,765,691 89,744,739 94,507,087 97,658,058 106,070,268 108,848,974 115,089,296 120,363,256 122,588,739 125,961,087
Expenditures:
General governmMeNt...........cocoeeeeriiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,450,414 3,229,584 3,056,052 3,623,271 3,859,688 4,018,166 4,287,338 5,603,583 4,349,148 5,298,068
Public safety.. 13,689,305 12,536,792 12,990,781 13,751,123 14,157,997 15,134,523 14,323,808 14,560,325 15,180,496 17,182,357
Education... 43,962,743 42,431,467 45,611,005 50,871,069 50,932,438 54,203,401 54,471,474 57,170,086 60,004,947 64,003,984
Public works.. 7,474,337 7,056,165 5,464,382 6,266,787 5,444,425 5,404,878 5,863,834 6,567,757 7,986,879 7,570,889
Sanitation services.......... 1,233,392 1,474,581 1,446,446 1,523,236 1,549,913 1,590,363 1,647,010 1,522,144 1,412,691 1,726,367
Community development.. - 63,602 148,258 568,182 376,126 1,799,290 14,977 41,392 76,049 643,366
Human services.............. 705,933 761,371 779,780 818,353 849,053 876,798 708,984 748,949 792,326 817,714
Culture and recreation... 2,270,273 2,139,687 2,437,864 2,508,150 2,892,558 2,863,866 2,447,161 2,544,523 2,626,796 2,883,715
Pension benefits-Town.. 4,785,557 4,935,096 3,742,770 4,019,936 4,138,193 4,306,969 4,442,266 4,759,946 4,808,035 5,046,381
Pension benefits-School... 5,383,000 6,248,000 7,656,294 8,168,218 8,869,092 9,962,702 10,994,534 11,884,275 12,219,339 12,736,422
Property and liability insurance... 343,954 373,104 418,507 475,422 483,391 406,416 419,313 402,567 368,027 428,125
Employee benefits............. 4,591,903 5,046,719 5,776,019 6,274,307 7,204,764 7,392,728 7,802,047 7,833,635 8,459,804 8,840,249
State and county charges.... 2,488,724 2,534,654 2,741,801 3,100,048 3,534,187 3,593,911 3,798,662 4,158,266 3,883,609 3,571,252
Debt service
Principal... 715,000 1,394,000 1,380,000 1,365,000 1,630,000 1,645,000 1,480,000 1,910,000 2,432,000 2,200,000
Interest.... 374,964 473,435 351,740 413,209 354,814 445,990 351,879 524,464 590,897 686,619
Total Expenditures. ... 91,469,499 90,698,257 94,001,699 103,746,311 106,276,639 113,645,001 113,053,287 120,231,912 125,191,043 133,635,508
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures......... (6,703,808) (953,518) 505,388 (6,088,253) (206,371) (4,796,027) 2,036,009 131,344 (2,602,304) (7,674,421)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of long-term debt... 5,099,000 - 32,340 2,800,000 2,100,000 - 3,600,000 6,782,000 6,100,000 5,286,000
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes.. 79,531 - - - 169,060 379,762 445,043 - - 369,204
Issuance of refunding bonds.................... - - - - 1,055,000 - - - - -
Income from granting an easement on land 2,000,000 - - - - - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent. - - - - (1,045,217) - - - - -
Capital lease financing - - - 179,485 400,000 - - - - 246,395
Proceeds from the sale of land... - - 13,193 - 739,875 - - - - -
Transfersin... 6,487,259 2,475,991 1,725,580 1,235,622 1,211,438 1,446,885 620,955 981,424 2,935,526 2,695,872
Transfers out. (5,203,541) (1,134,753) (1,576,263) (1,128,194) (1,100,883) (1,288,748) (466,321) (690,194) (650,730) (406,094)
Total other financing sources (USes).............cc.coeeeeiieeeinn. 8,462,249 1,341,238 194,850 3,086,913 3,529,273 537,899 4,199,677 7,073,230 8,384,796 8,191,377
Net change in fund balance... 1,758,441 $ 387,720 $ 700,238 $_ (3,001,340) $ 3,322,902 $_ (4,258,128) $ 6,235,686 $ 7,204574 $ 5,782,492 $ 516,956
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures..... 1.27% 2.17% 1.93% 1.87% 1.97% 1.93% 1.65% 2.14% 2.55% 2.37%
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Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property by Classification and Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed and Actual Values and Tax Rates

Total Personal Total Total
Fiscal Residential Residential Commercial Industrial Commercial Commercial Personal Property Direct Town
Year Value Tax Rate Value Value Value Tax Rate Property Tax Rate Rate (2) Value
2003 1) $3,058,585,167 $10.21 $815,178,573 $170,234,550 $985,413,123 $18.46 $46,063,970 $18.42 $12.29 $4,090,062,260
2004 $3,234,740,307 $9.55 $822,851,708 $169,224,250 $992,075,958 $20.39 $51,903,536 $20.35 $12.19 $4,278,719,801
2005 $3,816,730,562 $8.38 $803,790,978 $171,059,625 $974,850,603 $21.30 $58,953,330 $21.24 $11.13 $4,850,534,495
2006 1) $4,398,266,375 $7.65 $914,089,440 $192,596,650 $1,106,686,090 $19.17 $63,261,160 $19.11 $10.07 $5,568,213,625
2007 $4,440,944,260 $8.14 $906,688,005 $191,245,200 $1,097,933,205 $18.92 $66,247,340 $18.87 $10.38 $5,605,124,805
2008 $4,435,836,632 $8.67 $907,253,337 $189,911,800 $1,097,165,137 $18.97 $70,461,720 $18.91 $10.82 $5,603,463,489
2009 1) $4,318,764,733 $9.06 $933,566,836 $193,093,000 $1,126,659,836 $20.18 $91,904,620 $20.11 $11.51 $5,537,329,189
2010 $4,151,406,685 $9.67 $932,243,691 $192,792,100 $1,125,035,791 $21.72 $83,075,790 $21.65 $12.39 $5,359,518,266
2011 $3,998,205,703 $10.20 $937,402,065 $192,184,900 $1,129,586,965 $23.29 $93,061,520 $23.17 $13.26 $5,220,854,188
2012 1) $4,069,650,840 $10.45 $932,748,073 $181,064,400 $1,113,812,473 $23.65 $95,068,610 $23.53 $13.47 $5,278,531,923

Total Assessed Value by Classification
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

4% 2%

Total Assessed Value by Classification
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

3% 2%

B Residential @ Commercial OIndustrial OPersonal Property ‘ ‘ @ Residential @ Commercial Olndustrial OPersonal Property

(1) Revaluation year.

30.0%

Commercial Value as % of Total Value

25.0% *4\

. —

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

2003 2004 2005

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

(2) Weighted average direct tax rate, calculated as weighted average of residential, commercial and personal property tax rates.
Source: Assessor's Department, Town of Braintree and Official Statements.
All property in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is assessed at 100% of fair cash value.

Note: Chapter 59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws, known as "Proposition 2 1/2", imposes 2 separate limits on the
annual tax levy of the Town. The primary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2 1/2 percent of the full and fair cash value.
The secondary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed the maximum levy limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by
the State Commissioner of Revenue by more than 2 1/2 percent, subject to an exception for property added to the tax rolls and
for certain substantial valuation increases other than as part of a general revaluation. The secondary limit may be exceeded in any
year by a majority vote of the voters, however it cannot exceed the primary limitation.

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

94 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Principal Taxpayers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2012 2003
Percentage of Percentage of
Total Taxable Total Taxable
Nature of Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Name Business Valuation Rank Value Valuation Rank Value
Braintree Property Associates Malls $ 250,843,100 1 4.75% $ 137,302,600 1 4.40%
Messina, Francis X. (et al) Developer/Real Estate 146,441,100 2 2.77% 33,441,800 3 1.07%
Flatley, John (et al) Real Estate 81,382,200 3 1.54% - -
Lenox Farms LTD Partnership Developer/Real Estate 56,129,900 4 1.06% - -
AMB Property LP Retail Clothing 38,566,700 5 0.73% 24,108,800 5 0.77%
EQR-Lincoln Braintree LLC Developer/Real Estate 27,480,000 6 0.52% - -
Ridge at Blue Hills LTD Partnership Developer/Real Estate 23,684,400 7 0.45% - -
WBF Braintree Equity Partnership LLC Retail 23,422,000 8 0.44% - -
TRT Braintree LLC DCX Malls 18,683,000 9 0.35% - -
Direct Invest Braintree Park LLC Real Estate 17,592,900 10 0.33% - -
T.J. Flatley (et all) Real Estate - - 46,148,100 2 1.48%
Flatley Family Trust Developer/Real Estate - - 29,314,200 4 0.94%
Sheraton Braintree Hotel Hotel - - 21,465,600 6 0.69%
The Flatley Company Developer/Real Estate - - 18,046,800 7 0.58%
Federated Deptartment Stores Retail Clothing - - 15,311,100 8 0.49%
Kelton Health Corp. Office Buildings - - 14,998,000 9 0.48%
Liberty Woods, LLC Real Estate - - 14,634,500 10 0.47%
Totals $ 684,225,300 12.94% $ 354,771,500 11.37%
Source: Official Statements, Town of Braintree
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Less Percent of
Reserve for First Year Percent of Delinquent Total Total Tax
Fiscal Total Abatements & Net Net as % Current Net Levy Tax Tax Collections to
Year Tax Levy Exemptions Tax Levy of Total Tax Collections Collected Collections Collections Net Tax Levy (2)
2003 $49,374,288 $410,496 $48,963,792 99.17% $49,135,880 100.35% $850,034 $49,985,914 102.09%
2004 $52,132,908 $1,052,841 $51,080,067 97.98% $51,064,750 99.97% $15,317 $51,080,067 100.00%
2005 $53,947,300 $905,342 $53,041,958 98.32% $53,432,258 100.74% $256,505 $53,688,763 101.22%
2006 $56,006,448 $992,187 $55,014,261 98.23% $54,476,389 99.02% $1,234,211 $55,710,600 101.27%
2007 $58,111,612 $893,219 $57,218,393 98.46% $56,345,257 98.47% $1,904,192 $58,249,449 101.80%
2008 $60,537,365 $695,318 $59,842,047 98.85% $58,896,572 98.42% $1,900,328 $60,796,900 101.60%
2009 $63,634,439 $1,480,050 $62,154,389 97.67% $62,315,590 100.26% $1,320,308 $63,635,898 102.38%
2010 $66,301,452 $1,089,175 $65,212,277 98.36% $64,882,825 99.49% $1,441,807 $66,324,632 101.71%
2011 $69,110,686 $1,100,000 $68,010,686 98.41% $68,362,146 100.52% $436,917 $68,799,063 101.16%
2012 $70,972,549 $1,123,064 $69,849,485 98.42% $69,757,876 99.87% $0 $69,757,876 99.87%
Real Estate Tax Levies vs. First Year Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

$75,000,000

$70,000,000 |
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DReal Estate Tax Levy BFirst Year Current Tax Collections I

(1) Revaluation year.
(2) If the actual abatements and exemptions are lower than the reserve, the actual collections can exceed the levy.
Source: Assessor's Department and Official Statements, Town of Braintree
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Ratios of Outstanding Debt and General Bonded Debt

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

General Percentage Percentage
Fiscal U. S. Census Personal Assessed Obligation Capital Per of Personal of Assessed
Year Population Income Value Bonds Leases Capita Income Value
2003 33,917 $ 972,298,639 $4,090,062,260 $10,879,000 $450,413 $334 1.17% 0.28%
2004 33,728 $ 1,005,555,799 $4,278,719,801 $9,485,000 $285,234 $290 0.97% 0.23%
2005 33,873 $ 1,050,273,934 $4,850,534,495 $8,105,000 $111,512 $243 0.78% 0.17%
2006 33,681 $ 1,086,093,568 $5,568,213,625 $9,540,000 $205,430 $289 0.90% 0.18%
2007 34,185 $ 1,146,439,624 $5,605,124,805 $10,065,000 $490,892 $309 0.92% 0.19%
2008 34,422 $ 1,200,563,244 $5,603,463,489 $8,420,000 $350,640 $255 0.73% 0.16%
2009 35,294 $ 1,280,215,743 $5,537,329,189 $10,540,000 $244,817 $306 0.84% 0.19%
2010 35,296 $ 1,312,199,392 $5,359,518,266 $15,412,000 $167,410 $441 1.19% 0.29%
2011 35,744 $ 1,382,008,876 $5,220,854,188 $19,080,000 $85,878 $536 1.39% 0.37%
2012 35,981 $ 1,446,817,954 $5,278,531,923 $22,512,979 $212,592 $632 1.57% 0.43%
Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
General Total Percentage Percentage
Fiscal Obligation Capital Debt Per of Personal of Assessed
Year Bonds Leases Outstanding Capita Income Value
2003 $ 17,541,315 $ - $28,870,728 $851 2.97% 0.71%
2004 $ 16,130,052 $ - $25,900,286 $768 2.58% 0.61%
2005 $ 15,258,315 $ 186,586 $23,661,413 $699 2.25% 0.49%
2006 $ 18,399,241 $ 135,017 $28,279,688 $840 2.60% 0.51%
2007 $ 18,094,073 $ 78,457 $28,728,422 $840 2.51% 0.51%
2008 $ 16,213,906 $ 16,425 $25,000,971 $726 2.08% 0.45%
2009 $ 24,030,740 $ - $34,815,557 $986 2.72% 0.63%
2010 $ 140,062,687 $ 103,418 $155,745,515 $4,413 11.87% 2.91%
2011 $ 143,224,964 $ 273,680 $162,664,522 $4,551 11.77% 3.12%
2012 $ 131,668,293 $ 549,628 $154,943,492 $4,306 10.71% 2.94%

Source: Audited Financial Statements, U. S. Census
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Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2012

Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts Outstanding Applicable Debt

NOIFOIK COUNLY.....uvetiitiit et et e et e $ 900,000 5.36% $ 250,124
LIS 0[] 1 PP 22,512,979
QIO 1TqT= o1 =L 1= = Y= 212,592
Total TOWN QIr€CE EDL. .. ... et ettt e e et et e et et ettt e e et e et enee e 22,725,571
Total direct and overlapping AEDL........ ..o e e et et e et et et e aae s $ 22,975,695

Source: Treasurer's Office, Town of Braintree
Note: The Town obtains the debt outstanding and percentages directly from the entities.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries of the Town. This schedule
estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the taxpayers of Town. This
process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden
borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident,
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.
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Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Equalized Valuation.....................coceeeines $  4,078,937,500 $  4,894,372,100 $ _ 4,894,372,100 $  5,878,650,200 $  5,878,650,200 $  6,103,206,100 $_ 6,103,206,100 $  5,803,418,500 $  5,803,418,500 $ 5,803,418,500
Debt Limit - 5% of Equalized Valuation......... $ 203,946,875 $ 244,718,605 $ 244,718,605 $ 293,932,510 $ 293,932,510 $ 305,160,305 $ 305,160,305 $ 290,170,925 $ 290,170,925 $ 290,170,925
Less:

Outstanding debt applicable to limit........... $ 10,879,000 $ 9,485,000 $ 8,105,000 $ 9,540,000 $ 10,065,000 $ 11,911,000 $ 129,166,500 $ 122,688,000 $ 119,186,500 $ 115,619,000
Authorized and unissued debt.................. 8,976,485 9,351,485 13,931,485 101,272,800 106,696,485 121,696,485 5,609,485 4,017,485 7,254,622 10,452,483
Legal debt margin................ccoieeeens $ 184,091,390 $ 225,882,120 $ 222,682,120 $ 183,119,710 $ 177,171,025 $ 171,552,820 $ 170,384,320 $ 163,465,440 $ 163,729,803 $ 164,099,442
Total debt applicable to the limit

as a percentage of the limit..... 9.74% 7.70% 9.00% 37.70% 39.72% 43.78% 44.17% 43.67% 43.57% 43.45%

Source: Treasurer's Department, Town of Braintree / Official Statements
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Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per
Capita

Fiscal Population Personal Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Estimates Income Income Age Enrollment Rate

2003 33,917 $ 972,298,639 $ 28,667 40 5,066 5.30%
2004 33,728 $ 1,005,555,799 $ 29,814 40 5,154 5.00%
2005 33,873 $ 1,050,273,934 $ 31,006 40 5,252 4.50%
2006 33,681 $ 1,086,093,568 $ 32,246 40 5,229 4.70%
2007 34,185 $ 1,146,439,624 $ 33,536 40 5,325 4.20%
2008 34,422 $ 1,200,563,244 $ 34,878 40 5,443 5.00%
2009 35,294 $ 1,280,215,743 $ 36,273 40 5,441 7.80%
2010 35,296 $ 1,312,199,392 $ 37,177 40 5,557 8.20%
2011 35,744 $ 1,382,008,876 $ 38,664 40 5,565 7.20%
2012 35,981 $ 1,446,817,954 $ 40,211 40 5,601 5.87%

Source: U. S. Census, Division of Local Services
Median age is based on most recent census data
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Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2012 2003
Nature Percentage of Percentage of
of Total Town Total Town
Employer Business Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Health South/Braintree Rehab Rehabilitation Hospital 750 1 2.85% 900 2 4.79%
Haemonetics Biomedical 700 2 2.66% 450 6 2.39%
Macy's Retail 600 3 2.28% 260 10 1.38%
South Shore VNA Visiting Nurses Association 476 4 1.81% 476 5 2.53%
Verizon Utility 400 5 1.52% - -
Sears Retail 363 6 1.38% 300 8 1.60%
Harvard/Pilgrim Health Care Health Care 310 7 1.18% 300 7 1.60%
Mass State Lottery State Agency 300 8 1.14% - -
Symmons Industries Plumbing Manufacturer 290 9 1.10% 300 9 1.60%
Nordstrom Retail 250 10 0.95% - -
Boston Financial Data Services Account Services - - 1,200 1 6.39%
NYNEX Utility - - 640 3 3.41%
Filene's Retail - - 600 4 3.19%
4,439 16.87% 5,426 28.87%

Source: Massachusetts Workplace Development Agency & the Town's personnel and department records.
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Full-time Equivalent Town Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Function:

50 48 52 55 55 47 45 38 41 42

89 76 84 91 94 91 84 82 81 83

89 81 85 89 90 92 88 87 87 86

688 612 626 639 652 666 674 648 675 689

45 44 47 50 46 44 48 43 39 39

Human services..... s 11 10 11 11 11 13 10 10 11 11
Culture and recreation............ 20 18 19 19 18 19 20 19 19 19
28 23 26 29 27 29 23 21 23 23

10 9 9 10 10 10 9 9 9 9

109 108 110 111 111 107 111 111 110 110

Total oo 1,138 1,029 1,069 1,103 1,113 1,117 1,111 1,067 1,094 1,110

Source: Town personnel records and various Town departments.

Town of Braintree, Massachusetts 102 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Eunction/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Government
Population 33,509 32,972 32,760 32,669 32,474 32,434 32,931 35,744 35,744 35,744
Registered voters, annual town election.... 6,929 7,666 7,229 6,254 9,541 N/A 6,178 N/A 7,500 N/A
Town Clerk
400 367 364 397 413 371 412 365 380 196
187 214 177 173 198 145 189 197 213 81
540 517 554 473 471 480 440 465 465 235
Police
Accidents covered by an officer 1,411 1,362 1,320 1,213 1,302 1,199 1,152 1,247 1,177 287
Citations issued 3,502 4,877 6,594 12,052 9,957 5,786 3,833 3,849 2,722 1,304
Arrests 878 809 935 1,206 1,107 1,085 813 766 754 262
Larcenies 888 910 933 915 917 881 802 662 615 245
Fire
141 136 141 101 143 102 84 116 92 94
Emergency medical service 2,165 2,124 2,301 2,564 2,620 2,850 3,085 3,107 2,725 1,786
False alarm 812 714 771 796 839 855 761 676 759 493
Other responses.. 1,360 1,328 1,418 1,262 1,315 983 1,046 1,150 1,196 948
Hazmat reSponses. ..........c...eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 558 456 465 429 417 363 336 281 360 207
Building Department
Residential building permits issued..................... 1,099 1,042 938 1,082 998 897 891 950 979 322
Non-Residential building permits issued............... 242 252 264 230 268 315 301 324 295 149
Education
Public school enrollment..............cccooeeviiiinnnnn 5066 5,154 5,154 5,252 5,229 5,325 5,443 5,441 5,557 5,565
Public Works
Cemetery
LOtS SOId. .. e N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 15
Water
Service CONNECLIONS..........coceveiiiiieieeciiies N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11,497 11,500
Consumption in billions of gallons.................. 1,201 1,303 1,367 1,428 1,585 1,542 1,421 1,374 1,371 N/A
Daily consumption in millions of gallons.......... 3.7 3.7 3.7 4.0 4.2 3.7 3.6 3.8 3.7 N/A
Sewer
Service CONNECLIONS..........ccceveiiiiiiiieciiies N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 11,500
Daily average collection (MGD)..................... N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 6.61 6.97 6.52 6.89
Highway
Miles of public road..............cccooeviiiiinninnnn. 126.7 126.7 127.2 127.2 129.0 129.0 129.0 129.0 129.0 129.0
Human Services
Board of Health
INSPECHIONS ....evviiiiiiiiiic 1,282 1,491 1,473 1,478 1,531 1,324 1,257 1,151 1,338 605
Council on Aging
Home delivered meals.................ccceeeeenenne 1,388 1,718 1,095 825 1,213 634 1,220 616 N/A N/A
Transportation.......... 3,896 3,311 3,187 3,298 3,459 3,595 3,783 3,917 3,763 4,121
Volunteer service hours... 9,604 7,575 6,883 7,164 10,182 10,431 9,322 7,252 6,583 6,029
Fitness/exercise program participants............ 2,411 2,498 2,456 2,567 2,980 3,343 3,396 3,588 3,673 3,734
Recreation/social event participants............... 6,258 6,880 7,018 7,496 7,342 7,444 8,182 7,739 8,242 9,221
Libraries
Volumes in collection.... 132,738 118,174 122,976 125,300 123,920 151,406 154,966 157,057 157,764 125,145
Circulation 240,683 250,406 270,668 280,937 198,710 306,081 320,510 350,966 384,947 379,752
Program attendance.............ccocovevuinieniieiineennnn. 6,496 5,942 6,863 6,564 5,892 6,473 7,881 7,605 10,279 11,011

Source: Various Town Departments
N/A: Information not available
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Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Government

Number of buildings..............c....c..... 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 8 8 8
Police

Number of stations.......................... 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire

Number of stations.......................... 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Number of vehicles.......................... 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17
Education

Number of elementary schools........... 7 7 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

Number of middle schools................. 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Number of high schools.................... 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Number of other buildings................. 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Public Works

Water mains (miles).............ccceeeeee. 161 161 161 161 161 161 161 161 161 161

Fire hydrants...........c.ccooviiiiiinnn, 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211 1,211

Sanitary sewers (miles).................... 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138

Number of wells............coceeiiiininnnn, 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Number of water storage tanks.......... 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4

Number of pump stations.................. 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
Human Services

Senior Center.......coevvveiveiie i, 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Culture and Recreation

Recreation building.............cccoooeini 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Library.......cocoviiiiii 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Source: Various Town Departments
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and the Town Council
Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012 (December 31, 2011 for the Braintree Contributory Retirement System and the
Braintree Electric Light Department), which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2012. Our report includes a reference to other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the Braintree Electric
Light Department, as described in our report on the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ financial statements. The
financial statements of the Braintree Electric Light Department were not audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Braintree, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Town of Braintree’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as finding #12-01 that we consider to be significant
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ in a
separate letter dated December 12, 2012.

The Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts’ response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

fowsy ¥ Saklr, LEE

December 12, 2012
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

www.powersandsullivan.com

To the Honorable Mayor and the Town Council
Town of Braintree, Massachusetts

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ major
federal programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The Town of Braintree’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal programs is the responsibility of the Town of Braintree's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Braintree's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Town of Braintree's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of The Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Town of Braintree’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Braintree’s internal control over compliance.



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis.

A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (December 31, 2011 for the Braintree Contributory Retirement System and the
Braintree Electric Light Department), and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2012. Our audit
was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town
of Braintree, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

The Town of Braintree, Massachusetts’ response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts’ response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the use of management of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, and federal

awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than those specified parties.

foisy ¥ Sidr, L0

December 12, 2012



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal
CFDA
Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through State Department of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Non-Cash Assistance (Commaodities):
National School Lunch Program 10.555 $ 133,530
Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 60,856
National School Lunch Program 10.555 414,547
TOTAL AGRICULTURE 608,933
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE:
Passed through State Military Division:
ARRA - National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance Projects 12.401 2,107
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE:
Direct Programs:
Federal Equitable Sharing Program 16.UNK 40,605
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 35,192
TOTAL CRIMINAL JUSTICE 75,797
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Passed through Governor's Highway Safety Bureau:
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sector Training and Planning Grants 20.703 11,309
NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE ARTS:
Direct Programs:
Promotion of the Arts - Grants to Organizations and Individuals 45.024 5,000
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Passed through State Office of the Administrator:
Performance Partnership Grants 66.605 87,100
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through State Department of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 331,861
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 1,489,007
Handicapped - State Grants 84.027A 58,488
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities State Grants 84.186 18,000
English Language Acquisition 84.365 24,457
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 123,331
ARRA - Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.389 27,752
ARRA - Special Education Grants to States 84.391 24,578
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - Education State Grants 84.394 755,397
ARRA - Stabilization Fund Race-to-the-Top Incentive Grants 84.395 37,558
Education Jobs Fund 84.410 491,157
Passed through State Department of Early Education and Care:
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 32,502
ARRA - Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.392 7,702
TOTAL EDUCATION 3,421,790
SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION:
Passed through Massachusetts Rehabilitation Commission:
Social Security Disability Insurance 96.001 370
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 114,749
TOTAL $ 4,327,155

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Note 1 — Definition of Reporting Entity
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts. All federal financial assistance received directly

from federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other governmental agencies is
included on the schedule.

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting and reporting policies of the Town of Braintree, Massachusetts, are set forth below:

(a) Basis of Presentation — The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the
cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, grant revenues are recognized when received and expenditures when
paid.

(b) Cash Assistance — School Breakfast and Lunch Program — Program expenditures represent federal
reimbursement for meals provided during the fiscal year.

(c) Non-Cash Assistance (Commaodities) — School Lunch Program — Program expenditures represent the value of
donated foods received during the fiscal year.

(d) Disaster Grants have been recorded the year the grant was approved.

Note 3 — Program Clusters

In accordance with Subpart A § .105 of OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non
Profit Organizations, certain programs have been clustered in determining major programs. The following
represents the clustered programs applicable to the Town of Braintree:

CFDA

Name of Cluster/Program Number
Child Nutrition Cluster

School Breakfast Program 10.553

National School Lunch Program 10.555

Special Milk Program for Children 10.556

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559
Highway Safety Cluster

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600

Safety Incentive Grants for Use of Seatbelts 20.604
Title I, Part A Cluster

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010

ARRA — Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.389
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

CFDA
Name of Cluster/Program Number
Special Education Cluster
Special Education Grants to States 84.027
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173
ARRA — Special Education — Grants to States 84.391
ARRA — Special Education — Preschool Grants 84.392
Educational Technology State Grants Cluster
Education Technology State Grants (Enhancing Education through Technology
Program) 84.318
ARRA — Education Technology State Grants (Enhancing Education through
Technology Program) 84.386
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Cluster
ARRA — State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) — Education State Grants 84.394
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) — Government Services 84.397
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

A. Summary of Auditors’ Results

1. The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the Town of
Braintree, Massachusetts.

2. Significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
Report on Compliance with Requirements that could have a Direct and Material Effect on each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

5. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts, expresses an unqualified opinion.

6. There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs of the Town of Braintree,
Massachusetts.

7. The programs tested as major grants include:

CFDA
Program Title Number
ARRA — State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) — Education State Grants 84.394
Education Jobs Fund 84.410

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

9. The Town of Braintree, Massachusetts was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

B. Findings — Financial Statements Audit
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
12-01: Lack of Timely Postings and Reconciliations in the Treasury Department

Condition and Criteria: Since fiscal year 2009 and continuing through fiscal year 2012, the Treasurer’'s
office has been operating with less than a full staff. The Treasurer’s position has turned over 3 times and
certain tasks have not been completed on a consistent basis including the timely postings of cash
receipts to the general ledger and monthly reconciliations of cash and accounts receivables to the general
ledger balances and to the Accountant’s balances. The department has retained the help of a part-time
outside consultant to assist in getting the cash postings and bank reconciliations brought up-to-date but
this situation continues to exist.

Effect: The overall effect of this deficiency deteriorates management’s ability to properly report financial
information on a timely basis and potentially impedes management’s ability to safeguard its assets.

Cause: Lack of proper staffing in the department to achieve management’s objectives and adherence to
internal control policies.

Recommendation: In order to strengthen internal controls over financial reporting and to safeguard the
Town's assets we recommend that management should take whatever actions may be necessary to
ensure that the day-to-day activities of the Treasury Department are being completed on a timely basis
and that detailed reconciliations with the general ledger balances and with other departments are
occurring on a routine basis as prescribed by management.

Management's Response/Current Status: The Town has hired an experienced Treasurer/Collector who
took office the beginning of July 2010. The position has been filled again with another experienced
individual who started in the fall of 2012. Continued improvements are being made to the cash receipts
and reporting system. We have been working with the software company on a new treasurer receipts
software package that will improve the efficiency of the cash receipts process. Significant improvements
have been made in the tax collector’s accounts receivables procedures including the direct input of
payments over the counter in to the accounts receivable software and more timely reconciliation of the
detailed receivables to the general ledger. The goal for FY2013 is to have the detail of cash and
accounts receivable reconciled to the ledger on a monthly basis.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

C. Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Program Audit

None

D. Prior Year Audit Findings and Questioned Costs
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
11-01: Lack of Timely Postings and Reconciliations in the Treasury Department.
Current Status: This matter continued to exist during fiscal year 2012 and has been repeated as current year

finding #12-01.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Questioned

Costs
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 None
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173 None
ARRA — Special Education Grants to States 84.391 None
ARRA — Special Education Preschool Grants 84.392 None

11-02: Condition and Criteria: OMB Circular A-87, “Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal
Governments” requires grantees to maintain documentation of employee time and effort that has been
charged to federal awards. If 100% of an employee’s salary is charged to a federal award, a grant recipient is
required to maintain semi-annual certifications stating that 100% of the employee’s time was spent working on
grant activities. If less than 100% of an employee’s salary is charged to a federal award, a grant recipient is
required to maintain monthly personnel activity reports documenting 100% of the employee’s time.

Current Status: Beginning with the 2012 School year, the Town maintained time and effort certifications for all
required programs.
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BRAINTREE PUBLIC SCHOQOLS
348 Pond Street

Braintree, MA 02184 MAUREEN 8. MURRAY, Ed.D.
Te!ephone (781) 380-0130 Assistant Superintendent
FAX (781) 380-G146

PETER A. KURZBERG, Ph.D, PETER B. KRESS

Superintendent of Schools Business Manager

February 27, 2013

Braintree Town Council
Braintree Town Hall

1 JFK Memorial Drive
Braintree, MA 02184

Dear Members of the Braintree Town Council:

Attached please find a Statement of Interest to be submitted to the Massachusetts
School Building Authority (MSBA) requesting participation in a renovation project for
East Middle School which would include replacement of the heating system, electrical
safety updates and expansion, installation of a fire suppression system and floor tile
replacement. This is similar to the project undertaken at South Middle School.
Submission to MSBA requires School Committee approval and Town Council approval.
The School Committee voted at its meeting held on Monday, February 25, 2013 to
submit such a Statement of Interest and approved both resolutions which must also be
approved by the Town Council. Final signatures must include that of the Mayor, School
Committee Chair and Superintendent of Schools.

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this request.

Sincerely,

Peter A. Kurzberg
Superintendent of Schools

PAK:mac
Attachments

Copy: Mayor Joseph Sullivan
Braintree School Committee
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Massachusetts School Building Authority

Next Steps to Finalize Submission of your FY 2013 Statement of Interest

Thank you for submitting your FY 2013 Statement of Interest (SOT) to the MSBA electronically. Please note, the
District’s submission is not yet complete. The District is required to print and mail a hard copy of the SOI to the MSBA
along with the required supporting documentation, which is described below.

Bach SOI has two Certification pages that must be signed by the Superintendent, the School Commitice Chair, and the
Chief Executive Officer*. Please make sure that both certifications contained in the SOI have been signed and dated by
each of the specified parties and that the hardcopy SOI is submitted to the MSBA with original signatures.

SIGNATURES: Each SOI has two (2) Certification pages that must be signed by the District.

In some Districts, two of the required signatures may be that of the same person. If this is the case, please have that person

sign in both locations. Please do not leave any of the signature lines blank or submit photocopied signatures, as your SOI
will be incomplete.

*Local chief executive officer: In a city or town with a manager form of government, the manager of the
municipality; in other cities, the mayor; and in other towns, the board of selectmen unless, in a city or town, some
other mumicipal office is designated as the chief executive office under the provisions of a local charter.

&
VOTES: Each SOI must be submitted with the proper vote documentation. This means that (1) the required
governing bodies have voted to submit each SO, (2) the specific vote language required by the MSBA has been used, and
(3) the District has submitted a record of the vote in the format required by the MSBA.

« Scheol Committee Vote: Submittal of all SOIs must be approved by a vote of the School Committee.

o For documentation of the vote of the School Committee, Minutes of the School Committee meeting at which
the vote was taken must be submitted with the original signature of the Committee Chairperson. The Minutes
must contain the actual text of the vote taken which should be substantially the same as the MSBA’s SOI vote
language.

« Maunicipai Body Vote: SOIs that are submitted by cities and towns must be approved by a vote of the appropriate
municipal body (e.g., City Council/ Aldermen/Board of Selectmen) in addition to a vote of the School Committee.

> Regional School Districts do not need to submit a vote of the municipal body.

o For the vote of the municipal governing body, a copy of the text of the vote, which shall be substantially the
same as the MSBA s SOI vote language, must be submitted with a certification of the City/Town Clerk that
the vote was taken and duly recorded, and the date of the vote must be provided.

CLOSED SCHOOLS: Districts that have reported closed school infermation must download the report from the
"Closed School” tab, which can be found on the District Main page. Please print this report, which then must be signed by
the Superintendent, the School Committee Chair, and the Chief Executive Officer. A signed report, with original signatures
must be included with the District’s hard copy SOI submittal. If a District submits multiple SOls, only ene copy of the
Closed School infermation is required.

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION FOR SOI PRIORITIES #1 AND #3: If a District selects Priority #1 and/or
Priority #3, the District is required to submit additional documentation with its SOL

« If a District selects Priority #1, Replacement or renovation of a building which is structurally unsound or otherwise in

Massachusetts School Building Authority i Statemnent of Interest
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a condition seriously jeopardizing the heaith and safety of the school children, where no alternative exists, the MSBA
requires a hard copy of the engineering or other report detailing the nature and severity of the problem and a written
professional opinion of how imminent the system failure is likely to manifest itself. The District also must submit
photographs of the problematic building area or system to the MSBA.

o IfaDistrict selects Priority #3, Prevention of a loss of accreditation, the MSBA requires the full accreditation report
(s) and any supporting correspondence between the District and the accrediting entity.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: In addition to the information required with the SOI hard copy submittal, the District
may also provide any reports, pictures, or other information they fee] will give the MSBA a better understanding of the
issues identified at a facility.

If you have any questions about the SOI process please contact Brian McLaughin at 617-720-4466 or
Brian McLaughlin@@massschoolbuildines.org.
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Massachusetts School Building Authority

School District  Braintree

District Contact  Peter B Kress TEL: (781) 380-0130

Name of School  East Middle School

Submission Date 3/19/13

SO CERTIFICATION

To be eligible to submit a Statement of Interest (SOT), a district must certify the following:

et

}

<

The district hereby acknowledges and agrees that this SOI is NOT an application for funding and that submission of this SOI in
no way commits the MSBA to accept an application, approve an application, provide a grant or any other type of funding, or
places any other obligation on the MSBA.

{% The district hereby acknowledges that no district shall have any entitlement to funds from the MSBA, pursuant to M.G.L. ¢. 70B
or the provisions of 963 CMR 2.00.

% The district hereby acknowledges that the provisions of 963 CMR 2.00 shali apply to the district and all projects for which the
district is seeking and/or receiving funds for any portion of a municipally-owned or regionally-owned school facility from the
MSBA pursuant to M.G.L. ¢. 70B.

% The district hereby acknowledges that this SOI is for one existing municipally-owned or regionally-owned public schoo} facifity
in the district that is currently used or will be used to educate public PreK-12 students and that the facility for which the SOI is
being submitted does not serve a solely early childhood or Pre-K student population.

¥ After the district cempletes and submits this SOI electronically, the district must sign the required certifications and submit one
signed original hard copy of the SOI to the MSBA, with all of the required documentation described under the "Vote" tab, on or
before the deadline.

v The district will schedule and hold a meeting at which the School Commitiee will vote, using the specific language contained in
the "Vote" tab, to authorize the submission of this SOI. This is required for cities, towns, and regional school districts.

% Prior to the submission of the hard copy of the SOI, the district will schedule and hold a meeting at which the City
Council/Board of Aldermen or Board of Selectmen/equivalent governing body will vote, using the specific language contained in
the "Vote" tab, 1o authorize the submission of this SOI. This is not required for regional school districts.

% On or before the SOI deadline, the district will submit the minutes of the meeting at which the School Commitiee votes to
authorize the Superintendent to submit this SOL The District will use the MSBA's vote template and the vote will specificalty
reference the school and the priorities for which the SOI is being submitted. The minutes will be signed by the School Committee
Chair. This is required for cities, towns, and regional school districts.

% The district has arranged with the City/Town Cletk to certify the vote of the City Council/Board of Aldermen or Board of
Selectmen/equivalent governing body te authorize the Superintendent to submit this SOL The district will use the MSBA's vote
template and submit the full text of this vote, which will specifically reference the school and the priorities for which the SOl is
being submitted, to the MSBA on or before the SOI deadline. This is not required for regional school districts.

¥ The district hereby acknowledges that this SOI submission will not be complete until the MSBA has received all of the required
vote documentation and certification signatures in a format acceptable to the MSBA.
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Chief Executive Officer * School Committee Chair

Superintendent of Schools

(print name) {print name) {prin{ name)
{signature) {(signature) (signatare)
Date Date Date

* Local chief executive officer: In a city or town with a manager form of government, the manager of the municipality; in
other cities, the mayor; and in other towns, the board of selectmen unless, in a city or town, some other municipal office
is designated to the chief executive office under the provisions of a local charter.
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Name of School - SAMPLE SCHOOL [DRAFT] -----

Massachusetts School Building Authority

School District  Braintree

District Contact  Peter B Kress TEL: (781) 380-0130

Name of Schoo!l  East Middle School

Submission Date  3/19/13

Note

The following Priorities have been included in the Statement of Interest:

1. I~ Replacement or renovation of a building which is structurally unsound or otherwise in a condition sericusly jeopardizing
the health and safety of school children, where no alternative exists,

2. I~ Elimination of existing severe overcrowding.

3, {7 Prevention of the loss of accreditation.

4. ™ Prevention of severe overcrowding expected to result from increased enrollments.

5. ¥ Replacement, renovation or modernization of school facility systems, such as roofs, windows, boilers, heating and
ventilation systems, to increase energy conservation and decrease energy related costs in a school facility.

6. 77 Short term enroliment growth.

7. 7 Replacement of or addition to obsolete buildings in order to provide for & full range of programs consistent with state

and approved local requirements.

8. I~ Transition from court-ordered and approved racial balance school districts to walk-to, so-called, or other school
districts.

SOI Vote Requirement

¥ Iacknowledge that T have reviewed the MSBA’s vote requirements for submitting an SOI which are set forth in the Vote Tab
of this SOL T understand that the MSBA requires votes from specific parties/governing bodies, in a specific format using the
language provided by the MSBA. Further, I understand that the MSBA requires certified and signed vote documentation to be
submitted with the SOL I acknowledge that my SOI will not be considered complete and, therefore, will not be reviewed by the
MSBA unless fhe required accompanying voie documentation is submitted to the satisfaction of the MSBA.

Potential Project Scope: Repair Project

Windows/ Doors

HVAC/ Boiler

Others (Eiectrical Lighting Ceiling and Fioor Replacement)
Is this SOI the District Priority SOI? YES

School pame of the District Priority SOI: New School

District Goal for School: Please explain the educational goals of any petential project at this school

Fast Middle School The repair projects for the East Middle School include electrical safety upgrade and expansion, window
replacement (the majority of windows were replaced in 2011 through the Green Energy Repair Program), school-wide lighting
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replacement, ceiling replacement, and rebuilding of the heating system. The East Middle School was buiit 50 years ago. I
order to address the technological requirements for current day educational priorities and goals, an electrical upgrade and
expansion is required. This would allow for additional electrical outlets in each classroom for computers, LCD projectors and
other media devices. This would require additional circuits and sub-electrical panels. New lighting circuits and fixtures would
also be installed. The various systems associated with the heating system are marginally operational and extremely inefficient.

New energy efficient, digitally controlled unit ventilators would allow for better temperature control and improved air quality
throughout the building.

District's Propesed Schedule: What is the District's proposed schedule te achieve the goal(s) stated abeve?
The Braintree Public Schools, working with the MSBA and the Town of Braintree is ready to invest the necessary funds to
begin and complete this renovation project at East Middle School. The Braintree Public Schools would like to begin the design
of this project during the spring of 2013 and bid this project in December 2013 so that construction could begin as early as
spring 2014. This project would then be completed by October 1, 2014. The Town of Braintree has voted to set East Middie
School as our next priority for completion. The proposed total cost of this project would be approximately $6,000,000.

Is this part of a larger facilities plan? NG
I "YES", please provide the following:
Facilities Plan Date:
Planning Firm:

Please provide an overview of the plan including as much detail as necessary to describe the plan, its goals
and how the school facility that is the subject of this SOI fits inte that plan:

Please provide the current student to teacher ratios at the school facility that is the subject of this SOJ: 22 students
per teacher

Please provide the originally planned student to teacher ratios at the school facility that is the subject of this SOL: 25
students per teacher '

Does the District have a Master Educatienal Plan that includes facility goals for this building and all schoel buildings
in District? NO
Does the District have related report(s)/document(s) that detail its facilities, student configurations at each facility,
and District operational budget information, both current and proposed? NO

If "NO", please note that:
H, based on the SOI review precess, a facility rises to the level of need and urgency and is invited into the
Eligibility Period, the District will need to provide fo the MSBA 2 detailed Educational Plan for not only that

facility, but all facilities in the District in order to move forward in the MSBA's school building construction
process. '

Is there overcrowding at the school facility? YES
If "YES", please describe in detail, including specific examples of the overcrowding.
All Braintree Public Schools are overcrowded. We have converted former bathrooms, closets, and store rooms info
educational learning space. No new educational space has been added to this school since it was built.
Has the district had any recent teacher layoffs or reductions? NO

If "YES", how many teaching positions were affected? 0
At which schools in the district?

Please describe the types of teacher positions that were eliminated (e.g., art, math, science, physical education,
etc.).

Has the district had any recent staff layoffs or reductions? NO

I "YES", how many staff positions were affected? 0
At which schools in the district?
Please describe the types of staff positions that were eliminated (e.g., gwidance, administrative, maintenance, etc.).
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Please provide a description of the program modifications as a consequence of these teacher and/or staff
reductions,including the impact on district class sizes and curriculum.

Does Not Apply
Please provide a detailed description of your most recent budget approval process including 2 description of any

budget reductions and the impact of those reductions on the district's school facilities, class sizes, and educational
program.

There was no reduction i the total funds, local and state, to the Braintree Public Schools.
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General Description

BRIEF BUILDING HISTORY: Please provide a detailed description of when the original building was built, and the
date(s) and project scopes(s) of any additions and renovations (maximum of 5000 characters).

East Middle School was constructed in 1961. It is a masonry building. There have been no additions and no renovations with
the except of an elevator which was installed in 1999. The building has been maintained in good working condition. the
majority of the windows were replaced in 2011 with insulated glass.

TOTAL BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE: Please provide the original building square footage PLUS the square
footage of any additions.

106761

SITE DESCRIPTION: Please provide a detailed description of the current site and any known existing conditions
that would impact a potential project at the site. Please note whether there are any other buildings, public er private,
that share this current site with the school facility. What is the use(s) of this building(s)? (maximum of 5008
characters).

East Middle School is located on a 46 acre site and there are no site limitations.

ADDRESS OF FACILITY: Please type address, including number, street name and city/town, if available, or
describe the locatien of the site. (Maximum of 306 characters)

305 River Street, Bramtree, MA 02184

BUILDING ENVELOPE: Please provide a detailed description of the building envelope, types of constructien
materials used, and any knewn problems or existing conditions (maximum of 5600 characters).

East Middle School is a masonry building. The majority of the windows were replaced in 2011. Additional windows are in
need of replacement with insulated glass. Doors also need to be replaced.

Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the EXTERIOR WALLS ? NO
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement: 1961
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:

None

Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the ROOF? YES
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement: 2005
Type Of ROOF: EPDM
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:
sectional roof replacement
Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the WINDOWS? YES
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement: 2011
Type Of WINDOWS: Single hung insulated glass
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:
Removed 85% of all uninsulated windows and replaced with single hung insulated glass window systems

MECHANICAL and ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS: Please provide a detailed description of the current mechanical and
electrical systems and any known problems or existing conditiens (maximum of 5600 characters).

Mechanical systems are as built in 1961, These systems are outdated, inefficient and undercapacity.

Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the BOILERS? NO
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Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement: 1997
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:
gas conversion and boiler replacement

Has there been 2 Major Repair or Replacement of the HVAC SYSTEM 7 NO
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement: 1961
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:

none

Has there been a Major Repair or Replacement of the ELECTRICAL SERVICES AND DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM? NO
Year of Last Major Repair or Replacement: 1961
Description of Last Major Repair or Replacement:
none

BUILDING INTERIOR: Please provide a detailed description of the current building interior including a description
of the flooring systems, finishes, ceilings, lighting, etc. (maximum of 5000 characters).

Interior is in an as built condition and is in fair condition. Flooring is asbestos tile, which is in disrepair and needs replacement,
Ceilings and ceiling lighting is in poor condition and needs replacement with energy efficient lighting. The interior of the scheol
has been painted during the past year.

PROGRAMS and OPERATIONS: Please provide a detailed description of the current programs offered and
indicate whether there are program components that cannot be offered due to facility constraints, operational
censtraints, etc. (maximum of 30060 characters).

All standard middile school programs and curricula are offered. The constraints are the lack of modern educational space, the
lack of proper HVAC controis, the lack of electrical capacity, and poor lighting,

CORE EDUCATIONAL SPACES: Please provide a detailed description of the Core Educational Spaces within the
facility, a description of the number and sizes (in square feet) of classrooms, a description of science rooms/labs
-including ages and most recent updates, and a description of the media center/library (maximum of 5000 characters).

East Middle School constructed in 1961 contains 47 classrooms within its 106,761 sq. ft. Each classroom is approximately
700 sq. ft. The schoot contains a media center, gymmasium, cafeteria, and a number of science technology labs.

CAPACITY and UTILIZATION: Please provide a detailed description of the current capacity and utilization of the
school facility, If the school is overcrowded, please describe steps taken by the administration to address capacity
issues. Please also describe in detail any spaces that have been converted from their intended use to be used as
classroom space (maximum of 5000 characters).

This school facility is at capacity and all available space, some substandard, has been converted into instructional leaming
space.

MAINTENANCE and CAPITAL REPAIR: Please provide a detailed description of the district’s current
maintenance practices, its capital repair program, and the maintenance program in place at the facility that is the
subject of this SOI. Piease include specific examples of capital repair projects undertaken in the past, including any
override or debt exclusion votes that were necessary (maximum of 5000 characters).

The Braintree Public Schools invests over $1.5 million dollars in direct maintenance to ali of our school facilities every year,
This does not include custodial services. The Braintree Public Schools also employs their own electrian, plumber, carpenters,
and HVAC technician as well.
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Priority 5

Question 1: Please provide a detailed description of the issues surrounding the school facility systems (e.g., roof,
windows, boilers, HVAC system, and/or electrical service and distribution system) that you are indicating require
repair or replacement. Please describe all deficiencies to all systems in sufficient detail to explain the problem.

Heating Systems

The East Middle School needs a compiete rebuild of its heating system. The boiler as well as all the anciilary piping, unitventilators,
controls, and pneumatics were installed in 1961, Today, 47 years later, these systems are only marginally operating and they are not
operating in any efficient manner. Not only would the students and staff significantly benefit with 2 new heating system, the Braintree
Public Schools and the Town of Braintree would realize a substantial reduction in the amount we are currently spending on natural
gas and electricity, Our proposal is to convert East Middle School from 2 steam system to a hot water heating system at a
cost of approximately $2,500,000 in all. This would entail the need to purchase an additional boiler and remove all asbestos-
covered piping and replace with copper piping and new insulation. All new energy-efficient digitally-controlied unitventilators would
be installed in all classrooms and office space. All steam controls would be eliminated and replaced with new necessary water
pumps and controls.

Electrical Safety Upgrade and Expansion

The Braintree Public Schools has not built a new school since 1972, The Braintree Public Schools built East Middle School
1961. The Braintree Public Schools is in cxitical need of electrical upgrades and expansion. The Braintree Public Schools is still
operating with one electrical outlet in some classrooms and generally no more than two electrical outlets in probably 90% of our
classrooms district wide. New energy efficient lighting is needed throughout this school. New classroom ceilings will be required to
properly install new lighting systems in each classroom.

With the technological revolution that we are experiencing in our world, we are also experiencing an educational revolution in the
way we instruct our students, Our classrooms were all built before computers, LCD projectors, and other technological media
devices had even been invented. The Braintree Public Schools needs more than two electrical outlets per classroom. In order to
increase the number of electrical outlets per ciassroom, we would also need to add additional circuits and sub- clectrical panels. As
part of the electrical upgrade, new lighting circuits and new lighting fixtures should be installed at the same time. The estimated cost
of this electrical safety upgrade and expansion would be approximately $2,000,000.

The building is sound and in reasonably good condition, but the electrical supply is seriously constricting our ability to
incorporate new electronic technology in the education of our children.

Installation of a Fire Suppression System.

The Bast Middle School, built in 1961, has no Fire Suppression System. (Sprinkler System) When the East Middie School was
built a Fire Suppression System was not required. New schools that are being built in our Commonwealth now require a Fire
Suppression System. With the removal of all of the ceilings during the electrical safety upgrade and expansion, as noted above, the
Braintree Fire Department will require the School Department to install a Fire Suppression System. the installation of 2 fire
suppression system will require the reaplacement of ali interior doors. the new doors must be equipped with automatic closing
devices in case of fire. The estimated cost of this Fire Suppression System would be approximately $900,000.

The building is in sound and in reasonably good condition but a Fire Suppression System must be installed in order to go forward
with any interior renovations to the East Middle School. This Fire Suppression System is for the safety of our students, staff, and
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fire fighters. Additonally, the Fire Suppression System protects the East Middle School assets and building.

Floor Tile Replacement

The East Middle School built in 1961, has the original floor tile in all classrooms and corridors. This asbestos-containing tile is in
significant disrepair. The estimated cost to replace the floor tile throughout the school is $600,000.
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Priority 5

Question 2: Please describe the measures the district has already taken to mitigate the problem/issues described in
Question I above.

The Braintree Public Schools has made 2 concerted and substantial effort to reduce energy consumption since 1999, In 1999 the
Braintree Public Schools hired Energy Education, Inc. for a period of three years to constantly monitor our consumption of natural
gas, electricity, and oil. We have saved over $1.5 million since 1999 on energy consumption. Additionally, we have instalied time
clocks in all schools, new condensing boilers at Braintree High School. We have installed insuiated windows at the East Middle
School, as well as the Flaherty School, Highlands School, Hollis Elementary School, Liberty Elementary School, Ross Elementary
School and South Middie School. All of these improvements have been made in the concerted effort {o increase energy
conservation, decrease energy-related costs, and improve the air quality in our schools for students and staff.

The Braintree Public Schools has made a concerted and substantial effort to improve technological education in our schools.
During the past few years, we have wired every classroom, learning space, and office with internet connections. During the past
few years, we have seen to it that all staff members have a computer in all Jearning spaces for their use and the use of their students.
We have purchased LCD projectors and short throw projectors in all of our classrooms. We need to have the power to operate
this equipment safely and without the use of extension cords running throughout our classrooms which can be a major safety
condition that could seriously jeopardize the health and safety of our school children.

The Braintree Public Schools with the support from the MSBA, has totally renovated the South Middle School with energy-efficient
lighting, new electrical service, a new HVAC system, four new boilers, new fire suppression system, new ceilings in every
classroom at a cost of over $3.2 million during the summer of 2010. The Braintree Public Schocels hoepes to complete a similar
renovation project at the East Middle School.

Additionafly, during this past year, the Braintree Public Schools, with support from the MSBA has replaced unmsulated window
systems with energy efficient insualted glass window systems at East Middle School, Highlands Elementary School, Hollis
Elementary School, and Morrison Elementary School. Under the MSBA Green Repair Project Program, a large section of the
Braintree High School roof was renovated. These Green Repair Projects were completed with financing from the MSBA and the
Town of Braintree at a cost of over $4,000,000.
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Priority 5

Question 3: Please provide a detailed explanation of the impact of the problem/issues described in Question I above
on your district’s educational program. Please include specific examples of how the problem prevents the district from
delivering the educational pregram it is required to deliver and how students and/or teachers are directly affected by
the problem identified.

The East Middle School was built in 1961, The HVAC systems, including the boilers, the unit ventilators and the contro! system are
original to the building construction. These HVAC systems are failing. There are steam leaks throughout the building. The heating
system can no longer be regulated by any efficient method. Additionaily, the upgrade of the HVAC systems will significantly lower
our heating energy costs. By installing an energy efficient digitally controlied HVAC system throughout the school this wili
significantly reduce interruptions to learning caused by this outdated steam system.

The Braintree Public Schools cannot implement the newest methods in teaching and learning using current educational technology.
The Braintree Public Schools do not have the electrical infrastructure to support this new technology such as; electrical outlets, a
proper electrical distribution system, and wiring fo support foday's electrical loads. New energy efficient lighting is also a crucial
repair needed as part of the electrical system upgrade. With the replacement of the ceilings and lighting, the Braintree Fire
Department will require the instaliation of a Fire Suppression System.
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Priority 5

Question 4: Please describe how addressing the school facility systems you identified in Question I above will extend
the useful life of the facility that is the subject of this SOI and how it will improve your district's educational
program.

By installing new electrical systems, new HVAC systems and controls, fire suppression, new interior doors, new lighting and

ceilings, as well as, new floor tile, the Braintree Public Schools estimates East Middle School to have a useful iife of an additional 50
years. ,

Please also previde the following:

Have the systems identified above been examined by an engineer or other trained building professional?: YES

If "YES", please provide the name of the individual and his/her professional affiliation (maximum of 250
characters)::

Habeeb and Associates
The date of the inspection:: 1/1/2010
A summary of the findings (maximum of 500G charactersj::

Masgsachusetts Schoo! Building Authority 14 Statement of Interest




Resolved:

Having convened in an open meeting on March 19, 2013, the Town Council of the Town of Braintree, in
accordance with its charter, by-laws, and ordinances, has voted to authorize the Superintendent to designate

the District Priority SOI to the Massachusetts School Building Authority as the

Statement of Interest dated March 19, 2013 for the East Middle School, located at 305 River Stree,

Braintree, MA 02184

which describes and explains the foiIoWing deficiencies and the priority category(s) for which the Town of
Braintree may be invited to apply to the Massachusetts School Building Authority in the future as the

District Priority SOL

The project 1s déscribed on the Statement of Interest dated March 19, 2013 for the East Middle School,
located at 305 River Street, Braintree, MA 02184 and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by
submitting this Statement of Interest, the Massachusetts School Building Authority in no way guarantees the
acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant or any other funding commitment from
the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the Town of Braintree to filing an application for

funding with the Massachusetts School Building Authority.



Resolved:

Having convened in an open meeting on March 19, 2013, the Town Council of the Town of Braintree, in
accordance with its charter, by-laws, and ordinances, has voted to authorize the Superintendent to submit to

. the Massachusetts School Building Authority the

Statement of Interest dated March 19, 2013 for the East Middle School located at 305 River Street,

Braintree, MA 02154

which describes and explains the following deficiencies and the priority category(s):

Priority #5 Replacement, renovation or modernization of school facility systems, such as roofs, windows,
boilers, heating and ventilation systems, to increase energy conservation and decrease energy related costs in
a facility for which the Town of Braintree may be invited to apply to the Massachusetts School Building

Authority in the future.

The project is described on the Statement of Interest dated March 19, 2013 for the East Middle School
located at 305RiverStreet, Braintree, MA 02184 and hereby further specifically acknowledges that by
submitting this Statement of Interest, the Massachusetts School Building Authority in no way guarantees the
acceptance or the approval of an application, the awarding of a grant lor any other funding commitment from
the Massachusetts School Building Authority, or commits the Town of Braintree to filing an application for

funding with the Massachusetts School Building Authority.
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CERTIFICATIORS

The undersigned hereby certifies that, to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief, the statements and information
contained in this statement of Interest and attached hereto are true and accurate and that this Statement of Interest has been
prepared under the direction of the district school committee and the undersigned is duly authorized to submit this Statement of
Tnterest to the Massachusetts School Building Authority. The undersigned also hereby acknowledges and agrees to provide
the Massachusetts Schoo! Building Authority, upon request by the Authority, any additional information relating to this
Statement of Interest that may be required by the Authority.

* Chief Executive Officer * Scheol Committee Chair Superintendent of Schools
{print name) (print name} (print name)
(signature) (signature) {signature}
Date Date Date

* Local chief executive officer: In a city or town with a manager form of government, the manager of the municipality; in other
cities, the mayor; and in other towns, the board of selectmen unless, in a city or town, some other municipal office 15
designated to the chief executive office under the provisions of a local charter.
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